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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre
248 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

H SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISORS

As to Hong Kong law:
Sidley Austin

As to PRC law:
Jiangsu He & Partners Law Firm
Grandall Law Firm (Suzhou)

COMPLIANCE ADVISOR

Dongxing Securities (Hong Kong) Company Limited
7503B-7504,75/F

International Commerce Centre

1 Austin Road West

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BHEFEEREROBERLT/ —T_=FFR

BAEEEEEHE
BB

T

ERKNER 2485

RFr & B 04018
HIRES B Tk

EEPRBEELERDA
B

BT

ERERNER 1835

A MLy
17181712-17165% 48

% B

KGR E T FT

B @A
ARl B Z2AD
B

) =0m

HEEEI799
AN — 271

SRR B

BREZ AR -
BB =BT

BB A
AR S UL BT S
B s 2 Em (R M) BI5 AT

B R

REFHF (BE)BRRD
B

BE
@B 15
RHESES
7512 7503B-7504 =



PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Suzhou New District Branch

15 Shishan Road

New District, Suzhou

Jiangsu Province

PRC

Agricultural Bank of China
Suzhou Commercial Street Branch
11-13 Commercial Street

Hugiu District, Suzhou

Jiangsu Province

PRC

Hua Xia Bank

Suzhou New District Branch
1128 Binhe Road

Gaoxin District, Suzhou
Jiangsu Province

PRC

Bank of Communications (Hong Kong) Limited
20 Pedder Street, Central

Hong Kong

PRC

Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
78 Des Voeux Road Central

Central
Hong Kong

COMPANY'S WEBSITE
www.suxinfuwu.com

STOCK CODE

Hong Kong Stock Exchange: 2152

CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

T EERRIT

FETRRIT
BEMNFEDT
=

TERE

M TR
0L BE 15 9%

PERERT
BEMNEEHEST
FEH

STERE

BN RERE
BEH11-1358

EERIT
BMNFEAT
A

LERE
BmMNmE R
VB B 1128 5%

RBRT(BB)ERLF

HE

FE

RIREITH 2057
KSRBITERAT
B

IR
BT8R

NG R
www.suxinfuwu.com
A A0 155

BEBBEAZPT 2152

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BN EFEEREROBRLB/ S _=FFR



06

DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the following meanings:

RAFEHRA - BRIENERSBME > TIHAKEEATEE

“2023 AGM”

[2023FREBFAL ]

“Articles of Association” or “Articles”

(AR EARARR ST 408 ]

“Audit Committee”

[EZZEE

“Board”

=

“China” or "PRC"
[ F =

"CIA”
[ fEET]

“Company” or “Suxin Services"”

NNCIREAE- S0 v

“Corporate Governance Code”

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023

BHXFEEREROBRIT/ —F

the 2023 annual general meeting of the Company to be convened
and held on Friday, 14 June 2024

RAFHKR2024F6 B148 (EHH) BRREBITH2023FRE
BERg

the articles of association of the Company, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
RAFIEBEIRZMA - ETEERT - R SAEA T B2k

the audit committee of the Company

ARREZERE®

the board of Directors

Exe

the People’s Republic of China
RE AR

China Index Academy
B 5 B 7T B

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. (#R¥TELF S RIS N BR A A)
(formerly known as Suzhou Xingang Property Service Co., Ltd.* (& /!
FAEMERS BRG], a company established in the PRC as an
enterprise owned by the whole people (2 R Fr A #l12) on 12 April
1994, converted into a company with limited liability on 25 March
2004 and then converted into a joint stock company with limited
liability on 23 April 2021

BHETEERGROBRAA (AIEGEMNTEMERBERA
) —RKR19UFAANBEFEKNINERAAREE - ®
2004F3 A25 AR ABEREERR - 28N 2021F4A23 8K
HlAERNERAR

the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 (which has
been renumbered to Appendix C1 with effect from 31 December
2023) to the Listing Rules
FHRBIM 14 (EENFEFRMERCT - B2023F12 4310
AR E bR E RS A

the director(s) of the Company
AKRARES



“Domestic Shares”

[RE ]

"EIT Law”

[ERAEHA]

“Gaoxin Water”

ESEER YN

“Gaoxin Rongyu”

(=R

“"GFA"
[ZEEE]

“Global Offering”
[2IREE]

“Golden Lion”

[ %]

"Group”

[A&HE]

“H Share(s)”

[HAx ]

DEFINITIONS

ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal
value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and paid up in
Renminbi

AATIRAPEREABEARKE1.00THERR AARERER
Be

the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC ({Fr & A R FFNEE 1> 2 Fr
B #i%)), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

(REAREMBDEREDE)  KTRHEE] - AR AEMT
AEH

Suzhou Gaoxin Water Supply Co., Ltd.* (#M =& B RKKBRAA])
(formerly known as Suzhou New District Water Supply Construction
Development Management Company (& /N ¥71& 5 KK EREEE
I8/ 7]), a company established in the PRC and a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of SND Company

BEMNEHEERKERAR (RIEHFNTRARKEREREEERN
A) —KRHPBEKIHAT - RS ARNERENE AR

Suzhou Gaoxin Rongyu Housing Leasing Co., Ltd.* (A& /N & ¥Rt (&
FHERRAR)
HFNeyREEEHEER AR

gross floor area
EEmE

has the same meaning as defined in the Prospectus
BEEHRERATHRE

Suzhou Golden Lion Building Development Management Co., Ltd.*
(FMEMANEZEREIRERAA), a company established in the
PRC with limited liability on 28 October 1992 and a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

BN AEZEREEARAR  —KN1992F 104288 EF
BRZHERART  BRARANEEZEWB LA

>

77

=

the Company and together with its subsidiaries

RRBREMBAR

overseas listed foreign share(s) in the share capital of the Company
with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each, which are subscribed for and
traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Stock Exchange
AATRARFGREEARE1.007THRIN ETINER - BT
RBNEBEWLEMA LT

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
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DEFINITIONS

“Hong Kong”

(&

“Hong Kong dollars” or “HK$”

&7t

“Huirong Disposal”

[ B Rt & 55 0A

“Huirong Purchaser”

[EERE T

“Kejia Acquisition”

(Bl U=

“Langyiju Commercial”

[BABEE R %

“Listing Date”

[ B8

“Listing Rules”

[ AR Al

“Main Board”

[ER]

“Mingsu Commercial”

[ 86 & 7 % |

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BMEFEERBROARAA /

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic
of China
mEARAMBEEBERFTHRE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREEEBEET

the disposal of the 3.167% equity interest in Suzhou Huirong held by
Golden Lion, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

HEARREEEZEWMB LR MATRERMNERE 3.167 % A HE

Suzhou Jianrong Group Co., Ltd* (&x/NERIE B BR A F))
FmMNEREEER AR

the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Sutong Kejia by Golden
Lion

T WU B BRI 52 100% A

Suzhou Langyiju Commercial Management Service Co., Ltd.* (& BA
EERREERKBRARF)
MR EEEEERBERAA

24 August 2022, the date on which dealings in the H Shares first
commence on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
20228 H24 8 - HERRN B X PR ERERFABEE 2 A

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, as amended, supplemented or otherwise
modified from time to time
ERBMERSGMABRAREZESF ETAR - K ARERT R
H At 5 S &2k

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the
Stock Exchange, which is independent from and operated in parallel
with GEM of the Stock Exchange

BRPMELNEARR S (T RIEETS) - BB AT GEM
I B H T8

Suzhou Mingsu Commercial Management Co., Ltd.* (&R /! 8% %% 2
ERAERRAA)
BN EEIERRAA



“Model Code”

[ 257 Al

“Nomination Committee”

Rz Eg

"Prospectus”

[ EE]

“Remuneration Committee”

[FHZEE

“Renminbi” or “RMB"”
[ARE ]

“Runjia”
3]

“Runjia Acquisition”

[z EEE ]

"SFO”

(787 M B 51

“Share(s)”

N

“Shareholder(s)"”
[ ]

“SND Chengjian”

o
4

(&=

fr ik 22 |

0
SH

DEFINITIONS

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 (which has been renumbered to
Appendix C3 with effect from 31 December 2023) to the Listing Rules
FHRAME10(EEFHTRMECI B2023F12A31HE
AR FE EMBETAEFETESFIHHRESTH

the nomination committee of the Company

RRBIRZEES

the prospectus of the Company dated 11 August 2022
RAFIHER2022F8 A1 BBKRER

the remuneration committee of the Company

ARRFMEEE

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

PEZEEBARE

Suzhou Runjia Engineering Co., Ltd.* (&M B & T ER A F))
BNEZIIEERAA

the acquisition of 100% equity interest in Runjia by Golden Lion
BRI 5 100% I

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong), as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from
time to time

EREDIEST BEEF LHERN - K& RER] - R A= M
HEK

shares in the share capital of the Company, with a nominal value of
RMB1.00 each, comprising the Domestic Shares and the H Shares
RATRAFEREBARE1.00TRD  BRERNEREHR

holder(s) of the Share(s)
EHEE A

Sugaoxin Chengjian Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.* (& &= 75 72 2%
B (8 JM)B PR A al), a company established in the PRC with limited
liability on 29 September 2017 and one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company

e ER (EMNBRLAR —RKN2017F9H29BEHH
B BRAT  RARBINERRR 2 —
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DEFINITIONS

“SND Company”

“SND Gaoxin Tech”

[ R M 8 2 =0 7 B

“SND Group”
[FRe T

“SND Yiyang”

[k

“Stock Exchange”
[k 32 AT

“Supervisors”

(B

“Supervisory Committee”
(B g

“Sutong Kejia”

[ %% iR 7 52

“Suzhou Exchange Center”

[N Z 0]

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BHMEFEERBROBRAR/ T -_=FFR

Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.* (B M S EBBRAF), a
wholly state-owned company established in the PRC with limited
liability on 8 February 1988 and one of the controlling shareholders of
the Company

BMESMEEERAR —RKN1988F2 A8H AT BIKILA
HEZEARAR  REARARNERKRZ —

SND Gaoxin Tech Industry Co., Ltd.* (BRMHTE SR MEXER N E
FR 2 8]), an A-share company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600736) which is owned as to approximately 43.79% by
SND Company

BNFESHENEEROBRAR  —KELBESFXHAL
MHIAR A A (BHNE : 600736) - BEAS A RHEBL43.79%
B IR

SND Company and its subsidiaries, excluding the Group
e A REMBAR (TEELEER)

SND Yiyang Health Management Company Limited (&# = #7142 2 5
EBERAA)
HaTeEREEEERRAR

square meters

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEEMARSMAERRAR

the supervisors of the Company

AREEE

the supervisory committee of the Company comprising all the
Supervisors
ARREFE BEZEBES

Suzhou Sutong Kejia Electromechanical Engineering Co., Ltd.* (&
BRI B TIEERAR])
M BRI T TIRBR AR

Suzhou Public Resources Exchange Center
BMTAHKBERZHH O



“Suzhou Huirong”

[ M T e

“Suzhou Water Supply Co”

(& B 2Rk~ ]

“Suzhou Xinjingtian”

[&R N =K

“UOP Announcement”
[FTEFRIER®AE]

“Yiyang Disposal”

[MaEHEERE]

"Yiyang Purchaser”

*  For identification purpose only

DEFINITIONS

Suzhou Huirong Business Travel Development Company* (% /M [ &h
ERERAR QA
HMNERMBEIREREGRAA

Suzhou High Tech Zone Water Supply Co., Ltd.* (EfRMN &5 ¥ [& B sk
BRARA)
M EE B RKERAA

Suzhou Xinjingtian Business Land Development Company* (&M 15
AEBHEZRBRAR])
BN EREBHNEERERAF

the announcement of the Company dated 27 April 2023
RAFR2023F4 27BN E

the disposal of the 49% equity interest in SND Yiyang held by the
Company

& N R B R B = T 16 2 B 49 % A

Suzhou High-tech Health Industry Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.*
(BT RERER (HN) ARQA)
BT EREXERE (BN ARAA

Suzhou Gaoxin Zhitai Innovation Development Co., Ltd.* ( & /I &= #
BREGAERARAT)
BEINETERETEEERAR

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
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EVENTS OF THE YEAR
FEXRSE

EXPANSION OF BUSINESS TO ALL TEN MAJOR
SEGMENTS OF SUZHOU

In 2023, the Company achieved the goal of its business layout across
all ten major segments of Suzhou, laying the foundation to fully enter
the market in Jiangsu Province. With its foothold in Suzhou and
considering the specific market demands of Jiangsu Province, the
Company will adjust and optimize its service strategies to ensure rapid
adaptation and continuous business growth in the new market
environment.

Deepening the development of the integrated
reform of urban services of the High-tech Zone

With the continuous implementation of the “Implementation Plan for
the Integrated Reform of Urban Maintenance of the Suzhou High-
tech Zone” (&R = % [ L 1 4 & — (L E E JE 77 &), the
Company has newly undertaken the integrated management of the
Business Innovation Functional Zone (Hengtang Street, Shishan CfiLL
¥ E) , and Fenggiao Street (#5 #7 7€) ), the Advanced
Manufacturing Functional Zone (Economic Development Zone
(Town)), and some of the directly-administered roads, as well as bus
stations advertisements and street light boxes in the Amenities
Department of High-tech Zone in 2023. While further integrating into
the reform process of urban services integration in the Hi-tech Zone, it
has laid a solid foundation for the Company’s sustainable
development in the field of urban services management.

Establishment of a garbage sorting education base

In February 2023, the Company completed the construction of a
garbage sorting education base at Science & Technology City Waste
Collection Center and opened it to the public. Publicity and education
on garbage sorting has been provided to community residents, youths
and children, and 50 educational activities have been successfully
organized so far. This initiative not only enhances public awareness
and participation in garbage sorting, but also contributes to the city’s
sustainable development.

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
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Establishment of a working group on enhancement
of services for old small districts

In April 2023, the Company established a working group on
enhancement of services for old small districts to carry out
comprehensive renovation, including hallways refurbishment,
environment greening and debris removal, etc. We successfully
renovated 143 park spaces, replanted 4,840 m? of greening, removed
4,987 tons of debris, updated the access control and monitoring
equipment, installed charging canopies, and repaired the road
surfaces, which significantly improved the living environment and
promoted the continuous optimization of the community.

Officially setting foot in the Suzhou campus of
Nanjing University

With the official opening of the Suzhou campus of Nanjing University,
the Company formally set foot in the Suzhou campus of Nanjing
University in 2023 and was responsible for the property management,
which marked the Company’s further expansion of the services in
education filed. By providing comprehensive property service, Suxin
Services is committed to creating a safe and comfortable learning and
living environment for the teachers and students at Suzhou campus of
Nanjing University.

EVENTS OF THE YEAR
FEXRS

B EZEPNERBREA TN

2023F 48 - ARAEIKEE N ERBIE
TE N HEE/NRETRABGE  BIE
BEBY  RESLCEMYBEES RN
EBA1431E - WiEAR 04,840 F K - Bk
FEVA,987WE - EATPIEE R BE PR AR 4 - EER
B EERE BEERSEARE  HE
HERRFFEEL -

EXEHMRAEHMNRE

BEARASZHEMNREBROEAFS KA T
R2023F EVERARABHMNRE - BE
HYEERTE - BREARBEHE R
RIS HE— SR - BRRERESVERT -
BRI N AERRBEHRMRE A&
BliEL R SFENBEMERRE -
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AWARDS OF THE YEAR
F [ 4

April 2023 2023 Leading Smart City Services Companies in China
2023F4 A8 2023 E E R mRBAELEE

In April, Suxin Services was honoured as one of the Leading Smart City Services Companies in China (/9 B & 2, 1 iR 7%
RB4E 1) by China Index Academy in 2023.
4 8 - ERFTIRIS P Bl B P s iR A2 2023 R Bl S B M RS B E o

April 2023 2023 Top 100 Property Management Companies of China
2023%4A 2023 E KR BB

In April, Suxin Services was recognized as one of the 2023 Top 100 Property Management Companies of China (2023
Bl % Bk 7% B 382 %) by China Index Academy.
4R - BHHRGEPEEBA R TER/2023FEMEREEREE -

April 2023 China Five-Star Property Service Project in 2023 (Shishan Cultural Square)
2023%4A 2023 E A ERYERKIER L XL ES)

In April, Shishan Cultural Square, the project under management of Suxin Services, was recognized as “China Five-Star
Property Service Project in 2023" (2023 R Bl 71 2 & W 2 BRFH B ) by China Index Academy.
4R HARBEEEB MU ES P EEEEF R ER2023TH A2 RMERBIER -

May 2023 2023 Property Management Company Worth Focusing by Capital Market
2023F5A8 2023 (EBEATEHINMERBEE

In May, Suxin Services was recognized as a 2023 Property Management Company Worth Focusing by Capital Market
(2023 B3 B AT IHET B Y 2 RTE D %) by China Index Academy.
58 ¢ BRIIRFS W R BIE S b iR B 2023 BB EAT BB EMWERG L -

September 2023 2023 Leading Brand in the PRC Property Management Industry in Specialized
Operations with brand value of RMB1.1 billion

2023594 2023FEMERBEXCLELRLRELE (REEEER)

In September, Suxin Services was awarded the “Leading Brand in the PRC Property Management Industry in Specialized

Operations” (FFEI W £ RIS HEELELBEREDZE) in 2023 with a brand value of RMB1.1 billion by China Index

Academy.

9A - EHREEPEREBMARITER/2023TEYERBIERICELB LB LR (REEENRET) -
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AWARDS OF THE YEAR
FESRE

October 2023 Contract-abiding and Creditworthy Enterprise in Suzhou City

2023510 B BMNTITEREFALRE

In October, Suxin Services was recognized as the Contract-abiding and Creditworthy Enterprise in Suzhou City (&N 57
AREERD%) by Suzhou Market Supervision and Administration Bureau (/N i HISEBEEEB).

107 BFRBEHMNTMSEEETRRTEAHNTTEREFERME -

December 2023 2022 Top 50 Enterprises by Comprehensive Strength in Property Management
Industry of Jiangsu Province

2023512 8 0225 EIHENERBITEFEEHS0REHE

In December, Suxin Services was recognized as one of the 2022 Top 50 Enterprises by Comprehensive Strength in

Property Management Industry of Jiangsu Province (2022 5 £ )L # & ¥ 5 IR TE 1T ¥ 474 B 15098 12 %) by Jiangsu Real

Estate Association (L& EHE XS ).

NA BIRBEIHEENEERSTER202D2FEIHREMERBITESEE NS0BMDE -

As of 31 December 2023, Suxin Services received a total of 149 B IEZE2023412 A31 8 - & R HEF
honorary titles, including 35 national-level honors, 27 provincial-level ~ T49TRAREE - KA S 35 THEI M ARE -
honors and 50 municipal-level honors. 7EEMEE SO REE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DN

OVERVIEW

The Group is a city service and property management service provider
deeply rooted in the Yangtze River Delta Region, especially in Suzhou.
The H Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
24 August 2022 by way of Global Offering.

The Group focuses on providing city services, commercial property
management services, residential property management services and
property leasing. Headquartered in Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the
Group has established a solid market presence in the Yangtze River
Delta Region. The Group believes that its strategic focus on the
Yangtze River Delta Region, especially in Suzhou, and the established
market position for providing city services and property management
services in Suzhou will continue to support the growth of the Group’s
business scale and enable the Group to enjoy competitive advantages
in the city service and property management service market of China.

The Group's focus on city environment, citizen wellbeing and
commitment to customer satisfaction have shaped its brand image for
high-calibre services. The Group’s commitment to quality services has
earned the Group numerous industry awards and recognitions. The
Group has been recognized as one of the Top 100 Property
Management Companies of China for eight consecutive years since
2016 and was ranked 41st among the 2023 Top 100 Property
Management Companies of China (2023 R BI ¥ % BR 7% B % 1> %) by
CIA in terms of overall strength. The Group was honoured as one of
the “Leading City Services Companies in China” (B3} i AR 75 48 5¢
1&2) by CIA in 2023 and Shishan Cultural Square, a project under
the Group’s management, was accredited as “China Five-Star
Property Service Project in 2023 (2023 Rl A 2 &AW ZERHBIEE )"

! Each year the CIA publishes the Top 100 Property Management Companies
in China in terms of overall strength based on the data from the previous
year on key factors such as management scale, operational performance,
service quality, growth potential and social responsibility of the property
management companies under consideration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group provides comprehensive city services and property
management services to a wide variety of properties, including (i) city
services offered to local governments and public authorities to satisfy
local residents’ daily living needs and improve their living standards
and experience; (i) commercial property management services offered
to industrial parks, office buildings, apartments and commercial
complexes; and (iii) residential property management services. The
Group offers both traditional property management services and a
wide range of value-added services to commercial properties and
residential communities to address the diverse needs of its customers
while enhancing customer stickiness. The Group also provides
property leasing services where it leases out office buildings and
apartments to diversify its revenue streams. The Group believes that
provision of diverse services will improve customers’ loyalty, increase
its brand recognition and enhance business operations and financial
performance.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group was contracted to provide public
facility management services, basic commercial property management
services and basic residential property management services to 136
projects in China, with a total contracted GFA of approximately 16.7
million sg.m., representing an increase of 83.5% compared with 31
December 2022, primarily due to the fact that the Company was
officially engaged to provide services for Shushan Village Scenic Area
(#8111 #F &= [&) with a total GFA of 5.2 million sg.m., among which
126 projects with a total GFA of over 15.2 million sq.m. were under
the Group’s management.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group derived its
revenue primarily from four business lines, namely, (i) city services; (ii)
commercial property management services; (iii) residential property
management service; and (iv) property leasing services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

Portfolio of Properties under Management

The following table sets forth the number of projects and GFA under
the Group's management for public facility management services,
basic commercial property management services and basic residential
property management services by business line as of the dates
indicated:

HENERES

TREJBEMTREYPAEEIREBRE D
MAZEREERS EXEHEDEEER
BREAEETHEEERBHOIEEZE LE
EREEME

As of 31 December

BZ12A31H
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 %
Number of GFA under Number of GFA under
projects management projects  management
EHEHE EEEXHEE HE#E TEREEE
sq.m."000 sg.m.’000
FEGK FF K
Public facility management Q18 B &8 AR
services 45 3,421.6 29 1,709.4
Basic commercial property B KEGE Y
management services BRI 50 8,408.3 36 2,112.5
Basic residential property  EAR{FE¥E
management services EERTE 31 3,329.3 22 3,175.8
Total @t 126 15,159.2 87 6,997.7
City Services 39 BR 75

The Group assists local governments and public authorities in their
provision of city services to improve local residents’ living experience
and environment. The Group’s city services primarily include (i)
municipal infrastructure services; (ii) public facility management
services; and (iii) operation of waste collection centres.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Municipal Infrastructure Services

The Group offers municipal infrastructure services including cleaning,
greening, maintenance, regular inspection and refurbishment services
to ensure the cleanliness and normal operations of public
infrastructure under the Group’s management, including city roads,
external walls of buildings along main city roads, street lamps, water
supply network, as well as tram and tram platforms. The Group
charges service fees based on the length of roads or GFA of the site
area covered by its services. As of 31 December 2023, the Group
provided municipal infrastructure services to 32 projects.

Public Facility Management Services

The Group offers property management services including cleaning,
security, gardening and landscaping, as well as repair and
maintenance services to public facilities such as public museums,
libraries, art and sports centres, city parks, schools, hospitals and
office buildings for public authorities.

As of 31 December 2023, GFA of public facilities under the Group’s
management was approximately 3.4 million sq.m., and the Group
was contracted to manage public facilities with a GFA of
approximately 4.1 million sq.m..

Operation of Waste Collection Centres

Underpinned by the Group’s extensive experience in maintaining
public facilities, the Group has been awarded by local governments
and public authorities for the construction and operation of waste
collection centres. Upon construction of waste collection centres, the
Group assists local governments and public authorities in operating
the waste collection centres and offering waste management services,
including collecting household waste from city roads, households and
commercial sources in the Suzhou Gaoxin District, transporting waste
to the Group’s operated waste collection centres, sorting and
compacting waste for better treatment, and disposing compressed
waste to incineration for burning or landfills for burying operated by
third parties.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had constructed and operated
three waste collection centres in Suzhou with the maximum capacity
to process 1,200 tons of household waste per day and 50 tons of
bulky waste per day.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

Commercial and Residential Property Management Services

The Group’s commercial and residential property management
services include both basic property management services and value-
added services. Basic property management services include security
services, cleaning, greening and gardening services, and common area
facility repair and maintenance services. Value-added services include
carpark space management services, resource management services,
property agency services, and other customized services such as
customized cleaning and maintenance services, security services,
hosting events, business support and/or assistance to customers in
leasing printing machines according to specific customer demands.

As of 31 December 2023, the Group provided basic property
management services to 50 commercial properties with a total GFA
under management of approximately 8.4 million sq.m., and 31
residential properties with a total GFA under management of
approximately 3.3 million sq.m..

Property Leasing

The Group owns certain investment properties such as office buildings
and apartments which are leased out as staff dormitories or offices.
The Group charges rental fees and management fees.

As of 31 December 2023, the average occupancy rate of the Group’s
leased properties was approximately 52.3%. The Group recorded a
decrease in average occupancy rate from approximately 64.88% for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately 52.3% for the
year ended 31 December 2023, primarily due to lower-than-expected
capacity utilization rate of enterprises in the surrounding area of the
Company's largest property leasing project, Jinlin Apartment (& #02
&), which affected the demand for residential properties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OUTLOOK

Firstly, the Group will manage the growth of project scale while
increasing profitability. The Group’s business scale will be expanded
through mergers and acquisitions, equity investment and other
methods. Sound procedures for the selection of acquisition targets as
well as due diligence and judgment will be implemented. The Group
will closely monitor key projects with a focus on major processes such
as project completion, tender and bidding. Through strategic
cooperation, the Group will carry out in-depth research on market
demand and industry trends in order to improve the bid winning rate
and business growth rate of projects.

Secondly, the Group will fully enter the market in Jiangsu Province
and achieve comprehensive business growth. Over the past year, the
Company successfully completed its business layout across all ten
major segments of Suzhou. In 2024, with its foothold in Suzhou and
considering the specific market demands of Jiangsu Province, the
Company will adjust and optimize its service strategies to ensure rapid
adaptation and continuous business growth in the new market
environment. This initiative will serve as an opportunity for the
Company to optimize its service model, expand its service range,
establish a more comprehensive business network within Jiangsu
Province, and further enhance the Company’s brand influence and
industry status.

Thirdly, the Group will provide professional and customized property
services. The Group will continue to improve its service quality and
customer satisfaction, and refine its service processes and service
levels through regular customer feedback surveys and satisfaction
assessments. The Group will strengthen staff trainings and skill
improvement to ensure that all staff have professional knowledge and
skills to deal with various complex situations. The Group will enhance
its communication and cooperation with customers, continuously
understand their needs and expectations, and provide customized
property solutions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

Fourthly, the Group will accelerate digital development of the industry
and promote the upgrade of smart services. The Group will
comprehensively promote the integrated customer service center, city
housekeeper platform and WeChat App, realize online access to
report and repair, dynamic update of project data, and unified
management of services. According to the characteristics of each
project, various methods will be adopted to improve the service
quality. The Group will strengthen the construction of smart
properties and provide innovative services and value-added services,
so as to continuously improve the satisfaction of owners. The Group
will introduce advanced property management systems and
technologies to boost work efficiency and information management
capabilities. The Group will continue to optimize its quality
management system, and strengthen the supervision and
implementation of various work processes and standard operations, in
order to ensure the efficiency and standardization of operating
activities. The Group will continuously improve equipment
maintenance and maintenance work to ensure the normal operation
of equipment and reduce failures and downtime.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2022 have been restated. Please refer to Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements for details. Accordingly, the
following comparative figures provided for the year ended 31
December 2022 are also restated as compared to those set out in the
annual results announcement of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's revenue by
business line for the periods indicated:

EEEFWE DN

87 755 Ol R

HZ2022F 12 A3 HIEFEMNGRIBERR -
BEZHERAER HREEREDHEREEE
ERERCDEEY -FBBHLHEEMBR
FMFFE3 c Bt - AR R E ZE 2022612 A
BNAEFENFEEENSHELRETA
L FHIEE2022F12A31HIEFENL
BHFTIELET -
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Year ended 31 December

BZ1NANALEE

2023 2022
2023 20225
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
AR¥TR % ARETT %
(Restated)
(E5)
City services AR 453,111 62.5% 256,767 48.0%
— Municipal infrastructure — MHERRBERS
services 260,006 35.9% 123,585 23.1%
— Public facility —REBEEERY
management services 143,417 19.8% 91,850 17.2%
— Operation of waste — WREER D
collection centers HES 49,688 6.8% 41,332 7.7%
Commercial property BMENXEERE
management services 195,191 26.9% 188,211 35.3%
— Basic property — EARYEER RS
management services 154,203 21.3% 163,359 30.6%
— Value-added services — BERE 40,988 5.6% 24,852 4.7%
Residential property TEMEEE R
management services 60,096 8.3% 65,622 12.3%
— Basic property management — F ¥ & 18 R
services 50,054 6.9% 46,117 8.6%
— Value-added services — BERE 10,042 1.4% 19,505 3.7%
Property leasing MEHRE 16,706 2.3% 23,623 4.4%
Total #Et 725,104 100.0% 534,223 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DN

Revenue of the Group increased by approximately 35.7% from

approximately RMB534.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB725.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, primarily reflecting the following:

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

revenue from city services increased by approximately 76.5%
from approximately RMB256.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB453.1 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, primarily due to the increase in
revenue from municipal infrastructure services as a result of the
expansion of integrated city services provided by the Group, as
well as the addition of public facilities including schools,
hospitals, cultural and sports complex to which the Group offers
property management services during the year ended 31
December 2023;

revenue from commercial property management services
increased by approximately 3.7% from approximately RMB188.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB195.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2023,
primarily due to the increase in the number of commercial
property sales offices and industrial park projects under the
Group’s management for the year ended 31 December 2023,

revenue from residential property management services
decreased by approximately 8.4% from approximately RMB65.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB60.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2023,
primarily due to the return of public revenue to the owners'’
committee for the self-governance of homeowners at the
request of the owners’ committee during the year ended 31
December 2023; and

revenue from property leasing services decreased by
approximately 29.3% from approximately RMB23.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB16.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, primarily due to
lower-than-expected capacity utilization rate of enterprises in
the surrounding area of Jinlin Apartment (& #8 /2 &), which
affected the demand for residential properties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales increased from approximately RMB410.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB578.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2023 primarily
due to the increase in subcontracting costs as a result of the increase
in integrated city services projects and public facility projects of the
Group.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The following table sets forth the Group’s gross profit and gross profit
margin by business line for the periods indicated:

EEEFWE DN

HERA

REEWHEEXNTHEE2022F12 431 H
FFEEHOARBAOEBTIEMNERS
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Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2023 2022
2023 £ 2022 5
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin Gross profit margin
EF EF=E EF ER=
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETF T
(Restated)
(&&E5)
City services W AR 95,024 21.0% 63,197 24.6%
Commercial property EEMEERERY
management services 36,490 18.7% 34,415 18.3%
Residential property FEMEERR
management services 4,967 8.3% 6,302 9.6%
Property leasing MEHRE 10,492 62.8% 19,696 83.4%
Total Y 146,973 20.3% 123,610 23.1%

The Group's gross profit increased by approximately 18.9% from
approximately RMB123.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB147.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, primarily due to the Group’s business expansion.

AEBNEFNBEE2022F12A31HIEF
EAOARE123.6BETLEMA189% EHE
2023 12 A3THIEFENARK 147068
T EERBARAEEEBER -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR DN

The Group's gross profit margin decreased by 2.8 percentage points

during the year ended 31 December 2023 from 23.1% for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to 20.3% for the year ended 31 December
2023, primarily reflecting the following:

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

gross profit for city services increased by approximately 50.4%
from approximately RMB63.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB95.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023, mainly due to the increase in
revenue from municipal infrastructure services as a result of the
expansion of integrated city services provided by the Group, as
well as the addition of the Group’s public facilities including
schools, hospitals, cultural and sports complex to which the
Group offers property management services during the year
ended 31 December 2023;

gross profit for commercial property management services
increased by approximately 6.0% from approximately RMB34.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB36.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023,
primarily due to the increase in the number of commercial
property sales offices and industrial park projects under the
Group’s management for the year ended 31 December 2023,

gross profit for residential property management services
decreased by approximately 21.2% from approximately RMB6.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB5.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2023, primarily
due to the return of public revenue to the owners’ committee
for the self-governance of homeowners at the request of the
owners’ committee during the year ended 31 December 2023;
and

gross profit for property leasing services decreased by
approximately 46.7% from approximately RMB19.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB10.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, primarily due to
lower-than-expected capacity utilization rate of enterprises in
the surrounding area of Jinlin Apartment (& #8 /2 &), which
affected the demand for residential properties.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Income and Gains

The Group's other income and gains increased by approximately
157.7% from approximately RMB17.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB45.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2023, primarily because of the compensation of
approximately RMB29.5 million from the municipal government for
the demolition and relocation of Meilin Youth Apartment (3£#8 & 4
A8) during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

The Group's selling and marketing expenses remained relatively stable
at approximately RMB3.0 million and RMB3.3 million for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, respectively.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 40.8% from
approximately RMB35.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB49.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, primarily due to (i) the increase in employee compensation
arising from the increase in the number of employees due to the
Group’s business expansion and the adjustment of the employee
remuneration structure during the year ended 31 December 2023;
and (i) the increase in consultation fees in relation to, among others,
the changes in the use of the Net Proceeds, the amendments to the
articles of association of the Company, the acquisitions and disposals
of equity interests in various target companies and other matters
during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

Other Expenses

Other expenses increased by approximately 1,764.1% from
approximately RMB1.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB21.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, primarily due to the decrease in the fair value of valuation of
investment properties as a result of lower-than-expected capacity
utilization rate of enterprises in the surrounding area of Jinlin
Apartment (£ #5 2 &), which affected the demand for residential
properties.

Finance Costs

Finance cost increased by approximately 26.7% from approximately
RMB12.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB15.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, primarily due to the fact that the interest was recognized as
expenses upon commencement of operation of the household waste
collection centers. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
construction of waste collection centers were capitalised as part of
the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceased when waste collection centers were substantially ready for
their intended use.

Share of Profits/Losses of a Joint Venture and
Associates

On 18 December 2020, the Group invested RMB9.8 million in SND
Yiyang, a provider of elderly care, nursing and medical services, for
49% of its shares. As a result of the disappointing performance of
SND Yiyang, the Company entered into an asset transaction
agreement on 7 June 2023 to dispose of its entire interest in SND
Yiyang at a consideration of RMB5,808,100. On 18 September 2023,
the Yiyang Disposal was completed and the Group recorded a gain on
the disposal of approximately RMB1 million. SND Yiyang had ceased
to contribute profit or loss to the Group thereafter.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For details, please refer to the section headed “SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES” below.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's share of loss of
an associate arose from the investment in SND Yiyang, which
amounted to approximately RMBO.3 million, and the Group'’s share of
profit of associates arose from the investments in (i) Langyiju
Commercial; and (ii) Mingsu Commercial, which amounted to
approximately RMB1.3 million, and the share of profit of a joint
venture arose from the investment in Gaoxin Rongyu which amounted
to RMB9,000, as compared to the share of loss of an associate from
the investment in SND Yiyang of approximately RMB2.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022. Both Langyiju Commercial and
Mingsu Commercial are providers of property management services
and the Group holds 19% equity interests in each of them; whereas
Gaoxin Rongyu is a joint venture principally engaged in provision of
real estate agency services and housing agency services, 50% equity
interests of which is held by the Group.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expenses increased by approximately 7.1% from
approximately RMB22.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to RMB24.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2023, primarily
due to the expansion of the Group which led to the increase in the
Group's profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Profit for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year increased from
approximately RMB65.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB80.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment decreased by approximately 4.3%
from approximately RMB410.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to RMB392.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, primarily due to the completion of Huanshan Road
Waste Collection Center in late 2022, which resulted in the increase
in depreciation expenses in 2023.

Investment Properties

The Group’s investment properties mainly represent the value of
commercial properties and rental apartments. The value of the
Group's investment properties decreased by approximately 5.7% from
approximately RMB353.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to RMB332.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Equity Investment Designated at Fair Value Through
Other Comprehensive Income

As of 31 December 2023, the Group recorded equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income of
approximately RMB5.0 million (31 December 2022: approximately
RMB70.7 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2023, equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income reflect the value of the Group’s
equity investment in Suzhou Xinjingtian, details of which are set out
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Fair value
Percentage of through other  Size relative to
equity comprehensive  the Company's Fair value
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No dividends were received on the above investment during the year
ended 31 December 2023 (31 December 2022: Nil).

The substantial decrease of the Group's equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as at 31 December
2023 as compared with that of 31 December 2022 was primarily due
to the Group's disposal of its entire interest held in Suzhou Huirong
during the year ended 31 December 2023. For details, please refer to
the section headed “SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES”
below.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR DN

The Group remains susceptible to the risk of fair value change of its
equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, and may record a fair value loss on the equity
investments in the future, which would lead to a decrease in the total
assets as well as net assets.

To monitor the performance of the Group’s equity investments, the
Group has adopted the following internal control policies: (i) the
manager and supporting staff of each equity investment report the
investment budget, the operational status of the investment target,
and the major issues and their potential consequences to the Group’s
management on a quarterly basis; (ii) the Group will review the equity
investments at least annually, and conduct periodical or special audits
of its investment assets; and (iii) all the files related to each equity
investment are documented and archived.

Trade Receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from independent third-party
customers for services the Group performed in its ordinary course of
business. The Group’s trade receivables increased by approximately
67.2% from approximately RMB176.5 million as of 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB295.1 million as of 31 December 2023,
primarily due to the expansion of the city services provided by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 and payments in
relation to various integrated city services projects were not yet settled
for the year ended 31 December 2023, resulting in an increase in
trade receivables.

Prepayments, Other Receivables and Other Assets

The Group’s prepayments, other receivables and other assets
decreased by approximately 12.4% from approximately RMB32.7
million as of 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB28.6 million as
of 31 December 2023, mainly attributable to the decrease in value-
added tax deductible during the year ended 31 December 2023 due
to the increase in revenue after the completion of the waste collection
centers by the end of 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Trade Payables

Trade payables primarily represent the Group’s obligations to pay for
services acquired in the ordinary course of business from independent
third-party subcontractors and construction parties of waste collection
centres. The Group's trade payables increased by approximately
41.7% from approximately RMB212.6 million as of 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB301.3 million as of 31 December 2023,
primarily due to the expansion of the city services provided by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 and payments in
relation to various integrated city services projects were not yet settled
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023, resulting in an
increase in trade payables due to subcontractors.

Other Payables and Accruals

Other payables and accruals represent (i) deposits that the Group
collects from (a) property developers, property owners, residents and
tenants before the Group commences its provision of property
management services; and (b) property owners and residents before
they begin renovating or refurnishing their units; (ii) payroll and
welfare payable; (iii) maintenance funds; (iv) receipts of payments on
behalf of customers, which primarily include payments from third
parties for common area advertising and temporary parking; and (v)
other tax payables.

The Group's other payables and accruals increased by approximately
13.7% from approximately RMB96.9 million as of 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB110.2 million as of 31 December 2023,
primarily attributable to the dividends payable to the company’s
controlling shareholder in the amount of approximately RMB12.6
million as of 31 December 2023, which has been settled in March
2024.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities mainly arise from payments the Group receives
from customers based on billing schedules prescribed in the property
management service agreements. A portion of payments are usually
received in advance of the performance of property management
services under the contracts.

The Group's contract liabilities increased by approximately 34.9%
from approximately RMB39.8 million as of 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB53.7 million as of 31 December 2023, primarily
due to the addition of the Group’s management projects.

Net Current Assets

The Group's total current assets increased by approximately 47.2%
from approximately RMB589.9 million as of 31 December 2022 to
approximately RMB868.0 million as of 31 December 2023, primarily
due to the increase in trade receivables as a result of the expansion of
city services provided by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2023. Total current liabilities increased by approximately
30.2% from approximately RMB392.3 million as of 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB510.9 million as of 31 December 2023,
primarily due to the increase in trade payables as a result of the
expansion of city services as mentioned. As a result, the Group's net
current assets increased by approximately 80.8% from approximately
RMB197.5 million as of 31 December 2022 to approximately
RMB357.1 million as of 31 December 2023.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group’s main source of liquidity mainly came from cash flow
from proceeds from the Global Offering, operations and interest-
bearing borrowings. As of 31 December 2023, cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to approximately RMB397.3
million, of which RMB237.7 million was denominated in RMB and
HK$176.1 million (equivalent to approximately RMB159.6 million) was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (31 December 2022:
approximately RMB355.9 million, of which RMB162.2 million was
denominated in RMB and HK$216.9 million was denominated in
Hong Kong dollars).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmE DN

Bank Borrowings IRITER

As of 31 December 2023, interest-bearing bank loans of the Group & ZE20234 12 A31 8 AEE M B R1T
amounted to approximately RMB119.1 million (31 December 2022: &R ABARE119.18E T (2022F 128
approximately RMB122.5 million), all of which were denominated in 318 : S AR 12258 &) » Hh 2 & E
Renminbi and carried fixed interest rates. FHEUARBTELIZEE MRS -

The following table sets forth the components of the Group’s Tk &5 AN B & = Frox B B89 & 5048 B EB

borrowings as of the dates indicated: P2NE
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
2023 5 2022 FF
128318 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Current BIER
— Current portion of — RERITERM AN B o
long-term bank loans — secured — B 10,000 11,250
Non-current JEENHA
— Bank loans — secured —RITER — KT 109,063 111,250
Total HEt 119,063 122,500

The table below sets forth a repayment schedule of the interest- TFXREINEEF/~B B BRITERNER

bearing bank loans as of the dates indicated: ik
31 December 31 December
2023 2022
2023 2022 F
12HA31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Repayable within one year or on demand R—FANRIEEKEE 10,000 11,250
Repayable within two to five years, inclusive ~ RRERFREE(BIEEREME) 40,000 78,250
Beyond five years AFLE 69,063 33,000
Total #Et 119,063 122,500
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other Liabilities

As of 31 December 2023, the Group recorded other liabilities of
approximately RMB174.0 million (31 December 2022: approximately
RMB171.0 million). Other liabilities arose from an earmarked
governmental loan granted by the Suzhou Finance Bureau to Suzhou
Xingang Municipal Greening Service Co., Ltd.* (& /N 3778 t BR&x 1L
AR5 BBR A A]), a subsidiary of the Company, with nominal value of
RMB200.0 million, an annual nominal interest rate of 3.37% payable
semiannually and a maturity date on 27 February 2030 to facilitate
the construction of waste collection centres.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s bank loan of approximately
RMB119.1 million were secured by certain investment properties and
buildings of the Group with an aggregated carrying value of RMB54.0
million (31 December 2022: approximately RMB122.5 million with an
aggregated carrying value of RMB57.2 million).

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is calculated based on total bank loans and other
liabilities divided by total equity as of the end of that period. The
Group's gearing ratio for the year ended 31 December 2023 was
36.1% (31 December 2022: 38.9%).

Contingent Liabilities

As of 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any outstanding
material contingent liabilities (31 December 2022: nil).

Capital Expenditures

The Group’s capital expenditure primarily represented expenditures
incurred for purchase of property, plant and equipment and additions
to leasehold land. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group incurred capital expenditures of approximately RMB49.0 million
(31 December 2022: RMB57.4 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET RISK ANALYSIS

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank loans, finance
leases, other liabilities, which primarily consist of government bonds
and cash and time deposits. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include credit risk and liquidity risk. The Directors manage
and monitor these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner.

Credit Risk

The Group enters into transactions only with recognized and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is insignificant.
For transactions that are not denominated in the functional currency
of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer credit terms
without the specific approval of the Group’s head of credit control.

Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its exposure to liquidity risk primarily by
monitoring current ratio. The objective of the Group is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of interest-bearing loans. The Group's policy is that all the borrowings
should be approved by the chief financial officer of the Company.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group's operations are primarily conducted in Renminbi, which is
the functional currency of the Group. Material fluctuations in the
exchange rate of the Renminbi against the Hong Kong dollar may
negatively impact the value and amount of any dividends payable on
the shares of the Company. Currently, the Group does not implement
any foreign currency hedging policy and the management of the
Group will closely monitor any exposure to foreign exchange.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURES

Disposal of SND Yiyang and Suzhou Huirong

As the Company is a state-controlled listed company, any disposal of
its state-owned property right is required to undergo the process of
public tender through a qualified equity exchange organization in
accordance with the regulations concerning the disposal of state-
owned property right.

SND Yiyang

On 24 March 2023, the Company proposed to dispose of the 49%
equity interest in SND Yiyang held by it through public tender at the
Suzhou Exchange Centre. Upon completion of the process of the
public tender, Suzhou Hightech Health Industry Development (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd.* (BAm ¥R E 2% E (&) B R 2 7)) was the successful
bidder and the final bid price was RMB5,808,100. On 7 June 2023,
the Company entered into an asset transaction agreement with the
Yiyang Purchaser in relation to the Yiyang Disposal. The Yiyang
Purchaser is an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of SND
Company, a controlling shareholder of the Company. The Yiyang
Purchaser is therefore a connected person of the Company and the
Yiyang Disposal constituted a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 24 March 2023 and 7 June
2023, respectively.

On 18 September 2023, the Yiyang Disposal was completed and the
Company had ceased to hold any equity interest in SND Yiyang.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Suzhou Huirong

On 15 June 2023, the Company proposed to dispose of the 3.167%
equity interest in Suzhou Huirong held by it through public tender at
the Suzhou Exchange Centre. Upon completion of the process of the
public tender, Suzhou Jianrong Group Co., Ltd* (BRI ZRIEBE B R
‘A 7)) was the successful bidder and the final bid price was
RMB60,302,500. On 3 August 2023, Golden Lion, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (as vendor) entered into an asset
transaction agreement with the Huirong Purchaser in relation to the
Huirong Disposal. The Huirong Purchaser is a direct non-wholly owned
subsidiary of SND Company, a controlling shareholder of the
Company. The Huirong Purchaser is therefore a connected person of
the Company and the Huirong Disposal constituted a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. It
also constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 15 June 2023 and 3 August
2023, respectively.

On 4 December 2023, the Huirong Disposal was completed and the
Company had ceased to hold any equity interest in Suzhou Huirong.
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Acquisition of Sutong Kejia and Runjia
Sutong Kejia

On 26 July 2023, the Company submitted a bid for the proposed
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Sutong Kejia through public
tender at the Suzhou Exchange Centre. On 10 August 2023, Golden
Lion (as purchaser) and Zhitai (as vendor) entered into an asset
transfer agreement pursuant to which Golden Lion has agreed to
acquire, and Zhitai has agreed to dispose of, 100% equity interest in
Sutong Kejia at the final bid price of RMB1. As Zhitai is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of SND Company, which is a controlling shareholder
of the Company, Zhitai is a connected person of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The proposed acquisition
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 26 July 2023 and 10 August
2023.

Runjia

On 26 July 2023, the Company submitted a bid for the proposed
acquisition of 100% equity interest in Runjia through public tender at
the Suzhou Exchange Centre. On 10 August 2023, Golden Lion (as
purchaser), entered into (i) an asset transfer agreement with Zhitai
pursuant to which Golden Lion has agreed to acquire, and Zhitai has
agreed to dispose of, 49% equity interest in Runjia at the
consideration of RMB2,053,500; and (i) an asset transfer agreement
with Suzhou Water Supply Co pursuant to which Golden Lion has
agreed to acquire, and Suzhou Water Supply Co has agreed to
dispose of, 51% equity interest in Runjia at the consideration of
RMB2,137,300, where (i) and (ii) totalled at the final bid price of
RMB4,190,800, which was determined with reference to the
valuation of the sale equity by an independent valuer as at 31
December 2022 based on the asset-based approach.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Zhitai is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SND Company, while Suzhou
Water Supply Co is owned as to 92.9% by SND Company and 7.1%
by SND Gaoxin Tech Industry Co., Ltd.* (Ex )N 7 [& = 37 i 72 2E %
3 B R A 7)), an A-share company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600736), which is owned as to approximately
43.79% by SND Company. SND Company is a controlling shareholder
of the Company, accordingly, each of the vendors is a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Runjia Acquisition constituted a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On 4 September 2023, upon completion of the Runjia Acquisition,
Runjia entered into a services procurement framework agreement
with Suzhou Water Supply Co, pursuant to which Runjia will provide
the (i) facility and water supply maintenance services; and (ii) water
plant sanitation, water purification and sludge drying services to
Suzhou Water Supply Co for a term commencing from the date
thereof to 31 December 2025.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
26 July 2023 and 10 August 2023.

Save as disclosed above, the Company did not have any other
significant investment or significant acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2023.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 27 April
2023, the Company intended to purchase an office building in Hong
Kong partly for own use and partly for leasing which served as the
Company'’s tangible platform in Hong Kong. The Company believed
that having a physical presence in Hong Kong would help strengthen
further in-depth cooperation with companies in Hong Kong, which is
in line the Company’s future development strategy to transform,
upgrade, expand and deepen its property leasing business in Hong
Kong. As at the date of this report, the Group is still identifying
suitable office building and no agreement has been entered into by
the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Company did
not have any future plans for material investments or additions of
capital assets.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

No event has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this report that may have a material impact on the
Group’s operating and financial performance that needs to be
disclosed.

PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company raised net proceeds from the Global Offering in the
amount of approximately HK$176.3 million (the “Net Proceeds”).
The Company intended to utilise the Net Proceeds according to the
plans set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” in the Company’s prospectus dated 10 August 2022, as
amended in the manner as disclosed in the UOP Announcement.
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An analysis of the utilization of the Net Proceeds as at 31 December

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENmE DN

2023 is set out below:

HE2023F12A318 " 185

RIEBREIIMT -

Unutilised Net

Utilised Unutilised ~ Proceeds after  Net Proceeds
Planned Unutilised ~ NetProceeds  Net Proceeds the revised utilised Unutilised
useof  NetProceeds hbefore change  before change allocation duringthe et Proceeds
Net Proceeds as of in use on in use on as stated year ended asof Expected
as set out in the 1 January 27 April 27 April intheUOP  31December 31 December time of
Prospectus 2023 2013 2023 Announcement 2023 2023 full utilisation
RABE RA3E frEHR

HEABE 4R27R 48278 REAE  REEBE BEABE

RRER 1818 RERRA  RERBA FIEHIE 12A318 128318

Proposed use of Net Proceeds fEfERE FBA 2EAN FBAN &MxBR  LEEBAN FBRFE BH2Y

feRRRERERE FERERE FRIARE  FERERE  FRMEER  FRRERR  FEREER HEFR BRAOEE

Major categories Sub-categories/Specific plans (HK$ millon) ~ (HKS million) (HKS milion) ~ (HKS milion) (HKS million) (HKS million) ~ (HKS million)

IERH FEH/ARiHE (R&%7) (BE%ET) (B®#%7n) (B&#T) (B&#%m) (BE#T) (B®#%T)

Acquisitions Acquisitions of other property management 529 529 286 50.04 50.04 571 4719 By 31 December 2024
companies and companies providing city WUENANET
services and property management services

L& WEEMNFERLNRRIETRER
NEERRHNAT

Acquisition of office building in Hong Kong for Nil Nil Nil il 529 0 52.9 By 31 December 2024
own use and leasing i i i & 204512 A31RFY
YEIERREENEERTE

Strategic Investments Investments in waste collection centers and 529 529 0 529 141 141 0 By 31 December 2024
companies providing operational and UENANET
management services to waste collection
centers

HERE RERIRSERDRASREERLRE
EERERRENAT

Expansion and diversification Establishment of the Group's own brand “Suxin 264 264 0 2647 2642 156 24.84 By 31 December 2024%

of value-added services Leju (B 5T )" and launch of apartment 451283187
management and operational services for
housing for talents
BRRYERERH BUAEERERAIGIEE]
RESA ABEERELRS
Investments in companies providing elderly care, 141 141 0 141 Nil Nil Nl /A
nursing and medical senices i Ed & TER
RERRHEE EEREARBHLA
Technological investment Investments in the Group’s Technologies and 71 71 069 641 641 6.114 0.99 By 31 December 2024

RifRE

Intelligent Operations
RENTEAMBIREHES

045 12A3185
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Unutilised Net

Utilised Unutilised ~ Proceeds after  Net Proceeds
Planned Unutilised ~ NetProceeds  Net Proceeds the revised utilised Unutilised
useof  NetProceeds hbefore change  before change allocation duringthe et Proceeds
Net Proceeds as of in use on inuse on as stated year ended asof Expected
as set out in the 1 January 27 April 27 April intheUOP  31December 31 December time of
Prospectus 2023 2013 2023 Announcement 2023 2023 full utilisation
RUBE RABE fiE%E
BEABE 45218 4278 BEAE  RBEABE BZAnE
RRER 1818 SERRA BERRE  FIIEHAR 128318 12A318
Proposed use of Net Proceeds fafERE FBA BEAN AEAN &MxBR  LEEBAN FBRfE BH2Y
fERRFERERE FEREERE FAEREFE  FENERE  FRNERE  FERERE  FERERE FEFE BANKE
Major categories Sub-categories/Specific plans (HKS millon) ~ (HKS million) (HKS milion) ~ (HKS milion) (HKS million) (HK$ million) (HKS million)
TZER TER/ARiE EE) (BE#T) (A& (BE#T) (R&AT) (BBET) (BE#T)
Talent Training and Retention 53 53 029 501 501 5.3% 0 By 31 December 2024
NERRSE WUF12A31RF
Working capital and other general 17.6 16.71 1429 331 331 16,714 0 By 31 December 2024
corporate purposes WUENANET
EEESRAM-ROERR
Total &3t 176.30 17541 1813 158.17 158.17 4949 1259
Notes: P&t
(1) The expected time of full utilisation of the Net Proceeds for the acquisition of (1) ZHEAWENHAALEENEESFTEMN
office building in Hong Kong for own use and leasing is postponed from 31 SHIEFENEHRERB2023F12A318E
December 2023 to 31 December 2024, as additional time is required by the BiZE2024F 128318 EHREEE (A B
Company to select the suitable property, taking into account (among other B EEM SRAEBERN (L ERE
things) the recent changes in the regulatory policies of the property market, KREEKTE ARAFEESRMERGE
which may have an impact on the investment costs. EokyE
(2)  According to the UOP Announcement, an amount of HK$5.7 million reserved ~ (2)  RIBEFISHIERZASE  BEARIMNIELR
for payment for “establishment of the Group’s own brand “Suxin Leju (%% MEENHFTLE I RBEREEATAZTER
£4/Z)" and launch of apartment management and operational services for MEBEERBGINFESTESETOBERESA
housing for talents” was classified as utilized Net Proceeds as the Group had FIERIEFE REASASERBEEBHZE
contractual payment obligation pursuant to the relevant agreement. However, BENNHREMT Al ZIHEBEELILE K
such agreement was terminated subsequently and the Group was released SENZENRETERR Bt ZAEHN
from such payment obligation. Accordingly, the utilized Net Proceeds in EERAMEREFEEAT mMARRZES
respect of such purpose should be nil and the unutilized Net Proceeds available BEERE RS RIEFREELMEREBAZR
for such allocation should increase from HK$20.7 million as disclosed in the EREN207EERTEMNEARARESIG
UOP Announcement to HK$26.4 million as re-stated in this report. 264BBETT -
(3)  According to the Prospectus, approximately HK$17.6 million of the Net ~ (3) REFBRER  HETIEUAEEBEHE M #

Proceeds allocated for the “establishment of the Group’s own brand “Suxin
Leju (B ¥T 24 fE)" and launch of apartment management and operational
services for housing for talents” should be utilised by 31 December 2023.
Since the Listing, the Company has been actively communicating with the
Housing and Construction Bureau of Suzhou Hi-Tech District (Hugiu District)
in relation to the launch of management and operation services for housing
for talent, and successfully entered into a government procurement contract

as at 1 January 2024. Therefore, the actual timeline of utilisation is delayed.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(4) The actual timeline of utilisation was expedited as compared to the timeline
set out in the Prospectus due to the rapid business expansion of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023, and as a result of which, the
Group's investments in technologies and intelligent operations, expenditure
in relation to talent recruitment and needs of working capital also increased.
All the Net Proceeds utilised were in accordance with the purposes set out in
the Prospectus.

As of 31 December 2023, the Directors are not aware of any material
change in the planned use of the Net Proceeds. The remaining Net
Proceeds which had not been utilized were placed in short-term
demand deposits with licensed financial institution. The unutilised Net
Proceeds and the above timeline of intended utilization will be applied
in the manners disclosed by the Company. However, the expected
timeline for the unutilised Net Proceeds is based on the Directors’ best
estimation barring unforeseen circumstances, and would be subject to
change based on the future development of the Group’s business and
the market conditions.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 1,647 full-time
employees in China (31 December 2022: 1,226). For the year ended
31 December 2023, the staff cost recognised as expenses of the
Group amounted to approximately RMB174.0 million (31 December
2022: approximately RMB161.3 million).

The Group believes that the expertise, experience and professional
development of its employees contributes to its growth. The Group
proactively recruits skilled and qualified personnel with relevant
working experience in property management to support the
sustainable growth of business. The remuneration package of
employees of the Group includes salary and bonus, which are
generally based on their qualifications, industry experience, position
and performance. In addition, the Group provides training programs
regularly and across management levels, in compatible with practical
needs, covering key areas in its business operations, including but not
limited to corporate culture and policies, technical knowledge
required for certain positions, leadership skills and general knowledge
about the nature of the Group’s services.

As of 31 December 2023, there was no share incentive schemes of
the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EZ ESkeAEEERERE

The biographical details of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company are listed below. As at the date of this
annual report, none of the following Directors, Supervisors or senior
management had any relationship with any other Directors,
Supervisors or senior management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Cui Xiaodong (&%), aged 45, was appointed as a Director
on 14 March 2018, chairman of the Board on 17 December 2020 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 16 April 2021. Mr. Cui is
primarily responsible for the overall operation and management of
the Group. Mr. Cui served as general manager of the Company from
October 2016 to September 2023. Mr. Cui has also served as assistant
to the general manager of SND Company since November 2020 and
was promoted to deputy general manager in April 2023, director of
Gaoxin Water since December 2020 and general manager of Gaoxin
Water from April 2020 to February 2023. Since April 2022, Mr. Cui
has successively served as a director and general manager of Suzhou
Gaoxin Talent Development Group Co., Ltd. (BRM @A ST ZHE £ E
EPRAA]), a subsidiary of SND Company.

Mr. Cui joined the Group in August 2004 and successively served as
manager of the marketing department, project manager and assistant
to the general manager at the Company from August 2004 to June
2013, where he was responsible for marketing and project
management. From June 2013 to November 2014, he served as
deputy general manager at Suzhou Xinjingtian, a real estate company,
where he was responsible for operations and management. From
November 2014 to October 2016, he rejoined the Company as branch
party secretary and deputy general manager.

Mr. Cui obtained his bachelor’s degree in tourism management from
the Suzhou Institute of Science and Technology (% M &l £ 26z ) in
the PRC in June 2002 and obtained his master’s degree in architecture
and civil engineering from the Suzhou University of Science and
Technology (& /NEHEZ K E) in the PRC in June 2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Cui was awarded as Pacemaker in the Property Management
Industry (¥D % AR757T 2 1Z &) by the Jiangsu Real Estate Association
(L8R & B E 2% <) in December 2011. He was elected as a
member of the Suzhou City Preliminary Property Management Bidding
and Bidding Evaluation Expert Committee (% /N 7 [ AT B 4 2 & 12 48
WIZFIZERZ B E) by the Suzhou Housing and Urban-Rural
Development Bureau (& N T 1% 5 FI4 #8 ZE :% ## 2 =) in December
2018 and a member of the Jiangsu Province Property Management
Expert (L& & WX B E R EMK 8) by the Jiangsu Real Estate
Association (T & & B HE %2 ) in August 2019. He was awarded
the 2020 China Property Service Brand Contributors (2020 7 [ 5 it
ERE SIS B A ) by CIA in September 2020. He obtained the
senior economist qualification issued by the Human Resources and
Social Security Department of Jiangsu Province (T & & A 17 &R M4t
E{RFEEE) in December 2020.

Mr. Zhou Jun (& E), aged 56, was appointed as deputy general
manager of the Company in September 2014 and an executive
Director on 16 April 2021. On 5 September 2023, Mr. Zhou was
appointed to carry out presiding work with authority equivalent to the
general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhou is primarily responsible
for the overall management of projects.

Mr. Zhou joined the Group in April 2003 and successively served as
project director, project manager and assistant to the general
manager at the Company from April 2003 to September 2014, where
he was responsible for project management.

Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor’s degree in hotel management from
Shanghai Institute of Tourism ( /8 iK% /25 BEHE24 ) in the PRC in
January 1991. He obtained the level one project manager certificate
(—#4 T8 B &L IE ) issued by the Suzhou Property Management
Association (&N T ¥ 3E 213 € ) in December 2008.

Ms. Zhou Lijuan (EE 1), aged 45, was appointed as deputy
general manager of Golden Lion in September 2019 and an executive
Director and the secretary of the Board on 16 April 2021. Ms. Zhou is
primarily responsible for the operations of Golden Lion and Board
matters of the Group.
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Ms. Zhou joined the Group in June 2005 and successively served as
back office staff, deputy director (&JE E) and director (E{E) at the
Company, manager of the general department (424 £B) and assistant
to general manager of Golden Lion and from June 2005 to September
2019, where she was responsible for the day-to-day operations of
property projects of the Company and general administration and

human resource affairs of Golden Lion.

Ms. Zhou obtained her bachelor’s degree in business management via
online education from Beihang University (1t S A 2= fii A A £2) in the
PRC in July 2016. Ms. Zhou obtained the assistant accountant
qualification issued by the Suzhou Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau (&£ T A 1B R ZRER) (formerly known as
Suzhou Personnel Bureau (&: N T A% /@) in May 2007, the certified
property manager qualification jointly issued by the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security of the PRC (FF#E AR ZLME A HE TR
Mt & {RFEEL) and Ministry of Housing and Urban-rural Development
of the PRC (FF 2 A R A 3 5 13 48 2 3% 3F) in January 2015
and the intermediate economist qualification issued by the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security of the PRC (FRZE A R HEFE A
& RFIE & RBEED) in November 2017.

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Li Xin (Z87), aged 41, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 15 June 2023. Ms. Li has over 18 years of experience in
finance and accounting. From 2005 to 2015, Ms. Li successively
served as an accountant, account manager, deputy general manager
of corporate banking department, manager, assistant to the president,
deputy manager of customer department and specialised approver of
the SME department in Hua Xia Bank, Suzhou Branch, Bank of East
Asia, Suzhou Branch, Bank of Jiangsu, Suzhou Branch and Hua Xia
Bank, New District Branch. From April 2015 to October 2018, she
served as the assistant director of the settlement center in Suzhou
New District Economy Development (Group) Corporation* (&&= %1
2 45 5 3 R 5= B 422 7)) (the former name of Suzhou Sugaoxin
Group Co., Ltd.*); from October 2018 to March 2022, she served as
the deputy director of the settlement center in Suzhou Sugaoxin
Group Co., Ltd.*; from October 2021 to May 2022, she served as the
financial controller | in Suzhou Gaoxin Real Estate Yangzhou Co. Ltd.*
(BN B BESEER AR, from October 2021 to May 2022, she
served as the financial controller | in Suzhou West Eco City
Development Co., Ltd.* (BRI E BB EHEHF R A F)); from
March 2022 to April 2023, she served as the deputy director of the
financial management department in Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co.,
Ltd.*; and since April 2023, she has been serving as the director of
the financial management department in Suzhou Sugaoxin Group
Co., Ltd.*.
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Ms. Li graduated from Soochow University in June 2005, majoring in
International Economics and Trade with a double bachelor’s degree in
economics and management. Ms. Li obtained the titles of Economist
and Certified Public Accountant in April 2017 and September 2017,
respectively.

Mr. Cao Bin (& #), aged 41, was appointed as a non-executive
Director on 15 June 2023. Mr. Cao has over 17 years of experience in
finance, investment management, and operational management.
From 2006 to 2021, Mr. Cao successively held various positions in
such fields as finance, internal control, and assistant to general
manager in multiple companies; from October 2020 to October 2021,
he served as the financial controller | in Sugaoxin Chengjian
Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.* (&= ¥ EEE R (F M) BBR A 7)),
and Suzhou Gaoxin Education Industry Development Suzhou Co.,
Ltd.* (Bk = 3T B E X EE (BIMN) R QF); from January 2021 to
October 2021, he served as the deputy director of the internal control
department in Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.*; from September
2021 to October 2021, he served as the financial controller | in
Suzhou Sugaoxin Commercial Development Co., Ltd.* (& /N &k =
7 2 5 & A BR A 7)); from October 2021 to March 2022, he served
as the deputy director of the investment management department in
Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.*; from March 2022 to April 2023,
he served as the deputy director of the operations management
department in Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.*; since April 2023,
he has been serving as the director of the operations management
department in Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.*; and since April
2022, he has also been serving as the secretary of the Second Branch
of the Party Committee of Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.*.

Mr. Cao received his bachelor’s degree in business administration
from Soochow University in June 2006. He obtained the titles of
Economist and Certified Public Accountant in January 2013 and
January 2015, respectively.
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Mr. Zhang Jun (3R ) (formerly known as & & I&), aged 38, was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 16 April 2021. Mr. Zhang is
primarily responsible for provision of guidance for the overall
development of the Group.

Mr. Zhang joined SND Company in July 2012 and has since held
various investment and strategy roles within the SND Company,
including general manager at SND Technology Industrial Development
(Liyang) Co., Ltd. (Bim MBI R EXBR(EH)ER A A), a
subsidiary of SND Company and deputy director (&l & {£) of the
strategic merchants department at SND Company. From January 2021
to March 2022, Mr. Zhang served as the deputy general manager of
Zhongshan Suxin Development Co., Ltd ($3 L ¥ E AR A A), a
subsidiary of SND Company, where he was responsible for presiding
over the work of the company. Mr. Zhang currently serves as the
deputy director of the investment management department at SND
Company, where he is primarily responsible for overseeing the daily
operations of the department.

Mr. Zhang obtained his master’s degree in economics with a major at
finance from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (5 F B 48
A KX 2) in the PRC in June 2012. Mr. Zhang obtained the
economist qualification issued by the Human Resources and Social
Security Department of Jiangsu Province GL& & A 11 &R Mt & (R
FERE) in February 2014,
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Zhou Yun (EE), aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 April 2021. Ms. Zhou is primarily
responsible for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

From September 1984 to February 1996, Ms. Zhou successively served
as teaching assistant and lecturer in the geography department of
Xinjiang Normal University (3752 A & K £). From March 1996 to
August 2001, Ms. Zhou served as deputy director and associate
professor in the urban management department of Suzhou Urban
Construction and Environmental Protection Institute (% M 4 i IR (R
EB7). Since September 2001, Ms. Zhou successively held numerous
roles at the Suzhou University of Science and Technology (&& /4
KE). From September 2001 to June 2006, she served as associate
professor at the management science and engineering department.
From July 2006 to July 2007, she served as deputy dean and party
branch secretary of the faculty of management. From August 2007 to
December 2012, she served as professor and party branch secretary
of the faculty of civil engineering. From January 2013 to May 2016,
she served as head of human affairs (A S &) and head of the office
of high level personnel (& X AA TYE#HAZ). From June 2016 to
September 2018, she served as head of the higher education research
institute (&2 32 FT). Since October 2018, she has been professor
of the faculty of civil engineering and head of the research institute

for real estate (5= E W FTAT).
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Ms. Zhou has been a member of the Second Suzhou Property
Management Tender Evaluation Panel (31T 28 —fE M EE BRI
IZFFZ B R JE) since October 2005, a committee member of the
Engineering Management Professional Committee (Ti2E 1 HEE
B @ % 8) of the Seventh Council of Jiangsu Civil Engineering and
Architectural Society (IT& & Lt AEEE S ELFE EF) since
October 2005, a committee member of the Engineering Management
Professional Committee of the Eighth Council of the Jiangsu Civil and
Architectural Society and the deputy head (Bl =T % 8) of the
Construction and Real Estate Economic Professional Committee (3228
HEMELEEEZ B E) of the Eighth Council of the Jiangsu Civil
and Architectural Society (T # & L AREZEESE\JEEEF) since
September 2009. Since January 2015, Ms. Zhou has been serving as
the deputy head of the Construction and Real Estate Economics
Professional Committee (LB EMELBEXLZEGRIFEEE)
of the Ninth Council of Jiangsu Civil and Architectural Society (T & &
Tt AREEEZSENFEIEESD). Since December 2018, Ms. Zhou has
been the deputy head (8| F £ Z &) of the Suzhou City Preliminary
Property Management Bidding and Bidding Evaluation Expert
Committee (M M@ AT M EEEEREFTEEREZEF). Ms.
Zhou served as a director (¥ 2 ) of the seventh council of the China
Architectural Society Economy Branch (F B2 £ B e @E AL EH @
-+ EIEE) and a committee member of the seventh Real Estate
Economy Professional Committee of China Architectural Society
Economy Branch (FEIZ B e RRALE S F LEFHLEZE
% B€) from March 2014 to 2018.

Ms. Zhou obtained her bachelor’'s degree in geography from China
Xinjiang University ({F B $738 X2 ) in the PRC in July 1984.
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Ms. Xin Zhu (3 k), aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 16 April 2021. Ms. Xin is primarily
responsible for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Ms. Xin has over 20 years of experience in the accounting industry as
well as executive management in public companies. From December
2002 to February 2005, Ms. Xin served as a financial director of
Shenzhen Kingway Brewery Holdings Limited (former Hong Kong
stock code: 0124), a subsidiary of Guangdong Holdings Limited (&5
54 &), where she was responsible for the financial management.
From February 2005 to December 2005, Ms. Xin served as a deputy
general manager of finance department of Guangdong Holdings
Limited (B

of Guangdong Province, where she was responsible for the financial

B55E), a state-owned enterprise of the Government

management of the group. From April 2006 to July 2008, she worked
in Hopson Development Holdings Limited (& £ 8IBEE B R F]) (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
754), a property developer, where she last served as a group
accounting controller, and was primarily responsible for financial
management. From July 2008 to June 2014, she worked in China
Aoyuan Group Limited (7 B 2 [ & & % {7 B R 2 7]) (previously
known as China Aoyuan Property Group Limited (7 Bl &2 (& £ £ &
i tn B R 2 A
Exchange, stock code: 3883), a property developer, with her last
concurrent positions held as an executive director and executive vice

)), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock

president, and was primarily responsible for financial management.
She was also involved in review, discussion and decisions making of
land acquisition when she worked at China Aoyuan Group Limited.
From July 2014 to March 2015, she served as the chief financial
officer of Logan Property Holdings Company Limited (5 Y i 2= 2 i%
B R A d]) (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 3380). From June 2018 to February 2024, Ms.
Xin served as an independent non-executive director of CanSino
Biologics Inc. (FE#& s EW IR DA 8]
Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 6185), a company engaging

) (@ company listed on the Main

in the development, manufacturing and sales of vaccines.
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Since April 2020, she has been an independent non-executive director
of Central China New Life Limited (X ¥4 EER Q7)) (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
9983), a property management service provider. Since November
2020, she has been an independent non-executive director of Datang
Group Holdings Limited (RESEZER B R A F]) (@ company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2117), a real
estate company.

Ms. Xin obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Renmin
University of China (FF B A R KZ) in the PRC in July 1990 and a
master’s degree in business administration from Auckland Institute of
Studies in New Zealand in December 1999. Ms. Xin became a
member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountant of the
PRC in January 1996 and a member of the CPA Australia in January
2010.

Mr. Liu Xin (£I87), aged 54, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 16 April 2021. Ms. Liu is primarily responsible
for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Liu has served successively as an associate professor, professor
and a doctoral supervisor of the School of Public Administration and
Policy in Renmin University of China (FFE] A R KB R HE 12 EPR)
since February 2001. He is also a researcher at the National Academy
of Development and Strategy in Renmin University of China (9B A
RAEBEZRERE LB ITFT) in the PRC. He has been teaching in
Renmin University of China since 1997 and served successively as a
lecturer and an associate professor of the School of Labor and Human
Resources from June 1997 to February 2001. From August 1998 to
July 1999, Mr. Liu served as a visiting scholar at Ghent University in
Belgium. From August 2009 to July 2010, Mr. Liu served as a senior
visiting scholar of the Fulbright Program at Harvard University in the
United States. From September 2011 to December 2011, Mr. Liu
served as a visiting professor of Gerald R. Ford School of Public Policy,
University of Michigan in the United States. From May 2003 to
October 2013, he served as a chief expert and senior partner of
Beijing Boom HR Consulting Co., Ltd (It RIE B bEEEEMBR A
A]) and participated in the management and operation of the
company.
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From December 2017 to September 2021, Mr. Liu served as an
independent non-executive director of Beijing Capital Land Ltd. ( & £
EERH AR AR, a company previously listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2868) and subsequently privatized
on 30 September 2021. From August 2019 to April 2023, he served
as an independent non-executive director of Sinic Holdings (Group)
Company Limited (7 /715 % (5B ) B BR A ), a company previously
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2103)
and subsequently delisted on 13 April 2023. Since August 2020, Mr.
Liu has been serving as an independent non-executive director of
Beijing Yangde Environmental Energy Technology Co., Ltd. (1t 5=
RIREEBRIF D AR A F]), a company listed on the Beijing Stock
Exchange (stock code: 833755).

Mr. Liu obtained a bachelor’'s degree, a master’'s degree and a
doctorate degree in Labor Economics from the Renmin University of
China in the PRC in July 1991, June 1994 and June 1997, respectively.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Zhang Wei (R {&), aged 36, was appointed as a supervisor on
15 June 2023, mainly responsible for supervising the Board of
Directors and senior management of the Company. Mr. Zhang has
over 10 years of experience in finance and internal control. From 2013
to 2021, Mr. Zhang successively held various positions in such fields
as internal control, internal audit, and finance in multiple companies;
from October 2021 to March 2022, he served as the financial
controller Il in Sugaoxin Chengjian Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.*
(BRm ¥ 2 E(FM)B R 2 a)); from October 2021 to April
2022, he served as the financial controller Il in each of Suzhou Gaoxin
Education Industry Development Suzhou Co., Ltd.*, Suzhou Shishan
Plaza Development Co., Ltd.* (RN L EHZERE B R A A)) and
Suzhou Sugaoxin Commercial Development Co., Ltd.*, and also acted
as the assistant director of Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.*; and
since April 2022, he has been serving as the deputy director of the
internal control department in Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.*.

Mr. Zhang received his bachelor’s degree in E-commerce and master’s
degree in management from Nanjing University in June 2010 and
June 2013, respectively. Mr. Zhang obtained the titles of Economist
and Certified Public Accountant in January 2015 and February 2017,
respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EE EENSAEEERE

Mr. Tang Bo (& ), aged 39, has over 14 years of experience in
financial and investment management. From 2011 to 2018, Mr. Tang
successively held various positions in such fields as finance and
investment management in multiple companies; from March 2016 to
December 2018, he served as the deputy section chief of the finance
budget and settlement section of the investment management
department in Suzhou New District Economy Development (Group)
Corporation* (the former name of Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co.,
Ltd.*); from December 2018 to January 2020, he served as the section
chief of the project management section of the investment
management department in Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.*; from
January 2020 to March 2021, he served as the section chief of the
risk control section of the internal control department in Suzhou
Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.*; from March 2021 to March 2022, he
served as the assistant director of the investment management
department in Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.*; from March 2021
to August 2022, he served as the assistant director of the internal
control department in Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.*; and since
August 2022, he has been serving as the deputy director of the
Discipline Inspection Office (Supervision Office) in Suzhou Sugaoxin
Group Co., Ltd.*.

Mr. Tang received his bachelor’s degree in engineering management
from School of Civil and Hydraulic Engineering, Dalian University of
Technology in July 2008 and his master’s degree in civil engineering
construction and management from Southeast University in March
2011. Mr. Tang obtained the title of Senior Engineer in September
2019.

Ms. Hu Yuanling (#3& %), aged 31, was appointed as the deputy
manager (presiding) of the planned finance department of the
Company in April 2023. Ms. Hu joined the Company in July 2017 and
served as an accountant and assistant manager of the Company’s
planned finance department during the period from July 2017 to
March 2023 respectively.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Hu was an accounting officer for
the finance department of China Nuclear Industry Fifth Construction
Co. Ltd.* (PRI T ¥ E AEFK B R A A]) during the period from
August 2015 to May 2017.

Ms. Hu obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial management from
North Minzu University in July 2015.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EX ESKkeREEERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Jinrong (R & %8), aged 54, was appointed as deputy
branch secretary, deputy general manager and chairman of the labor
union of the Company in May 2017. Mr. Wu is primarily responsible
for party affairs, safety management and the labor union.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wu successively served as
technician, deputy operations director, deputy director (&l = {T) for
mining operations, director of the chief engineering office and deputy
chief engineer at Suzhou Xiaomaoshan Copper-Lead-Zinc Mine ( &k )1l
/NS L B 85 82 F2), a subsidiary of SND Company from August
1994 to March 2003. From March 2003 to May 2017, Mr. Wu
successively served as assistant to the mine manager and deputy mine
manager, where he was responsible for the production management
and safety technology of the mine.

Mr. Wu joined the Company in May 2017 as deputy branch secretary,
deputy general manager and chairman of the labor union at the
Company where he is responsible for party affairs, safety
management and labor union in the Company.

Mr. Wu obtained his bachelor’s degree in mining engineering from
Jiangxi University of Science and Technology LA T A2) (formerly
known as Southern Institute of Metallurgy (776 & £ %)) in the
PRC in July 1994. He obtained the senior engineer qualification issued
by the Jiangsu Province Human Resources and Social Security Bureau
(IE#E ANBRMEESRERE) formerly known as the Jiangsu
Province Personnel Department (;T # & A 2 E&)) in November 2006.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Ms. Xie Xiaoning (#% B ), aged 45, was appointed as finance
director of the Company in December 2019. Ms. Xie is primarily
responsible for financial, asset and internal control management.

Ms. Xie has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Xie successively served
as accountant, deputy manager and manager of the finance
department in Suzhou National Environmental High Tech Industrial
Park Development Co., Ltd (BRMBIKIRRE XM EXEZERER
A A]), a subsidiary of SND Company, from January 2003 to March
2014. From March 2014 to December 2019, Ms. Xie served as finance
director at Suzhou SND Technology Industry Development Co., Ltd.
(BRI B = T RHR E 2 B R B PR A 7)), a subsidiary of SND Company.
From April 2014 to January 2017, Ms. Xie served as finance director
at Suzhou Xiaomaoshan Copper-Lead-Zinc Mine (&M /)N 3 1L 87§
$¥7%), a subsidiary of SND Company. Ms. Xie joined the Company in
December 2019 as finance director of the Company.

Ms. Xie obtained her bachelor’s degree in accounting from Northeast
Forestry University (SRIE#R2E K 2) in the PRC in July 2001,

Mr. Wang Xinfeng (E %7 #), aged 46, was appointed as deputy
general manager of the Company in August 2021. Mr. Wang is
primarily responsible for project management and operations.

Mr. Wang joined the Company in June 2002 and successively served
as administrator, deputy director (& = 1F), director (F E), project
manager and assistant to the general manager at the Company from
June 2002 to August 2021, where he was responsible for project
management.

Mr. Wang obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration
management from Beijing Foreign Language University (1t 5= 4NE0 &
K& in July 2016 via online education. Mr. Wang obtained the level
two project manager certificate (Z#%18 B & IE &) issued by Suzhou
Property Management Association (3R /M T X EEH &) in
December 2008, the certified property manager qualification (1% &
2R ) issued by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
of the PRC (A 2 A R 2L FN B {F 5= 5k 4822 3%5F ) in November 2013,
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EE EEkeEEEREE

Ms. Hong Lijuan (G %8), aged 40, was appointed as the deputy
general manager of the Company in April 2022. Ms. Hong has served
as the assistant to the general manager of the Company from
November 2019 to April 2022. Ms. Hong is primarily responsible for
project and human resources management.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Hong worked at Suzhou Japan-
China Bridge Economic Development Co., Ltd* (%M B & 2248 & 7%
R AR A A]) from 2006 to May 2010. She served as assistant to
the general manager at Jiangsu Zhongke Times Electric Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.* QL& B B RRERH B R 2 F]) from July 2010 to
March 2011. Ms. Hong joined the Company in December 2014. From
December 2014 to October 2019, she successively served as deputy
manager and manager of the marketing department at the Company.

Ms. Hong obtained her bachelor’s degree in law from Suzhou
University in the PRC in June 2005.

Mr. Jin Xin (£ ), aged 41, was appointed as the assistant to the
general manager of the Company in November 2022. Mr. Jin is
primarily responsible for business expansion, sales and operation.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Jin worked for Suzhou Taihu
Wetland World Tourism Development Co., Ltd.* (& /M A 82 bt 57
i 5 % R B R A 7)) from December 2009 to December 2017,
Suzhou Shishan Plaza Development Co., Ltd.* (ZR/NEHILE S EEAR
FR A2 &]) from January 2018 to July 2019, Sugaoxin Education Industry
Development Suzhou Co., Ltd.* (Bfm ST B EXEE R (HM)BR A
A]) from August 2019 to September 2021, Suzhou Sugaoxin
Commercial Development Co., Ltd.* (BxM &xm ¥ EEEGR A a))
from September 2021 to September 2022, Sugaoxin Education
Industry Development Suzhou Co., Ltd.* (Ef= ¥# 5 E X R (1)
B R A R]) from March 2022 to November 2022, respectively.

Mr. Jin obtained a bachelor’s degree of public affairs management
from the Southwest University of Science and Technology in January
2017.

HMEEZ T 4058 M2022F4REZER
RAFIBEIBEE - LT H2019F11AE
202F 4B EEARRRBAIRENIE - iz £
FEAEBEEMANERER -

RIMAZRR A - 82006 F 20105 A4 -
HEZTHEHMNBPREBREEERERART
E° 820107 AE2011FE3 A8 » HIEEL
HPRERERZERNOBRARBLIEL
B ot ER2014F 12 AMAKRRDA - B
2014F 12 AE2019F 108 - BEEBEAER
NAEITIG A R4S I8 R 4638 -

H 12005 F 6 A S BE N KEERZ
HEEXSLBT-

EEELE M5 N20202F 11 BEZEEAR
NEEKIEBNIE - @A ETEEEERERE
HENIBE o

RAMAA R F A B2009F 12 8 E2017F
12 A & ETEEHMN ARt FIR 57 3 R
BRAFT ILIE-B20185F1 A E201957
A e&fErEHMNBLESERERARFT
fE- B2019FE8 A E2021F9A &4 i
BRI REEXER (BN BRARIE-
H2021F9AE20229 98 &R EEFI
BamERREMRAAIIIE H20224F3
RE202F 11 A @G #HaTHBEESR
BRE (BN BRARIIE-

SREN2017F1 AESREMRAERHK
EXEEAMEE -

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BN EFEEREROBRLB/ S _=FFR



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. Liu Chun (%1#), aged 44, was appointed as the assistant to
general manager of the Company in April 2022. Mr. Liu is primarily
responsible for the project management and operations.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Liu worked at Suzhou Dongshan
Hotel Co., Ltd. (&M R L EEEREE A A]) from January 2001 to
May 2005. From June 2005 to September 2015, Mr. Liu worked at
Suzhou Tianxiang Property Management Co., Ltd. (ER /I K%
EBERAA).

Mr. Liu obtained a diploma in business management from Jiangnan
University (VT # A £2) in the PRC in January 2015. He also obtained
the certified property manager qualification issued by the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC (£ A R L
{355 R 4632 3% 5F) in February 2014.

For the biographical details of Mr. Cui Xiaodong and Mr. Zhou Jun,
please refer to “Board of Directors — Executive Directors” in this
section.

Ms. Yuan Hongjuan (R AL %), aged 41, was appointed as the
assistant to general manager of the Company in October 2023. Ms.
Yuan is primarily responsible for the project management and
operations.

Ms. Yuan joined the Company in November 2006. From November
2006 to October 2023, she successively served as management staff,
project director , manager of the management department and
manager of the operations department at the Company. Ms. Yuan
was appointed as a Supervisor of the Company from 16 April 2021 to

20 October 2023.

Ms. Yuan obtained her diploma (self-study module) of human
resource management from Nanjing University (7 5 A2 ) in the PRC
in June 2016.

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BHMEFEERBROBRAR/ T -_=FFR

B FLE 45T M2022F48EZE AN
NAEKEERIE - B AT EAEHEEE
KB -

RAMAZA ARG R - B20014F 17 ZE200545
A BEErEHMNBRLEEERETARL
fE° B20056 A E2015498 » Bl A&
BN RAMESREBR AT IE-

B ER2015F 1 ABBHRREIMASIY
BIBOR - MR 20142 ARBHEAR
HMBEFEFIW PRSI BEENTMDEE
BRIE o

EHERIALEREERENRE  F2H
AHIEFEE —ATESF] -

RABLZL 415 M2023F 10 AEEZTA
VNN %@?%i%ﬁjji% cRZTFBAETHEE
38 N &

R ER2006F 11 AMMAKRRR - B2006

F11AE2023F 108  BABETARAD A
MEBEAE EHELPE ERIPLEBENREE

EBARIE - R TR 2021 4 A16 HE 20234

108208 ELZTARARIES -

REZTR2016F6 ABBSHFEERAEAN
BEREEUR(BERE) -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EX ESKkeREEERE

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Zhao Yu (), aged 36, was appointed as the joint company
secretary of the Company on 28 August 2023.

Mr. Zhao joined the Company in January 2023. He served as the
supervisor of the general management department of the Company
during January to June 2023, and has been the supervisor of the
human resources department of the Company during June 2023 to
February 2024, responsibilities of which include copywriting,
information disclosure, investor relations of the Company.

Prior to joining the Company, from May 2014 to January 2023, Mr.
Zhao worked at Suzhou High Tech Zone Human Resources
Development Co., Ltd.* (&M S #HE A D ERFAEZEER A A,
which has been merged into Suzhou Sugaoxin Group Co., Ltd.* (&k
MEk = ¥ E B HF R A F), the controlling shareholder of the
Company, since 2021.

Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s degree in international business
administration from the Middlesex University in the United Kingdom
in September 2011.

Mr. Cheng Ching Kit (E8724t), aged 36, was appointed as the joint
company secretary of the Company on 10 June 2021. Mr. Cheng is
an assistant vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong
Kong) Limited, a professional service provider specializing in corporate
services. He has over 10 years of experience in the field of corporate
secretarial matters.

Mr. Cheng holds bachelor of commerce degree in finance from the
University of Queensland in Australia and a Master of Laws degree in
Chinese law from the University of Hong Kong. He has been an
associate member of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United
Kingdom since June 2018.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

GCREAHE

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE STRATEGY, BUSINESS MODEL AND
CULTURE

With the brand concept “your satisfaction, our priority”, we are
dedicated to building the best possible living experience for our
customers. Our focus on city environment and citizen wellbeing and
commitment to customer satisfaction have shaped our brand image.
Our customer-centric culture has guided us to forge ahead and
explore new ways to better serve our customers.

Details of the corporate strategy, business model and culture of the
Group are set out in the sections headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report, as well as the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company aims to achieve high standards of corporate governance
which are crucial to the development of the Group and would
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders. As of 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this report, the Company has applied the
principles of good corporate governance and complied with the code
provisions set out in Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code in
force, save for the deviation from code provisions B.2.2 and C.2.1 as
disclosed below:

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company
have not been separated as required by code provision C.2.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code. The roles of the chairman and general
manager of the Company are both performed by Mr. Cui Xiaodong,
an executive Director. The Board believes that vesting the roles of
both chairman and general manager in the same individual enables
the Company to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and
effectiveness when formulating business strategies and executing
business plans. Furthermore, in view of Mr. Cui Xiaodong's extensive
industrial experience and significant role in the historical development
of the Group, the Board believes that it is beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group that Mr. Cui Xiaodong continues to act as the
chairman and general manager of the Group, and that the balance of
power and authority is sufficiently maintained by the operation of the
Board, comprising the executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Cui Xiaodong has resigned as the general manager of the
Company with effect from 5 September 2023 due to work
arrangements. Mr. Zhou Jun, an executive Director and the deputy
general manager of the Company, has been appointed to carry out
presiding work with authority equivalent to the general manager of
the Company with effect from 5 September 2023.

Since then, the Company has complied with code provision C.2.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

According to the code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 2
April 2024, the term of the first session of the Board and the
Supervisory Committee of the Company expired on 15 April 2024. As
the election of the new session of the Board and the Supervisory
Committee is still in preparation, in order to ensure the continuity of
the relevant work of the Company, the election of the new session of
the Board and the Supervisory Committee has been postponed
accordingly. As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
9 April 2024, the Company has completed the nomination of director
candidates for the second session of the Board and supervisor
candidates for the second session of the Supervisory Committee, and
announced the list of director candidates for the second session of
the Board and shareholder representative supervisor candidates for
the second session of the Supervisory Committee. The list of
candidates will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company for 2023 for consideration and approval by the shareholders
of the Company. The term of the directors of the first session of the
Board and the term of the supervisors of the first session of the
Supervisory Committee will be extended till the election of the second
session of the Board and the Supervisory Committee at the annual
general meeting of the Company for 2023 and the official date of
term of office, and the term of each special committee of the Board
and the Supervisory Committee will be extended correspondingly.
Prior to the completion of the election of the new session, all the
members of first session of the Board and the Supervisory Committee
will continue to perform their respective duties in accordance with
applicable laws and regulations and the relevant requirements of the
Articles of Association. The postponed election of the new session of
the Board and the Supervisory Committee of the Company will not
affect the normal operation of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE
COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR BTESENEZTETESFRS
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS rIZAESF B

AND SUPERVISORS

ZAN/N 7E%WHE#W¢E§$&W$ 17
BEHERHMITAFA -

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct for dealings in the securities of the Company by the Directors AN
and Supervisors.

KRB EEREEELARBRENRE  #F
CEE2023F12A31BIEFE—&
BTEREANEZESR -

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the
Supervisors and they have confirmed that they have complied with 2 &R
the then applicable Model Code during the year ended 31 December

2023.
BOARD OF DIRECTORS EA
Board Composition EEgHEK

BEAFHEY EFehMNREFTAEAN
BR=ZF2HNTEFE ZBIFATEEFR=F
BUFATES - EFEMARBRAT ¢

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
Directors with three executive Directors, three non-executive Directors,
and three independent non-executive Directors. The composition of
the Board is set forth below:

Executive Directors BITEE

Mr. Cui Xiaodong (Chairman) EBRLEE (EFR)
Mr. Zhou Jun (Deputy General Manager) BB A& (FIABACHE)
Ms. Zhou Lijuan St
Non-executive Directors FHITES

Ms. Li Xin P RE

Mr. Cao Bin B &

Mr. Zhang Jun RIE A
Independent Non-executive Directors BYHHTES
Ms. Zhou Yun BAEZ L

Ms. Xin Zhu FIRL+

Mr. Liu Xin 2laT k4

SEENEABEENHIINAFRNES
EFELaMERERE) & SEFEKE
HHEMEE EENSRERABZHEYOE
TR BRMH X% KBIEME

Personal particulars of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. No relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s))

64

exist between any member of the Board and other directors,
supervisors, and senior management.
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The Role of the Board and the Management

The Board shall be accountable to the Shareholders’ general meeting
and responsible for the management and conduct of the Group’s
business. The duties of Board include but not limited to convene
Shareholders’ general meeting and report its work to such meeting;
implement the resolutions of a general meeting; decide on the
Group’s business plans and investment plans and formulate the
annual financial budgets and final accounts of the Company; prepare
the profit distribution plan and plan for recovery of losses; decide on
the establishment of the internal management structure of the
Company; appoint or remove the senior management officers and
decide on their remunerations; establish a basic management system
of the Company; and exercise other duties and powers specified in
relevant laws, regulations, and the Articles of Association.

Matters relating to the daily operations and management of the
businesses of the Group shall be handled by the management
authorized by the Board. The Board provides clear guidelines on the
management authority of the management team and what the
management team should report, and regularly reviews the
authorized functions, rights and tasks to ensure that they remain
applicable.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors play an essential role in the
Board through their independent professional judgment, and their
views play an important role in the decisions of the Board. Their
extensive experience has contributed significantly to enhancing the
decision-making capability of the Board and achieving a sustainable
and balanced development of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has complied
with the requirements of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules (which
specified that an issuer must appoint independent non-executive
directors representing at least one-third of the board), and the
requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules (which
specify that every board of directors shall include at least three
independent non-executive directors, and at least one of the
independent non-executive directors must have appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise).
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The Company has received annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his independence. The
Company confirms it considers all the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent with reference to the factors set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board has also established mechanisms to ensure independent
views are available to the Board, including providing the Directors
with sufficient resources to perform its duties and shall seek, at the
Company’s expense, independent professional advice to perform its
responsibilities if necessary.

The Board shall at all times comprise at least three independent non-
executive Directors that represent at least one-third of the Board, such
that there is always a strong element of independence on the Board
which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

All the Directors, including the independent non-executive Directors,
are given equal opportunity and channels to communicate and
express their views to the Board and have separate and independent
access to the management of the Group in order to make informed
decisions. The chairman of the Board will hold meetings with the
independent non-executive Directors without the involvement of
other Directors at least annually to discuss any issues and concerns.

Any Director or his/her associate who has a conflict of interest in a
matter to be considered by the Board will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than by written resolutions. Such Director will
be required to declare his/her interests before the meeting and abstain
from voting and not counted towards the quorum on the relevant
resolutions. Independent non-executive Directors who, and whose
associates, have no interest in the matter should attend the Board
meeting.

The Board has reviewed and considered that the mechanisms are
effective in ensuring that independent views and input are provided
to the Board during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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Term of Appointment of Directors

Code provision B.2.2 of the Corporate Governance Code provides
that every Director, including those appointed for a specific term, shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
The term of office of each Director shall be three years. Upon maturity
of the term of office, Directors shall be eligible to offer himself/herself
for re-election and re-appointment in accordance with the provisions
of the Articles of Association but the independent non-executive
Directors should not hold office for more than nine consecutive years
except for the other requirements of relevant law and regulations.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Directors should participate in appropriate continuing professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged training for its Directors and provided them
with reading material on relevant topics. Every newly appointed
Director shall receive a formal and comprehensive induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company. In
addition, all Directors have received formal and comprehensive
training regarding their responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant laws. All Directors have been trained in
respect of the duties and responsibilities of Directors, the relevant
laws and regulations applicable to Directors and the duty of disclosure
of interests, and have read materials relevant to the Company’s
business or the Directors’ functions and powers.

On 25 August 2023, Ms. Li Xin and Mr. Cao Bin obtained legal advice
in relation to the requirements under the Listing Rules that are
applicable to them as Directors and confirmed that they understood
their obligations as Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all the Directors namely,
Mr. Cui Xiaodong, Mr. Zhou Jun, Ms. Zhou Lijuan, Ms. Li Xin, Mr. Cao
Bin, Mr. Zhang Jun, Ms. Zhou Yun, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Liu Xin have
complied with code provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance
Code and participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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Training received by Directors for the year ended 31 December 2023
are as follows:

HE2023F1NA3MBHIEFE EFESH
FIE R

Types of training Note
3| R e

Directors 2=

Mr. Cui Xiaodong ERLLE

Mr. Zhou Jun BELE

Ms. Zhou Lijuan AEBLL

Ms. Li Xin Lt

Mr. Cao Bin ELi 2k

Mr. Zhang Jun RERAE

Ms. Zhou Yun BELL

Ms. Xin Zhu FHEL

Mr. Liu Xin ik

Notes: Types of training

A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars
and conferences.

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant

publications.
BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance the Listing Rules. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee are to (i) review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the Group, risk
management and internal audit; and (i) provide advice and comments
to the Board and perform other duties and responsibilities as may be
assigned by the Board.

As at 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee consists of one non-
executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Li Xin, Ms. Xin Zhu and Mr. Liu Xin. The chairlady of the
Audit Committee is Ms. Xin Zhu, who is an independent non-
executive Director and has been a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountant of the PRC in February 1996 and a
member of the CPA Australia in January 2010.
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee held
two meeting to review the audited annual condensed consolidated
financial information of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
information of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2023,
and discussed matters with respect to the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Company and the internal control and risk
management systems and the internal audit function.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) establish,
review and provide advices to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure concerning remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policies concerning such remuneration; (ii)
determine the terms of the specific remuneration package of each
executive Director and senior management; (iii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Directors from time to time; and (iv) to
review and/or approve matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, if any.

As at 31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee consists of
one non-executive Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Cao Bin, Ms. Zhou Yun and Mr. Liu Xin. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. Liu Xin.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to review the remuneration policy and
structure of the Company and to determine the terms of the specific
remuneration package of each newly appointed Director.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes to the composition of the Board; (i) identify, select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship, and ensure the diversity of the Board
members; (iii) assess the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and (iv) make recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment, reappointment and
removal of the Directors and succession planning for the Directors.

As at 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee consists of one
non-executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Zhang Jun, Ms. Zhou Yun and Mr. Liu Xin. The chairlady
of the Nomination Committee is Ms. Zhou Yun.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the structure and composition
of the Board and the Board committees and the diversity of the Board
members in accordance with the board diversity policy of the
Company, considered the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, and recommended the re-election of the retiring
Directors and the appointment of new Directors.
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GENERAL MEETINGS, BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND THE BOARD COMMITTEES" MEETINGS
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During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board held fourteen # Z=2023F 12 A31HLtFE  EF & 8217
meetings. The following table sets out the attendance of each T 14X @ - NEAHIZEENEHE20234F
Director at the meetings of the Board, Board committees and general 12 A31B It EEXFEEe g3 EE%L8
meetings during the year ended 31 December 2023: eERRRERENER

Number of attendance/Number of meetings held

HERE ERETRY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Board Committee Committee Committee meetings
Name of Director EEfE EX® ERZEE® ¥FHzZEg REZEY BREAE
Mr. Cui Xiaodong ERLLE 1414 - - - 313
Mr. Zhou Jun AELE 1414 - - - 33
Ms. Zhou Lijuan ABBzt 1414 - - - 33
Ms. Li Xin® il 717 11 - - 22
Mr. Cao Bin® EWEED 717 - - - 212
Mr. Zhang Jun REFE 717 - - 11 33
Ms. Zhou Yun BEZ+ 1414 - n il 33
Ms. Xin Zhu FHat 14114 212 - - 313
Mr. Liu Xin ZeT L& 1414 212 171 11 33
Mr. Cai Jinchun @ BEBELED 717 11 - - il
Mr. Tang Chunshan @ EELTED 717 - il - 171

Notes P 5

(1) Ms. Li Xin and Mr. Cao Bin were appointed as non-executive Directors on 15 (1)  ZBZ+ M EW R ER2023F6 15 HEZ T
June 2023. RIFNTEE -

() Mr. Cai Jinchun and Mr. Tang Chunshan resigned as non-executive Directors  (2) BEERENEFELILER2023F6 A15BHEF
on 15 June 2023, EFEHMITES -
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee identifies suitably qualified individuals

and makes recommendations to the Board for nomination as Directors

to ensure that the members of the Board have the skills, experience,

and multiple perspectives necessary to meet the business needs of the

Company. The Nomination Committee will evaluate candidates based

on the Company’s business model and specific needs with reference

to the following factors, including but not limited to the provisions of

the Articles of Association, skills, experience and expertise, diversity,

commitment, status, and independence.

The procedure for nominating Directors of the Company is as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

To make nominations, the chairman of the Nomination
Committee shall convene the Nomination Committee meeting
and invite nominations from the Board members, if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to the
meeting. The Nomination Committee may nominate candidates
without nomination from the Board members.

The Nomination Committee conducts preliminary review on the
qualifications and background of the candidates for Directors
and submits qualified candidates to the Board for consideration;
after consideration and approval by the Board, the candidates
for Directors are submitted to the general meeting in the form
of written proposal; the Nomination Committee or other
organizations authorized by the Board are responsible for
specific matters on the election of Directors.

In order to provide information on the candidates nominated by
the Board for election at the general meeting and to invite
Shareholders to provide nominations, the Company will issue a
circular to the Shareholders, setting out the information on the
candidates to the Shareholders in accordance with the
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Until such time as a circular to the Shareholders is issued, a
nominee may not assume that he/she has been recommended
by the Board for election at the general meeting.
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The proposal of the Nomination Committee shall be submitted
to the Board for consideration and approval. After the
nomination of the candidates for Directors has been considered
and approved by the Board, it shall be submitted to the
Shareholders’ general meeting for approval.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Ms. Li Xin and Mr. Cao
Bin were nominated as Directors in accordance with such nomination

policy. Their appointments were made on a merit basis, which had

taken into account the following selection criteria in assessing their

suitability as Directors:

integrity;

the diversity of the Board in various aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural, educational and professional
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skill, knowledge
and length of service;

time available, interests in other parties and concerns about the
Company'’s business;

accomplishment, experience and reputation in relation to the
business of the Company and other relevant industries;

potential contributions to the Board; and

any other relevant factors determined by the committee or the
Board from time to time.
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DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company has put in place a Directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration policy to determine the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management. The objective of remunerating the
Directors and senior management is to ensure that there is an
appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain experienced
people of high calibre to oversee the Group’s business and
development.

The remuneration of Directors and senior management is determined
with reference to the skills and knowledge of the Directors and senior
management, their job responsibilities and level of involvement in the
Group's affairs, the performance and profitability as well as
remuneration benchmark in the industry and the prevailing market
conditions. Remuneration comprise basic salaries, allowances,
performance related bonuses and contributions to a pension scheme.

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, the Supervisors and chief
executive and the respective remuneration of the five highest paid
individuals for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note
8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements. None of the
Directors and the Supervisors had waived or agreed to waive the
receipt of any emoluments during the year ended 31 December 2023.

The remuneration payable to members of senior management by
band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set out below:

MEER (AR

Remuneration level (RMB)

B =R E EE 8 H B

BUR

ARAEHIEEERSREREHFBOR -
NEFTEEREREBBNFMNSE -ME
ERERE BRI E AR F
BE EABRSIRBRESERELRATE
BARBEXEBRER -

EXLRAEEBYHNIK2EEETRER
EEENRELANEZ RENTIERERS
EAEEER XENRBAENNEE LR
TEFWHELERBITTREMETE - HME
BREXHS 2R BERBAEENILANER
IRETBIHEER -

= AE A B O Hr A

HE2023F12A3MALFE E= ESF
REBETBRABNFMERAUSERFMAL
WEBHFHFBEI NG BEmRRMTR
9 HE2023F 12A3MHLFE WEES
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Number of persons

AE

500,001-1,000,000
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diversed Board and sees
increasing diversity at Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and sustainable
development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited to
talents, skills, gender, age, ethnicity, experience, independence and
knowledge.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including
overall management and strategic development, human resources,
accounting and financial management, and corporate governance.
They obtained degrees in various majors including accounting,
marketing, financial management, business administration and law.
The Company has three independent non-executive Directors with
different industry backgrounds, representing a third of the members
of the Board. Taking into account the Group's existing business model
and specific needs as well as the different background of the
Directors, the composition of the Board satisfies the board diversity
policy of the Company.

With regards to gender diversity on the Board, the Company
recognizes the particular importance of gender diversity. The Board
currently comprises four female Directors and five male Directors. The
Board considers that the Company has achieved gender diversity at
the Board level and targets to maintain the current level of female
representation and in any event at least one female Director shall be
seated on the Board. The Company will ensure that gender diversity is
taken into account when recruiting staff members of mid to senior
level and ensure that sufficient resources are available for providing
appropriate trainings and career development to develop a pipeline of
potential successors to the Board and maintain gender diversity.
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The Company will continue to implement measures and steps to
promote and enhance gender diversity at all levels. The Company will
select potential Board candidates based on merit and his/her potential
contribution to the Board while taking into account the board
diversity policy and other factors. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from time to
time. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity of
the Board members and will review the board diversity policy from
time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

The Group insists on the principle of fairness and voluntariness in
recruitment, and does not impose any restrictive requirements on
gender, ethnicity, nationality and region. In order to avoid child labor
and forced labor, the Group, in strict compliance with the provision of
Article 15 of the Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China,
prohibits the employment of juveniles under the age of 16, and
strictly check whether the actual age of the candidates meets the
employment criteria by checking their identity card, etc. By the end of
31 December 2023, the Group had 1,647 employees in total.

The indicators on employees of the Group, including senior
management, as at 31 December 2023 are set out below:
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As at 31 December 2023
7A2023F12A831H

Percentage

of total

Number of number of

persons employees

HEEEAY

Indicator EE N Batt
Male employees SHEE 1,092 66%
Female employees ZEEE 555 34%
Employees aged 30 and under 30 M AT EER 150 9%
Employees aged from 31 to 50 31mES0FER 879 53%
Employees aged 51 or above S1R A ERE 618 38%
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The Group encourages gender diversity across its workplace. However,
as the property management industry mainly involves provision of
security services, fire services, water and electricity services, repair and
maintenance services for engineering equipment, etc., roles which are
generally taken up by male, such industry nature may make achieving
gender diversity across the workforce more challenging for the Group.
Therefore, the Group is committed to maintain at least the current
proportion of female employees. To achieve diversity at workforce
level, the Group has put in place appropriate recruitment and
selection practices such that a diverse range of candidates with
different age, gender and experiences are considered. The Group has
also established talent management and training programs to provide
career development guidance and promotion opportunities to develop
a broad and diverse pool of skilled and experienced employees.

DIRECTORS” AND OFFICERS" INSURANCE

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions against
them arising out of the Company’s business, and the insurance
coverage will be reviewed annually.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board has a duty to perform the functions set out in code
provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the Board has developed and reviewed the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; reviewed
and monitored the training and continuing professional development
of Directors and senior management and the Company'’s policies and
practices in relation to compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; developed, reviewed and monitored the code of
conduct and compliance manual to employees and Directors; and
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has established risk management systems with relevant
policies and procedures that are appropriate for its business
operations, in order to identify and monitor potential risks of the
Company and their probability of occurrence in a timely manner,
determine the Company’s risk tolerance level and limit, and identify
the losses arising from such risks. The overall objectives of the
Company'’s risk management are to identify in advance any signs of
risks through the risk confirmation and identification process, and
take necessary pre-control measures in advance to avoid risks and
reduce losses. For the risks that have occurred, they will first be
controlled through the existing control measures, and then be
controlled through compensatory measures, so as to minimise the
losses arising from such risks.

The Company focuses on the “14th Five-Year Plan” strategic plan and
its annual business development goals. Firstly, all departments and
subsidiaries of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the “Units”)
closely cooperate to carry out risk identification, analysis and
assessment. Secondly, the risk assessment results of the Units are
summarized and reported to the Company’s internal control and
internal audit department, which is responsible for organizing the
assessment of various risks, submitting strategic risk reports and
corresponding preventive measures to the Board and the Audit
Committee and assisting the Audit Committee and the Board in
decision-making. Thirdly, as a risk audit and monitoring department,
the internal control and internal audit department assists the Audit
Committee in reviewing risks of the Company and promptly reports
any risks discovered during the internal audit process to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

The Audit Committee formulates the risk management strategy,
which is then evaluated and approved by the Board, and assesses the
risks faced by the Company according to the changes of internal and
external environment, including risk identification, risk analysis and
risk countermeasures. Based on the risk level and the results of risk
analysis, the Company generally adopts strategies to avoid, accept,
reduce or share risks.
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By implementing the internal control system, the Company controls
risks associated with its business operations with the adoption of
control and acceptance strategies. Each business department of the
Company and its subsidiaries constitute the first line of defense for
the above risk management, and implement risk control measures in
business processing and operations. The Company’s internal audit
department, as a comprehensive risk management functional
department, forms the second line of defense together with other
functional departments, responsible for professional risk management
and playing a role in addressing gaps in risk control by enhancing and
monitoring risk management. The Company has also established an
internal audit mechanism for risk management, which is also an
internal control monitoring and evaluation mechanism, i.e. the audit
department is responsible for monitoring and evaluating risk
management and internal control. It represents the third line of
defense for the Company’s risk management. In respect of financial
risk, the Company has established a financial early warning system. By
setting and observing changes in certain sensitive financial indicators,
the Company'’s financial department can predict possible or imminent
financial crises and implement a series of control measures, such as
formulating and implementing financial reporting management
systems and adopt internal approval and external audit processes to
reasonably ensure the effective internal control over financial
reporting and the financial reporting risks within control. Regarding
the safety production management risks, by establishing a safety
production management system and formulating safety accident
prevention and control measures, the Company strictly fulfills its
corporate responsibility. For the non-compliance risk associated with
property management services, a service standard system has been in
place to clarify compliance obligations, and at the same time, the
construction of the Company’s legal risk prevention mechanism is
vigorously strengthened to achieve compliance operations.

The Board believes that, during the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Company’s risk management and internal control system were
effective and the overall risk level was within its acceptable level.

The Board confirms that it is responsible for the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems and regularly reviews the
effectiveness of such systems. It acknowledges that such risk
management and internal control systems are designed to manage
the risks associated with the achievement of business objectives but
not to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve them. In addition, it can
only make reasonable rather than absolute assurance that no material
misstatement or loss will result.
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The Company has adopted and implemented the “Anti-bribery Policy
(REFEBEEHZ)" and “Employees’ Professional Ethics Policy (8B T
BRZEEEEIEHIE )" to recognize and deal with bribery or corruption
acts, professional ethics and risks arising from fraud and corruption.
All Directors, management and employees are strictly prohibited from
accepting or offering bribes, rebates, kickbacks or other authorized
payments and any other kind of bribery or corruption acts. Antibribery
policies and procedures are incorporated in the employees’ handbook
and relevant professional ethics trainings are provided to all new and
existing employees. The internal audit department is responsible for
assessing and identifying risks arising from fraud and corruption at
the company, department and account level, respectively, at the
beginning of the year until 31 December 2023.

The Company also has a whistle-blowing policy under which the
internal audit department’s investigation and reporting of relevant
incidents would be subject to the Board's oversight. The whistle-
blowing policy serves the purpose of establishing whistle-blowing
procedures for employees and other relevant external parties of the
Company, in order to report and escalate any suspicious misconducts.
In accordance with the policy, the Group protects all whistle-blowers
from any kind of retaliation. All the information provided by the
whistle-blowers will be strictly confidential.

The Board has reviewed the risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2023 to ensure their
effectiveness and adequacy. The review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The review shall be conducted on an annual
basis. The Board is of the view that the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2023
were effective and adequate.
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PROCEDURES FOR HANDLING AND
DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company maintains a policy on disclosure of inside information
with reference to the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission. The policy sets out
procedures and internal controls for handling and disseminating inside
information in an appropriate and timely manner, such as taking steps
to determine sufficient details, conducting internal assessment of the
matter and its possible impact on the Company, seeking professional
advice when required and verifying the facts. Anyone in possession of
the information must ensure such information is kept in strict
confidentiality and is not allowed to buy or sell any securities of the
Company until the information is fully disclosed to the public.

DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RELATION TO FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023, which give a true and fair view of the condition of the
Company and the Group and of the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval. The Directors were not aware of
any material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The auditor’s statement on its reporting responsibilities in respect of
the Group’s consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company’s remuneration
to the external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young, in respect of
its audit services was RMB2.1 million. Apart from this, the Company’s
external auditor did not provide any other audit or non-audit services
to the Company during the year.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Zhao Yu, the supervisor of the general management department
of the Company, and Mr. Cheng Ching Kit, an assistant vice president
of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, an external
professional corporate service provider of the Company, have been
appointed as the joint company secretaries of the Company.

Mr. Zhao Yu has been designated as the principal contact person of
the Company and will cooperate and communicate with Mr. Cheng
Ching Kit on corporate governance matters of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, Mr. Zhao Yu and Mr.
Cheng Ching Kit have received relevant professional training of not
less than 15 hours respectively in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS
Convening of General Meetings by Shareholders

Shareholder(s) individually or collectively holding 10% or more of the
Shares carrying voting rights at the meeting to be convened may, by
signing one or more counterpart written requisition(s) stating the
object of the meeting, require the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting or a class shareholders’ meeting. The Board shall as
soon as possible after receipt of such written requisition(s) proceed to
so convene the extraordinary general meeting or class shareholders’
meeting. The shareholdings referred to above shall be calculated as at
the date of the delivery of the written requisition(s).

Where the Board fails to issue notice of convening meeting within 30
days upon receipt of the above written request, the requesting
shareholder(s) may request the Supervisory Committee to convene the
extraordinary general meeting or class shareholders’ meeting.

Where the Supervisory Committee fails to issue notice of convening
meeting within 30 days upon receipt of the above written request,
Shareholder(s), for more than 90 consecutive days, individually or
collectively holding more than 10% of the Shares carrying voting
rights at the meeting to be convened may convene the meeting on
their own accord within four months upon the Board having received
such request. The convening procedures shall, to the extent possible,
be identical to procedures according to which general meetings are to
be convened by the Board.

All reasonable expenses incurred for such meeting convened by the
Shareholders as a result of the failure of the Board and the Supervisory
Committee to convene a meeting as required by the above request(s)
shall be borne by the Company and be set off against sums owed by
the Company to the defaulting Directors or Supervisors.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

When the Company convenes a general meeting, Shareholders
individually or jointly holding 3% or more of the total voting Shares
shall be entitled to propose a new motion in writing to the Company
and submit the same to the convener 10 days before the date of
general meeting. The convener of the general meeting shall issue a
supplemental notice of Shareholders’ general meeting within two
days after the receipt of such motion to notify other Shareholders and
include the matters within the scope of duty of Shareholders’ general
meeting in the motion into the agenda of the meeting and submit it
to the Shareholders’ meeting for consideration and approval.

Enquiries to the Board

The Company maintains a website at www.suxinfuwu.com, where
information on the Company’s businesses and projects, key corporate
governance policies and announcements, financial reports and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders and investors
may send written enquiries or requests to the Company by the
following ways:

Address:Room 3001, 30/F, SND International Commerce Tower, 28
Shishan Road, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, PRC

Telephone number: +86 0512 68251855

Email:  investors@suxinfuwu.com
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INVESTOR RELATIONS
Shareholders’ Communication Policy

This policy aims to set out the provisions with the objective of
ensuring the Shareholders are provided with equal and timely access
to information about the Company, in order to enable the
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to
allow them to engage actively with the Company.

The Board will maintain an on-going dialogue with the Shareholders
and will review this policy regularly to ensure its effectiveness.

Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company'’s financial reports, annual general meetings and other
general meetings that may be convened, as well as all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange.

Effective and timely dissemination of information to the Shareholders
will be ensured at all times. Any question regarding this policy will be
directed to the joint company secretaries of the Company.

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders will be provided with designated contacts, email
addresses and enquiry telephone number of the Company in order to
enable them to make any query in respect of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, all corporate
communications and regulatory announcements were published by
the Company on its website and the website of the Stock Exchange in
a timely manner.

In view of the above, the Board considers that the shareholders
communication policy is effective during the year ended 31 December
2023.
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Dividend Policy

The payment and amounts of dividends (if any) depend on the
Group's results of operations, cash flows, financial position, statutory
and regulatory restrictions on the dividends to be paid by the
Company, future prospects and other relevant factors. Save for the
above and subject to applicable laws and regulations as well as the
Articles of Association, the Company expects to pay a dividend no less
than 30.0% of the profit after tax after the Listing each year. The
declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to the
Company’s discretion. The proposed payment of dividends is also
subject to the resolution of the shareholders’ meeting, and any
declaration of final dividend for the period will be subject to the
approval of the Shareholders.

Constitutional Documents

On 24 November 2023, the Board proposed to amend the Articles of
Association in order to comply with the latest requirements of the
Listing Rules and the applicable laws and regulations of the PRC, and
to make minor adjustments to certain provisions of the Articles of
Association taking into consideration of the needs of the Company’s
business development. Details of the amendments are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 November 2023 and the
circular of the Company dated 1 December 2023.

The proposed amendments to the Articles of Association have been
approved by the Shareholders by way of a special resolution at an
extraordinary general meeting, the H Share class meeting and the
Domestic Share class meeting, and have become effective on 21
December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other changes to the
constitutional documents of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2023. The full text of the up-to-date Articles of Association
is available on the Company’s website (www.suxinfuwu.com) and the
website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present its Directors’ report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2023.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2022 have been restated. Please refer to Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements for details. Accordingly, the
following comparative figures provided for the year ended 31
December 2022 are also restated as compared to those set out in the
annual results announcement of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of city services,
commercial property management services and residential property
management services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group’s business review and its future business development, an
analysis of the Group’s business using financial key performance
indicators, and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Group are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend the distribution of a final
dividend in cash of RMB0.3351 per Share (tax inclusive) for the year
ended 31 December 2023. If the resolution for the proposed final
dividend is passed at the 2023 AGM, the proposed final dividend is
expected to be paid on or before Tuesday, 13 August 2024.

As at 31 December 2023, there was no arrangement under which a
Shareholder had waived or agreed to waive any dividends.
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DIVIDEND TAXATION

Under applicable PRC tax laws, regulations and rules, non-PRC
resident individuals and non-PRC resident enterprises who are holders
of the H Shares are subject to different tax obligations.

Under the Individual Income Tax Law of the PRC (2018 Revision) ({7
2= ARKEMBEEAFTEH L0181 5T))) and its implementation
regulations, non-PRC resident individuals are required to pay PRC
individual income tax at a 20% rate for dividends received from the
Company and the gains realized upon the sale or other disposition of
the H Shares held by them. The Company is required to withhold such
tax from dividend payments, unless applicable tax treaties between
China and the jurisdictions in which the foreign individuals reside,
reduce or provide an exemption for the relevant tax obligations.
Generally, a tax rate of 10% shall apply to the dividends paid by
domestic non-foreign-invested enterprises issuing shares in Hong
Kong to overseas resident individuals, pursuant to Circular of the
State Administration of Taxation on Individual Income Tax Collection
Issues upon Abolishment of Document Guoshuifa [1993] No. 045
(KB R 754 765 4 2 T 0 [0 750 B [1993]045 5% S 44 % IE 18 B B (B A P15
FEE M EAEAD)). Where the 10% tax rate is not applicable, the
withholding company shall: (i) return the excessive tax amount
pursuant to the relevant procedures if the applicable tax rate is below
10%; (ii) withhold such income tax payable by the foreign individual
at the applicable tax rate if the applicable tax rate is between 10%
and 20%; and (iii) withhold such foreign individual income tax at a
rate of 20% if no double tax treaty is applicable.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

For non-PRC resident enterprises that are set up in accordance with
the law of the foreign country (region) whose actual administration
institution is outside China, but have set up institutions or
establishments in China or, without institutions or establishments set
up in China but have income originating from China, under the EIT
Law, dividends paid by the Company and the gains realized by such
non-PRC resident enterprises from the sales or other disposition of H
Shares are subject to PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 20%. In
accordance with the EIT Law Implementation Rules and the Notice on
the Issues Concerning Withholding the Enterprise Income Tax on the
Dividends Paid by Chinese Resident Enterprise to Shareholders Which
are Overseas Non-resident Enterprises ({BRA # B/E R b Z MR /M
MeoEE R B ERFIRER ERNABEEMSHE BB RA))
issued by the State Taxation Administration of the PRC (& A R
ME KAL), such tax rate has been reduced to 10%, which
is subject to a further reduction under an applicable treaty or a special
arrangement between China and the jurisdiction of the residence of
the relevant non-PRC resident enterprise. On 21 August 2006, China
and Hong Kong entered into the Arrangements between Mainland
China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the
Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion
with Respect to Taxes on Incomes (A b F0 2 8 5 BIl 77 IR 68 88 12 %7
FT 15 it 62 % SR AN B LE 8RB A9 &2 BE)), pursuant to which any
non-resident enterprise registered in Hong Kong that holds directly at
least 25% of the shares of the Company shall pay enterprise income
tax for the dividends declared and paid by the Company at a tax rate
of 5% subject to the satisfaction of certain conditions such as
approval by the relevant PRC tax authority.

Shareholders are recommended to consult their tax advisors
regarding the ownership and disposal of H Shares in the PRC
and in Hong Kong and other tax effects.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

There is no change in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any debentures during the year ended 31
December 2023.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As far as the Board and the management are aware, the Group has
complied in all material aspects with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no
material breach of, or non-compliance with, applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in the section headed “Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity” in this annual report.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s aggregate amount of
reserve available for distribution to equity Shareholders was
approximately RMB694,981 million.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties mainly represent commercial
properties and rental apartments. The value of the Group’s investment
properties remained relatively stable at approximately RMB353.0
million as at 31 December 2022 and approximately RMB333 million
as at 31 December 2023.

RIGHTS OF PRE-EMPTIVE

According to the PRC laws and the Articles of Association, there is no
arrangement for the rights of pre-emption.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION TO HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the Shareholders of the Company due to their holding of the
Company’s securities.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no equity-linked
agreement was entered into by the Group or still in effect.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

The Directors and the Supervisors during the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this annual report are set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Cui Xiaodong

Mr. Zhou Jun

Ms. Zhou Lijuan

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Li Xin (appointed with effect from 15 June 2023)

Mr. Cao Bin (appointed with effect from 15 June 2023)

Mr. Zhang Jun

Mr. Cai Jinchun (resigned with effect from 15 June 2023)

Mr. Tang Chunshan (resigned with effect from 15 June 2023)
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Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Zhou Yun

Ms. Xin Zhu

Mr. Liu Xin

Supervisors

Mr. Zhang Wei (appointed with effect from 15 June 2023)

Mr. Tang Bo (appointed with effect from 15 June 2023)

Ms. Hu Yuanling (appointed with effect from 20 October 2023)
Mr. Feng Jingen (resigned with effect from 15 June 2023)

Mr. Huang Wei (resigned with effect from 15 June 2023)

Ms. Yuan Hongjuan (resigned with effect from 20 October 2023)

Changes in Directors and Supervisors
Changes in the Directors

On 15 June 2023, following the approval of shareholders at the
annual general meeting of 2022, Ms. Li Xin and Mr. Cao Bin were
appointed as non-executive Directors for a term up to the expiration
of the first session of the Board with effect from 15 June 2023. On
the same day, the Board resolved to elect Ms. Li Xin as a member of
the Audit Committee and Mr. Cao Bin as a member of the
Remuneration Committee.

On 15 June 2023, Mr. Cai Jinchun has resigned as a non-executive
Director and a member of the Audit Committee due to work
relocation. On the same day, Mr. Tang Chunshan has resigned as a
non-executive Director and a member of the Remuneration
Committee due to work relocation. Their resignations took effect on
15 June 2023.

Changes in Supervisors

On 15 June 2023, following the approval of shareholders at the
annual general meeting of 2022, Mr. Zhang Wei and Mr. Tang Bo
were appointed as shareholder representative Supervisor for a term
up to the expiration of the first session of the Supervisory Committee
with effect from 15 June 2023. On the same day, the Supervisory
Committee resolved to elect Mr. Zhang Wei as the Chairman of the
Supervisory Committee.

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BHEFEEREROBERLT/ —T_=FFR

BYFHTES
FELt
L
2087 e

E=E

RERE(H2023F6 715 HEEZ(T)
B (B 2023496 A 15 HEEEZ(E)
PR L+ (B2023F 1020 H EEZ(T)
BEIBEA (B2023F6 A 15 HEFT)
HESE(H2023F6 4 15 HEEHT)
RABL L (BH2023F 10420 H#EET)

EERESEE
E=gER

2023F 6 A158 « &ERFMN 2022 FERREA
FRG EHER FTHLETREWEEDE
ZEAEFHITES  THIMR2023F6 A15H
REEF - EETeAHERAL -RAB -
EZQRABRETHRLIAESTEERZE
eXE  BWAEREESHFMNEESKE -

20236 A15H e FEERATIERAT -
HEFNTESREETEERLZEENER
HeRA BEECEEAIERS BTk
BITEFREFETNEZEGKERT -
L 2BTE2023F6 A15BBAEM -

EE2HFER

2023F 6 A 158 AR KRR 2022 FE KRB
FAGLIER RECERBERLEDE
ZEARBRRRKES  THHE202346H15
HREEZEF —EEEeFHERAL -RA -
EESRRERRELAEARESTSER -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

On 20 October 2023, Ms. Hu Yuanling was democratically elected as
the employee representative Supervisor during the staff representative
meeting of the Company held on 20 October 2023 for a term up to
the expiration of the first session of the Supervisory Committee with
effect from 20 October 2023.

On 15 June 2023, Mr. Feng Jingen has resigned as Supervisor and the
president of the Supervisory Committee due to work relocation. On
the same day, Mr. Huang Wei has resigned as Supervisor due to work
relocation. Their resignations took effect on 15 June 2023.

On 20 October 2023, Ms. Yuan Hongjuan has resigned as the
employee representative Supervisor due to change in work
arrangement. Her resignations took effect on 20 October 2023.

Save as disclosed above, up to the date of this report, there have been
no changes in Directors and Supervisors of the Company.

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND APPOINTMENT
LETTERS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Each of the Directors and Supervisors entered into a service contract
or appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years.
The principal particulars of these service contracts and appointment
letters comprise (a) the term of the service; (b) subject to termination
in accordance with their respective term; and (c) a dispute resolution
provision. The service contracts and appointment letters may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable laws, rules and regulations from time to time.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has or is proposed to have a
service contract with any member of the Group which is not
determinable within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.
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MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no Director, Supervisor or
any entity connected with the Directors or Supervisors of the
Company was materially interested in, either directly or indirectly, any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance relating to the
business of the Company to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries is a party.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, no Directors, the
Supervisors or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes or is likely
to compete with the Company’s business as required to be disclosed
under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS" AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors, Supervisors or chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS OF PERSONS OTHER THAN THE
DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING

SHARES

As at 31 December 2023, the following persons other than the
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ESEIHRE

—_

=hEmITBAR
Az {0 Ko #H Bd Bz £ A

7

B
>~Hﬁﬂ+
EHF#

t \

/. />

T
l
N

SN
Eeanivay
2

HE2023F12A31B A RAEE - EE

Directors, Supervisors and chief executive of the Company had E&E1THAE ZHKLT ALTRAEKRQ G

interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the NMHFE

Company under section 336 of the SFO:

NEBBERDFPHEBELARARIREBEES
= 6P 25 336 16 48 TE 17 B 10 & 5o it e 4
WmBOKAE

Shares held in the relevant class
of Shares of the Company®
REDFEBEIRABEEHRG

Percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage the Company
EERARERT
BRRERE K2 BEtE BRAER | BOk RELEAALL
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(#47) (B #4)
SND Company Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 69,846,825 (L) 93.13% 69.12%
SN ERBAA NER
Interest in a controlled Domestic Shares 5,153,175 (L) 6.87% 5.10%
corporation
REfEE RS NER
SND Chengjian® Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 5,153,175 (L) 6.87% 5.10%
BaimEe ERBAA NER
Caitong Securities Co., Limited*® Interest in a controlled H Shares 6,652,000 (L) 25.54% 6.58%
corporation
BEESRNAERRAC REfEE RS Hi&
Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd.*®  Other H Shares 6,652,000 (L) 25.54% 6.58%
BRESEBARARC Hit Hi&
Chen Aihua*® Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,707,500 (L) 10.39% 2.68%
corporation
B3 e REfEE RS Hi&
Suzhou Zhongshe Construction Group Beneficial owner H Shares 2,707,500 (L) 10.39% 2.68%
Co., Ltd.*¥
HENPREREEBRLAA ERBAA Hi&
Chen Jig® Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
corporation
BZo REfEE RS Hi&
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Shares held in the relevant class
of Shares of the Company®

REAARBENRDBEENRGO

Percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage the Company
EARARERT
BRREB, 2 BEHE R85 B Bk RALBEED
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(%47 (B4
Suzhou Qianmo Village Development Beneficial owner H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
Construction Tourism Co., Ltd.*®)
FMFRBRREERERATO ERAEA HI
Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd.© Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
corporation
EFRIRRITRAER DA REHEEER Hi
Xiamen International Investment Limited®  Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
corporation
EFEIRREERA A REHEEER Hi
Chiyu International Financial Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
Holdings Limited® corporation
SRERSRERERRFO REHEEER Hik
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited® Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
corporation
ERBITBERARO REHEEER Hi
Chiyu International Capital Limited® Beneficial owner H Shares 2,325,500 (L) 8.93% 2.30%
EREABRBRERARO BERABA Hi
SDIC Taikang Trust Co., Ltd.*? Trustee H Shares 4,076,500 (L) 15.65% 4.03%
BERFRETBRRAF EETN Hik
CCB Principal Asset Management Investment manager H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
Co., Ltd."®
BERECERAEREARA® RELRE Hi
Jin Weikang*® Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
corporation
SRR REHEEER Hik
Suzhou Jianxin Construction Beneficial owner H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
Group Co., Ltd.*®
FMEagRERERARC BERABA HI
Liu Chunming"® Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
corporation
ElE REHEEER Hik
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Shares held in the relevant class
of Shares of the Company®

REAARBEIROBEENRGO

Percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage the Company
ERARERT
BREEE 1S BEHE RBER - §E| BAk RAAERAL
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(#4) (BE4)
Jiangsu Guowei Security Service Beneficial owner H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
Co., Ltd.*10
IHERRERBEBRAFO ERMAA HR
Lu Jianchao*™ Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
corporation
L3 Felll ZEGHEEER HER
Suzhou Zhonggang Construction Co., Beneficial owner H Shares 1,351,000 (L) 5.19% 1.34%
Ltd.*
BNmREREERAA ERMAA Hi&
Shanghai International Trust Co., Ltd.*™  Trustee H Shares 6,764,000 (L) 25.97% 6.69%
HRBEREFRAERDEM ZEA Hi&
Wu Xiangying Beneficial owner H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
REH ERABA HER
Yu Chaoguan'’® Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
corporation
REED REGHEEER HER
Zhao Guo'™ Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
corporation
BRO REGHEEER HR
Shanghai Yuanyuan Rongrong Beneficial owner H Shares 1,335,000 (L) 5.13% 1.32%
Enterprise Management Partnership
Limited Partnership)*('?
LERRRRRXEREHLE ERMAA HR
(ER&EH)™
Zheng Weidong** Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,358,500 (L) 5.22% 1.34%
corporation
R REGHEEER HR
Suzhou Dongyu Construction Beneficial owner H Shares 1,358,500 (L) 5.22% 1.34%
Development Co., Ltd.*™
BNRFRREREROAM ERMAA Hi&
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ESEEWE

Shares held in the relevant class

of Shares of the Company®

REAARBENRDBEENRGO

Percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest Class of Shares Number Percentage the Company
ERARE BT
BREEE 1S BEHE RBER - §E| BAk RABERAL
(Approximate) (Approximate)
(#4) (B4)
Zhou Gang""® Interest in a controlled H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
corporation
AR s REGEEER HIR
Suzhou Guanglin Construction Co., Beneficial owner H Shares 1,359,500 (L) 5.22% 1.35%
Ltd.*“s)
HNERERBEREELAD ERBmAA Hi&
Chen Hongguang"® Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
corporation
FBRAT .00 ZEGEEER HIR
Suzhou Chenguang Construction Beneficial owner H Shares 2,682,000 (L) 10.30% 2.65%
Group Co., Ltd.*(®
BNEARSEBERAR ERBmAA Hi&
Xu Xuelei Beneficial owner H Shares 1,358,500 (L) 5.22% 1.34%
TEE ERBmAA HIR
Wu Yex(17 Interest in a controlled H Shares 2,702,500 (L) 10.38% 2.67%
corporation
REm ZEGEEER HIR
Suzhou Shangyang Environmental Beneficial owner H Shares 2,702,500 (L) 10.38% 267%
Technology Co., Ltd.*"
BN FRRERMAERD A ERBmAA Hi&
Notes: MI5E -
(1) The letter “L” denotes a long position in the Shares. (1) FEILURKZALRBROHOITE -

BRIV EOGERTARLERR - RIEES
REFEIRD - 8 =3 A AR R R = T
FAEMRO P HEEER -

(2)  SND Chengjian is wholly-owned by SND Company. By virtue of the SFO, SND  (2)
Company is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by SND Chengjian.
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Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 40% by Caitong
Securities Co., Limited.*. By virtue of the SFO, Caitong Securities Co.,
Limited* is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Caitong Fund
Management Co., Ltd.*. According to the disclosure of interests filed by
Caitong Fund Management Co., Ltd.* on 26 August 2022, Caitong Fund
Management Co., Ltd.*, as an asset manager of Caitong Fund Yuanrong
Overseas No. 160 (QDII) Single Asset Management Plan*, Caitong Fund
Smart Select Overseas No. 161 (QDII) Single Asset Management Plan*,
Caitong Fund Special Overseas No. 162 (QDII) Single Asset Management
Plan* and Caitong Fund Yitong Overseas No. 163 (QDII) Single Asset
Management Plan*, held 1,335,000 H Shares, 1,335,000 H Shares,
2,682,000 H Shares and 1,300,000 H Shares of the Company through these
QDI asset management plans, respectively.

Suzhou Zhongshe Construction Group Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 84% by
Chen Aihua*. By virtue of the SFO, Chen Aihua* is deemed to be interested
in the Shares held by Suzhou Zhongshe Construction Group Co., Ltd.*.

Based on publicly available record, Suzhou Qianmo Village Development
Construction Tourism Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 85% by Chen Jie. By virtue
of the SFO, Chen Jie is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Suzhou
Qianmo Village Development Construction Tourism Co., Ltd.*.

Chiyu International Capital Limited is wholly owned by Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited, which is in turn owned as to 69.63% by Chiyu
International Financial Holdings Limited. Chiyu International Financial
Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Xiamen International Investment
Limited, which is in turn wholly-owned by Xiamen International Bank Co.,
Ltd.. By virtue of the SFO, each of Xiamen International Bank Co., Ltd.,
Xiamen International Investment Limited, Chiyu International Financial
Holdings Limited and Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Chiyu International Capital Limited.

According to the notice of equity disclosure filed by SDIC Taikang Trust Co.,
Ltd.* on 26 August 2022, SDIC Taikang Trust Co., Ltd.*, as a trustee of SDIC
Taikang Trust — Ruijin No. 40 QDII Single Fund Trust, SDIC Taikang Trust —
Ruijin No. 41 QDII Single Fund Trust and SDIC Taikang Trust — Ruijin No. 42
QDII Single Fund Trust, held 1,358,500 H Shares, 1,359,500 H Shares and
1,358,500 H Shares of the Company through these trusts, respectively.

According to the disclosure of interests filed by CCB Principal Asset
Management Co., Ltd.* on 26 August 2022, the Shares are held by CCB
Principal Asset Management Co., Ltd.* for the No.91 Nuggets Fund*
managed by it.

Suzhou Jianxin Construction Group Co., Ltd* is owned as to 62.37% by Jin
Weikang*. By virtue of the SFO, Jin Weikang* is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Suzhou Jianxin Construction Group Co., Ltd.*.

(@)

(5)

®)

©)

ESEHE

HERESCEEBRAFHVBELSROBERA
RIMEA40% S - IRIEFF R BE KD - 88
BEBROARARFEARNVBESEEGR
ARFENROTPHEER - REVABESE
BARABNR2022F8 A26 A FIEMEZRE
EOMBESERERAREAMBESRR
BINME0SR(QDINE—EAEEBETE  WBES
FEGIN61RQDNE—BEEERNE B
ESEEFING2I(QDINE —EETETE R
FiBESEREINME3R(QDIE—EEE BT
BMEEEBRA BBZZSQDIEEE D5
#4827 1,335,000 HA% ~ 1,335,000 % H
A% - 2,682,000 % H % % 1,300,000 f% H A% °

NP REREEFR QB HRUIEES84%
e RIBEZ ARG RIXERAR/R
BMNPREZREEERARBFENRNTES

PR o

RIBAFRLE  SMNTEBEZREXRBRA
AR EER 85% s © IRIBESF R AR KA -
FROZHIR RN AN TR BRI EERAR AR
RENRDPEG#ER -

EREBEEABERARBERRITERIAR
BHE MERRTERAFHERER SR
ZBRARHEH 69.63% #at - ERBR DR
ZRARAFHEMBERRKEFRAREZE R
B MEMBERKERR AR HEPIERIRT
BHERARZERA - REESRPEGED -
EFBERRTRODERAR  EFBERKZES
RAR - EAEREBIZERERARRERR
TERARAERALBRERBREAER AT
RENRDPEG#ER -

RIERRFEEEFLARAFN2022F8H26A
GREOBEEZRY  BEREEETEARAR
YE /& SDIC Taikang Trust — Ruijin No. 40 QDI
Single Fund Trust + SDIC Taikang Trust — Ruijin No.
41 QDII Single Fund Trust }2 SDIC Taikang Trust —
Ruijin No. 42 QDII Single Fund Trust 95T A + 18
B EETT D B A AR F 1,358,500 & HAR -
1,359,500 A% H % K 1,358,500 A% H % °

BEZEESEBEARETAAN2022F8 A
6 FIEMEREE  ZSRNBEEESE
BEREAATRAEEENEEEINES I
E-AEEEFEHEE -

HMNEEEREEERAFNHASERES
62.37% % o REBEES RME G - £E K
BANFMNEEZREEAERARAFTENRN
REA S o
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(10)  Jiangsu Guowei Security Service Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 90% by Liu
Chunming. By virtue of the SFO, Liu Chunming is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Jiangsu Guowei Security Service Co., Ltd.*.

(11)  According to the disclosure of interests filed by Lu Jianchao* on 30 August
2022, Lu Jianchao* is interested in the Shares through the corporation
controlled by him.

(12)  According to the disclosure of interests filed by Shanghai International Trust
Co., Ltd.* on 21 September 2022, Shanghai International Trust Co., Ltd.*, as
a trustee of the Single Fund Trust in Hong Kong Market under the Platinum
Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-13-22010)*, the Single Fund Trust in Hong
Kong Market under the Platinum Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-13-
22011)*, the Single Fund Trust in Hong Kong Market under the Platinum
Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-13-22012)* and the Single Fund Trust in
Hong Kong Market under the Platinum Collection of Shanghai Trust (GJ-13-
22013)*, held 1,351,000 H Shares, 2,702,500 H Shares, 1,351,000 H Shares
and 1,359,500 H Shares of the Company through these trusts, respectively.

(13)  Shanghai Yuanyuan Rongrong Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership)* is owned as to 80% and 20% by Zhao Guo and Yu Chaoquan,
respectively. By virtue of the SFO, Zhao Guo and Yu Chaoquan are deemed
to be interested in the Shares held Shanghai Yuanyuan Rongrong Enterprise
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)*, a corporation controlled by
them.

(14)  Suzhou Dongyu Construction Development Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 80%
by Zheng Weidong*. By virtue of the SFO, Zheng Weidong* is deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Suzhou Dongyu Construction Development
Co., Ltd.*.

(15)  Suzhou Guanglin Construction Co., Ltd.* is owned as to 85.01% by Zhou
Gang. By virtue of the SFO, Zhou Gang is deemed to be interested in the
Shares held by Suzhou Guanglin Construction Co., Ltd.*.

(16)  Suzhou Chenguang Construction Group Co., Ltd.* directly holds 2,682,000
H Shares. Suzhou Chenguang Construction Group Co., Ltd. is owned as to
90% by Chen Hongguang. By virtue of the SFO, Chen Hongguang is
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Suzhou Chenguang
Construction Group Co., Ltd.*.

(17)  Suzhou Shangyang Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* is owned as to
70% by Wu Ye*. By virtue of the SFO, Wu Ye* is deemed to be interested in
the Shares held by Suzhou Shangyang Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.*.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were
not aware of any person (other than the Directors, Supervisors or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company which were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2023 were there any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the purchase of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there any such
rights exercised by them. Also, there was no subsisting arrangement
to which the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries is a party that would enable the Directors to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has maintained liability insurance for the Directors,
Supervisors and senior management to protect them from any legal
liability to any third party arising from corporate activities. The
permitted indemnity provision was in force during the year ended 31
December 2023 and remained in force as at the date of this annual
report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the donations made by
the Group totalled RMB62,000.

ESEHE

BERMDNEFNLH

HE2023F1N2ANBEFERERESEL
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2023F 12 AT B IEFE AW - WHRAFH
HEl—EB® -

EEAL
HZE2023F12A31HLEFE MBIV A
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COMPLIANCE WITH DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

Each of SND Company and SND Chengjian, both being controlling
shareholders of the Company, entered into a deed of non-
competition dated 3 August 2022 in favour of the Company. Please
refer to the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders — Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus for
more details.

Each of the abovementioned controlling shareholders confirmed that,
during the year ended 31 December 2023, it had complied with the
non-competition undertaking. The independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the compliance with the deed of non-
competition by SND Company and SND Chengjian for the year ended
31 December 2023, and are not aware that the above controlling
shareholders have not complied with the non-competition
undertaking.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and the
largest customer accounted for 39.2% and 21.8%, respectively, of
the Group's total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers and the
largest supplier accounted for 40.9% and 12.2%, respectively, of the
Group's total purchases for the year ended 31 December 2023.

SND Company, one of the controlling shareholders of the Company,
together with its subsidiaries but excluding the Group, is one of the
largest customers and suppliers of the Group. Save for disclosed
above, none of the Directors or any of their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) or any Shareholders (whom, to the best
knowledge and belief of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s total issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest suppliers and customers for the year ended 31
December 2023.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as disclosed under “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this section, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries entered into any significant contracts with the
controlling shareholders of the Company or any of its subsidiaries for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 7 June 2023, the Company entered into an asset transaction
agreement with the Yiyang Purchaser in relation to the Yiyang
Disposal. The Yiyang Purchaser is an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of SND Company.

On 3 August 2023, Golden Lion (as vendor) entered into an asset
transaction agreement with the Huirong Purchaser in relation to the
Huirong Disposal. The Huirong Purchaser is a direct non-wholly owned
subsidiary of SND Company.

On 10 August 2023, Golden Lion (as purchaser) and Zhitai (as vendor)
entered into an asset transfer agreement in relation to the Kejia
Acquisition. Zhitai is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SND Company.

On 10 August 2023, Golden Lion (as purchaser) entered into (i) an
asset transfer agreement with Zhitai; and (ii) an asset transfer
agreement with Suzhou Water Supply Co, in relation to the Runjia
Acquisition. Zhitai is a wholly-owned subsidiary of SND Company,
while Suzhou Water Supply Co is owned as to 92.9% by SND
Company and 7.1% by SND Gaoxin Tech, which is owned as to
approximately 43.79% by SND Company.

SND Company is a controlling shareholder of the Company,
accordingly, each of the Yiyang Purchaser, the Huirong Purchaser,
Zhitai and Suzhou Water Supply Co is a connected person of the
Company and the Yiyang Disposal, the Huirong Disposal, the Kejia
Acquisition and the Runjia Acquisition constituted a connected
transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For details, please refer to the section headed “SIGNIFICANT
INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES” under “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into a number of agreements with connected
persons of the Company, and the transactions disclosed in this section
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules upon Listing.

1. Master Water Supply Agreement

On 5 August 2022, the Company entered into a master water
supply agreement (the “Master Water Supply Agreement”)
with Gaoxin Water, pursuant to which the Group will purchase
water from Gaoxin Water for use in its operation and services.
Gaoxin Water is a licensed municipal water supply company
responsible for supply of tap water in Hugiu District, Suzhou.
The Master Water Supply Agreement has a term commencing
from the Listing Date to 31 December 2024.

The maximum annual amounts payable by the Group under the
Master Water Supply Agreement for the each of the two years
ended 31 December 2022, 2023 and the year ending 31
December 2024 shall not exceed RMB6.3 million, RMB6.3
million and RMB6.4 million, respectively.

The actual transaction amount of water charges payable by the
Group for the purchase of water from Gaoxin Water amounted
to RMB2,123,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023.

SND Company is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
Gaoxin Water, being a subsidiary of SND Company, is therefore
a connected person of the Company for the purpose of the
Listing Rules.
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Master Property Management Services
Agreement

On 5 August 2022, the Company entered into a master
property management services agreement (the “Master
Property Management Services Agreement”) with SND
Company, pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide
property management services to SND Group and its associates,
including but not limited to (i) city services including but not
limited to municipal infrastructure services and public facility
management services; (i) property management services for the
commercial and residential properties owned or used by SND
Group and its associates; (iii) value-added services including but
not limited to carpark space management services, customized
cleaning, maintenance and security services (the “Property
Management Services”). The Master Property Management
Services Agreement has a term commencing from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2024.

The maximum annual amounts payable by SND Group and its
associates in relation to the Property Management Services to
be provided by the Group for each of the two years ended 31
December 2022, 2023 and the year ending 31 December 2024
shall not exceed RMB48.9 million, RMB61.1 million and
RMB66.8 million, respectively.

The actual transaction amount of fees payable to the Group for
the provision of the Property Management Services amounted
to RMB59,527,000 for the year ended 31 December 2023.

SND Company is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
is therefore a connected person of the Company for the
purpose of the Listing Rules.
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Services Procurement Framework Agreement

On 4 September 2023, upon completion of the Runjia
Acquisition, Runjia entered into a services procurement
framework agreement (the “Services Procurement
Framework Agreement”) with Suzhou Water Supply Co,
pursuant to which Runjia will provide the (i) facility and water
supply maintenance services (the “Maintenance Services”);
and (i) water plant sanitation, water purification and sludge
drying services (the “Water Treatment Services”) to Suzhou
Water Supply Co for a term commencing from the date thereof
to 31 December 2025.

The maximum annual amounts payable by Suzhou Water Supply
Co under the Services Procurement Framework Agreement for
the period from the date of the Service Procurement Framework
Agreement to 31 December 2023 and each of the two years
ending 31 December 2025 shall not exceed (i) RMB4.0 million,
RMB25.0 million and RMB25.0 million in relation to the
Maintenance Services; and (ii) RMB2.5 million, RMB5.0 million
and RMB5.0 million in relation to the Water Treatment Services.

The actual transaction amount of fees payable to the Group for
the provision of the Maintenance Services and the Water
Treatment Services for the year ended 31 December 2023
amounted to RMB3,425,000 and RMB2,034,000, respectively.

Suzhou Water Supply Co is owned as to 92.9% by SND
Company and 7.1% by SND Gaoxin Tech, which is owned as to
approximately 43.79% by SND Company. SND Company is a
controlling shareholder of the Company and Suzhou Water
Supply Co, being a non-wholly owned subsidiary of SND
Company, is therefore a connected person of the Company for
the purpose of the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Continuing connected transactions reviewed by
independent non-executive Directors

According to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, all independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that they are:

(1)  entered into in the ordinary and usual business of the
Group;

(2)  conducted on normal commercial terms or better; and

(3) conducted in accordance with the respective terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation from the auditor

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company'’s
auditor, Ernst & Young, was engaged by the Board to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised), “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 (Revised), “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Based on the work performed, the auditor of the Company
confirmed to the Board that nothing has come to the attention
of the auditor that causes the auditor to believe that the above
continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2)  were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group for transactions involving the
provision of goods or services by the Group;

(3) were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions; and

(4)  have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in Note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed above, the
related party transactions set out in the note above do not fall within
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group was not
engaged in any material litigation or arbitration which could have a
material effect on its financial condition or results of operations. So
far as the Directors are aware, no such litigation or arbitration of
material importance is pending or threatened against the Group.

AUDITOR

There has been no change in the auditor of the Company since the
Listing Date. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 have been audited by Ernst & Young, Certified
Public Accountants, which will be subject to nomination for re-
appointment at the 2023 AGM.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and to the
knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company
maintained sufficient public float in compliance with the Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Customers

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s customer
base primarily consists of property developers, property owners,
residents, tenants, industrial and other corporate entities, local
government and public authorities.

The Group prioritizes quality in its services and believe that quality
control is crucial to the long-term success of its business. Through
both the online monitoring and off line supervision, the Group’s
quality control team controls the quality of various aspects of its
services, including customer service, security service, maintenance
service and environment service. The Group has established internal
policies and procedures for responding to and recording customer
feedback and complaints, and following up with its customers for
reviews on the Group’s responses. In designing such a feedback and
complaint management system, the Group seeks to maintain the trust
and confidence of its customers.

Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the suppliers of the Group
are primarily subcontractors located in China which provide cleaning,
security and maintenance services to the Group.

The Group outsources certain such services to lower its cost of services
while maintaining high service quality. Subcontractors specialize in the
services they perform and operate in an efficient manner, and such
sub-contracting arrangements allow the Group to leverage the human
resources and technical expertise of the sub-contractors, hence reduce
labor costs and enhance overall profitability.
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Employees

The Group believes that the expertise, experience and professional
development of its employees contributes to its growth. The Group
proactively recruits skilled and qualified personnel with relevant
working experience in property management to support the
sustainable growth of its business. The Group provides various
training programs to its employees to improve their satisfaction.

As at 31 December 2023, employees of the Group formed labor
unions and the Group did not experience any material strikes,
accident relating to work safety or labor disputes with its employees,
or got involved in any material accidents in relation to work safety,
nor did the Group receive any complaints, notices or orders from
relevant government authorities or third parties.

PENSION SCHEME

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain proportion of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

In addition, the Group has maintained an enterprise annuity scheme
for certain subsidiaries. The expenses required for the enterprise
annuity are jointly paid by the enterprise and employees. Employees
may choose to join the Company’s enterprise annuity scheme on a
voluntary basis. The expenditure is included in the current profit or
loss or the cost of related assets when they are incurred.

As at 31 December 2023, no forfeited contributions were available to
reduce the existing level of contributions payable by the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is committed to environmental protection and the
Directors believe that the establishment and implementation of sound
environmental, social and governance principles and practices will
help increase the Group’s investment value and provide long-term
returns to the Group's stakeholders.

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to transparency and
accountability to its stakeholders, the Company will issue separately
an Environmental, Social and Governance Report under the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as specified in
Appendix 27 (which has been renumbered to Appendix C2 with
effect from 31 December 2023) to the Listing Rules. The report will
present the Company’s commitment to sustainable development
during the year under review, and it will cover the significant
economic, environmental and social achievements and impacts arising
from the activities of the Company and its joint ventures.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No event has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this annual report that may have a material impact on
the Group’s operating and financial performance that needs to be
disclosed.

For and on behalf of the Board
Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd.
Cui Xiaodong

Chairman and executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024

* for identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

EEBHE

The Supervisory Committee of the Company is pleased to present the
Report of the Supervisory Committee of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2023.

During 2023, the Supervisory Committee fulfilled its duties and
obligations in a serious manner by various ways including participating
in Shareholders’ general meetings, meetings of the Board in
accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, the Articles of
Association and the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Committee
for the interests of the Shareholders. The Supervisory Committee
reviewed the Company’s financial accounts, and monitored its
management and operation, implementation of resolutions of the
shareholders’ general meeting, directors’ and management’s
compliance with laws, administrative regulations and the Articles of
Association when performing their respective duties.

MEMBERS OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisors of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023 and up to the date of this report include:

Mr. Zhang Wei (5&1& ) (appointed with effect from 15 June 2023)

Mr. Tang Bo (JE i) (appointed with effect from 15 June 2023)

Ms. Hu Yuanling (#:&%% ) (appointed with effect from 20 October 2023)
Mr. Feng lingen O £ 18 (resigned with effect from 15 June 2023)
Mr. Huang Wei (= 1) (resigned with effect from 15 June 2023)

Ms. Yuan Hongjuan (3= 4148 ) (resigned with effect from 20 October 2023)
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

MAJOR WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE IN 2023

Convening meetings of the Supervisory Committee
according to laws, and earnestly performing
supervisory duties

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Supervisory
Committee held 2 meetings, covering a comprehensive review of the
company’s financial status, supervision of the implementation of the
Board of Directors’ decisions, and review of the company’s operational
compliance, among other aspects. These meetings allowed the
committee to comprehensively supervise and evaluate important
company decisions and operations. The details of Supervisors
attendance at the meetings of the Supervisory Committee held are as
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follows:
Number of attendance/
Number of supervisory
meetings eligible to
Name of Supervisor Type of Supervisor attend
HERE EEKSM
EEpE E=HER EESERRY
Mr. Zhang Wei Shareholder representative Supervisor
RIE & BRERRKES 171
Mr. Tang Bo Shareholder representative Supervisor
Bk & RERRKRES 171
Ms. Hu Yuanling Employee representative Supervisor
ER XL BIRRES 171
Mr. Feng Jingen Shareholder representative Supervisor
BEIRAE BRERRKES 171
Mr. Huang Wei Shareholder representative Supervisor
"EEE RERRKRES 171
Ms. Yuan Hongjuan Employee representative Supervisor
RAB/EL BIRRES 171
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EEERE

The members of the Supervisory Committee conducted
comprehensive supervision of the procedures to convene meeting,
agenda and resolutions of the Shareholders’ general meetings and
meetings of the Board, implementation of the resolutions of the
Shareholders’ general meetings by the Board as well as the duty
performance of the Directors, managers, and senior management by
sitting on in Shareholders’ general meetings and meetings of the
Board and participating in the major decision-making procedures of
the Company.

Evaluation on behaviors of the Board and the senior
management in 2023

The procedures for making major operating decisions by the Board
were legal and valid, and the resolutions of the Shareholders’ general
meetings and meetings of the Board were implemented effectively.
The internal control system remained sound and comprehensive. The
Directors and senior management of the Company performed their
duties honestly and diligently in strict compliance with the relevant
national laws and regulations, Listing Rules and the rules and policies
of the Company, they fulfilled their responsibilities and completed
various tasks set at the beginning of the year. As of 31 December
2023, there was not any corruption lawsuit filed and concluded
involving the Company or its employees.

INDEPENDENT OPINION OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE ON THE COMPANY’S OPERATION

Lawful operation of the Company

The Supervisory Committee of the Company has reviewed the risk
management report of the Company as of 31 December 2023. The
Company has integrated risk management into all business and
decision making procedures, including the formulation of strategies,
business development, business planning, fund allocation, investment
decisions, internal control and daily operation. The Directors and
senior management always performed their duties responsibly in the
business operations and management processes, and they were not
found to have breached any laws, regulations, or the Articles of
Association or harmed the interests of the Shareholders.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Financial report of the Company

The Supervisory Committee of the Company conducted a careful and
detailed inspection of the Company’s financial condition, and
reviewed the Group's audited financial report for the year ended 31
December 2023 and other financial information. The 2023 annual
report of the Company has reflected the Company'’s financial position
and operating results in a truthful manner. They were not aware of
any violation of the relevant accounting standards and legal
requirements by the personnel who were involved in the preparation
of the report.

Continuing connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2023, continuing connected
transactions of the Company were entered into on normal commercial
terms. There was no prejudice against the interests of the Company.
The deliberation, voting, disclosure and performance of continuing
connected transactions were in compliance with relevant laws,
regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company.

MAJOR INITIATIVES OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE FOR 2024

In 2024, the Supervisory Committee will work diligently and faithfully
under relevant requirements of the Listing Rules, the Articles of
Association and the Rules of Procedure of the Supervisory Committee,
implement effective supervision on the Company, Directors and senior
management, closely monitor the operation and management of the
Company, pay attention to any significant development of the
Company to promote sustainable development of the Company, and
faithfully safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the
Company as a whole. Meanwhile, the Supervisory Committee will
continue with a high sense of responsibility and mission to ensure the
legality and compliance of the company’s operations to better
safeguard the interests of the Company and all Shareholders.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

18 M % LA

To the shareholders of Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Suxin Joyful
Life Services Co., Ltd. (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 124 to 258, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2023,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

VR R TR o

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HRESER

R E T =18 (#)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BN ETNAEERERETSR

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

BEZREUF RS EEERE

As at 31 December 2023, the gross carrying amount of
trade receivables was approximately RMB314.6 million,
against which an allowance for impairment of RMB19.5
million was made, and the net carrying amount of the
trade receivables was approximately RMB295.1 million.

R2023%F12 8310 EZRUGRENEERERENSA
R¥3146BE T EHRltsHERERBEARKE1958
B E5REFERIFHENRARE 2951 88T -

Management applied the simplified approach in
calculating expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) of trade
receivables, based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected credit loss rates. It involved significant
judgments and estimates when management made these
assumptions and selected the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, ageing
profile of the receivables, existing market conditions as
well as forward-looking estimates at the end of the
reporting period. Accordingly, the provision for expected
credit losses on trade receivables was identified as a key
audit matter.
EREBRBENRBRNAREEBREXNERR  EAHE
EEFEE ZRINGIATRREERE - EBENRE
HARRE SSENBEESL  BESENRERKR -
WEMRLAEEGEFEFEZERRSEREAERE
A BB - FELEXRHAE LT - Bt E5E
WHIREREEBREERE T RERETFE -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.5, 3 and 18 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BFRREHEN G MBEMERME25 3R 18°
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Our audit procedures to assess the provision for expected
credit losses on trade receivables included, among others,
the followings:

BAFEE SRR BEREEBERBEENESEF (P
BIE)WT

o Understanding, evaluating and testing management’s
key controls in relation to the assessment of the
expected credit losses on trade receivables;

e  TH FERAFAEFEESHRKFIARBEES
BEUENEEEMRRES

o Assessing the credit loss provisioning methodology
adopted by management;

o FMEEEEBRANEEERBEL L

. Assessing the forward-looking factors and the
estimated credit loss rates by considering historical
cash collection performance and movements of the
ageing of trade receivables, and taking into account
the market conditions;

o BBERELWHKRENREHEKTIARKRNEE)
WEEMHMR - sHERTEEE R REFEEBRE
&

° Testing, on a sample basis, ageing analysis of trade
receivables prepared by the management;

o HERIEEIEERR A EUSORME DA

o Checking the mathematical accuracy of the calculation
of the provision for loss allowance; and

o REFENENBEREEGNHELEREIE &

o Assessing the adequacy of the Group’s disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements.

o FHE ERERAMBmRTEBENTEIM -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BRETER

B 2 BERE

AR T I8 (#)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANETNAEERERETER

Valuation of investment properties

REYRIEE

As at 31 December 2023, the aggregate carrying amount
of the investment properties was approximately RMB332.7
million.

M2023F12A31H REVENEFREEBORARE
3327A8T°

The Group’s investment properties were stated at fair
values based on valuations carried out by independent
external valuer. Significant judgement is required to
determine the fair values of the investment properties,
which reflects market conditions as at the end of the
reporting period. The use of different valuation
techniques and assumptions could produce significantly
different estimates of fair values. Accordingly, the
valuation of investment properties was identified as a key
audit matter.
EXBEMNREMEREBE LN BEEREITHAER
NPEIER - BEEREMEN D TEZTZELERHE -
i H [ B ¥ & R T 3500 © SRR G E T A R
BRAIEHEE TR D FEME - Bt REMWEDN
HERET SERETER -

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 2.5, 3 and 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

BB ESH N RE M BEHRERMFE25 -3 %14

Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of the
investment properties included, among others, the
followings:

BB EEDENEENTHERREF (AP T :

° Assessing the competency, objectivity and
independence of the valuer, as well as obtained an
understanding of valuation approach and key
assumptions used by the valuer;

o  FIMLHMAERMER FEHERERBUM UKRTH
HEMRANGEEREZREEZRE

o Assessing the validity of the key data used as inputs for
the valuations, and involving our internal valuation
experts to assist in evaluating the valuation
methodology and key valuation parameters used in the
valuation by benchmarking them to relevant market
information on a sampling basis; and

e  AMEAEGERABENBREZENERIE WK
AR AF EEER BB IRMEEER(EE
TERMGEMRERNEREE2HEBBTSER
TEEELL S - M BT R

° Assessing the adequacy of the Group's disclosures
related to the valuation of investment properties in the
consolidated financial statements.

o Mt ERERGEMBHRERPEREMEMLES
MREENT R -
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

B 2 BERE

ZHE M ETFEE
EMEE

KPR B R R AR
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lawrence K.W. Lau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

22 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEeEEk

Year ended 31 December 2023 & = 20234 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
2023 % 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
e ARETR AR®ETT
(Restated)
(=751))
REVENUE U &= 5 725,104 534,223
Cost of sales $H & P AR (578,131) (410,613)
Gross profit EA 146,973 123,610
Other income and gains EAth Y A R Uk 25 5 45,895 17,811
Selling and marketing expenses THE R HAX (3,317) (2,981)
Administrative expenses TR (49,927) (35,457)
Other expenses Efnp (20,971) (1,125)
Finance costs B 75 A AN 7 (15,181) (11,978)
Share of profits and losses of a joint BlE—REERER
venture and associates NI b= E 1,064 (2,013)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R B4 51 R0 8 6 104,536 87,867
Income tax expense FriSFif X 10 (24,414) (22,802)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFHE 80,122 65,065
Profit attributable to: AR A SR
Owners of the parent B RAREE A 74,430 64,106
Non-controlling interests FEERR A 5,692 959
80,122 65,065
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE & 2 B & @ # %
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF B AEMERER
THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted (RMB) EARREE (AR 0.74 0.76
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEWAR

Year ended 31 December 2023 & £ 202312 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 FF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETE
(Restated)
(ieE5)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFHE 80,122 65,065
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS H 2 HER
Other comprehensive loss that will not be REERRBTEENSESE
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BRmEMEEER
periods:
Equity investments designated at fair value EER/ARTETIAEAM
through other comprehensive income: ZEBANRERE
Changes in fair value NEEES (5.420) (21,767)
Income tax effect Fristigs 1,355 5,442
(4,065) (16,325)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FRHEMSEER
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX HIBR B IR (4,065) (16,325)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FAZEBARE
FOR THE YEAR 76,057 48,740
Total comprehensive income attributable to: LA N AT EMG2FEURA4RRE ¢
Owners of the parent ISYNSIEZFSPN 70,365 47,781
Non-controlling interests IRt 5,692 959
76,057 48,740

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BHEFEEREROBERAT/ — T _=FFR

125



126

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

R E B AR R 3R

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=4 ARBTT AREBTT
(Restated)
(geE )
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERZE 13 392,619 410,158
Investment properties BEME 14 332,691 352,981
Other intangible assets HEMmpEE 1,176 694
Investment in a joint venture R—REBEMNIE 1,009 -
Investments in associates REE R RINIRE 16 838 4,778
Equity investments designated at fair EE RN TETIAEA
value through other comprehensive ZHEHB AT RERE
income 17 4,950 70,673
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 15 10,063 10,026
Time deposits TE BRTF 3R 22 - 1,937
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIBEEE 26 5,246 5,622
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 748,592 856,869
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 118 111
Trade receivables B 5 W KIA 18 295,064 176,503
Prepayments, other receivables and TEATFRIE -« H A FEYRIE &
other assets Hh &7 19 28,637 32,695
Financial assets at fair value through NATFEIAB=NSRLEE
profit or loss 20 18,000 -
Due from related parties B Uk FE B 5 7k IR 33 58,736 23,794
Time deposits EHFR 22 69,903
Restricted cash ZRHHEE 22 265 845
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 22 397,318 355,908
Total current assets mENEEAE 868,041 589,856
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables B 5 IR 23 301,328 212,630
Other payables and accruals E fth FE AT 5RIE K B ETFRIE 24 110,201 96,948
Interest-bearing bank loans sTRIRITER 25 10,000 11,250
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 111 -
Due to related parties FE 1 BB B 75 3RIR 33 24,237 28,206
Tax payable FETRLIE 11,326 3,449
Contract liabilities BREE 21 53,726 39,828
Total current liabilities MBI B ERE 510,929 392,311
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 357,112 197,545
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRBAR
LIABILITIES 1,105,704 1,054,414
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI R

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

2023 2022
2023 5 20224
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
e AR%ETR ARBFT
(Restated)
(&5
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBAE
Interest-bearing bank loans FTEIRITER 25 109,063 111,250
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEEE 26 11,556 18,434
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 150 -
Other liabilities HEMAaR 27 174,041 170,974
Total non-current liabilities ERBBERTE 294,810 300,658
Net assets FEE 810,894 753,756
EQUITY s
Share capital % 7K 101,047 101,047
Reserves [ 28 694,981 645,985
Equity attributable to owners HARHE AEGER
of the parent 796,028 747,032
Non-controlling interests FEEAR 14,866 6,724
Total equity TR 810,894 753,756
Cui Xiaodong Zhou Jun
EEL AE
Director Director
3 EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GEREBBHE

Year ended 31 December 2023 & = 20234 12 A31 HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAREAEE
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
through other Asset Non-
Share Share Capital Statutory Retained  comprehensive revaluation controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits income reserve’ Total interests equity
WATES
AEf2E
LN
SHEE BEER
kA RGEE  EARE  iEHE  BRNE OATERE e it FERER W EREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR  ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT  ARETRT  ARETR ARETT  ARETR
(note 28) (note 28)
(F28) (Fizt28)
At 1 January 2022 R02F1A18 75,000 - 263,160 19,693 181,104 8,579 1,616 549,152 4375 553,527
Business combination under RA-EHOERAR
common control - - 12,000 3 (21,268) - - (9,265) - (9,265)
At 1 January 2022 (Restated) RA2%F1A1R
(&5l 75,000 - 275,160 19,696 159,836 8,579 1,616 539,887 4375 544,262
Profit for the year (Restated) R (FE5) - - - - 64,106 - - 64,106 959 65,065
Other comprehensive loss FREMZEER
for the year - - - - - (16,325) - (16,325) - (16,325)
Total comprehensive income FRRENAEE
for the year (Restated) (FE5) - - - - 64,106 (16,325) - 47,781 959 48,740
Capital contribution by FERBRTE
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - 1,390 1,390
Issue of shares EGL O 26,047 168,927 - - - - - 194,974 - 194,974
Share issue expenses OERbT - (35,610) - - - - - (35,610) - (35,610)
Transfer from retained profits ~~ E&EBFHE - - - 6,630 (6,630) - - - - -
As at 31 December 2022 H2022%12A318
(Restated) (E5) 101,047 133317* 275,160 26,326* 217,312¢ (7,746)* 1,616* 747,032 6,724 753,756

*

January 2022.
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occupied property to an investment property carried at fair value before 1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

™~ A
GasE

HE)R

Year ended 31 December 2023 #{ £ 2023F 12 A31HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRRERAERE
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
through other Asset Non-
Share Share Capital Statutory Retained comprehensive  revaluation controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits income reserve’ Total interests equity
DATEFIA
Ht2E
WA
SREEN EEEfR
e RAEE E5RE EERE BHRE  ATERE ! A FERER BRfE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR AR%Tr ARETR ARETz AR¥T:R
(note 28) (note 28)
(Hzt28) (Hstas)
At 1 January 2023 R0BFE1A18 101,047 133317 263,160 26,319 239,241 (7,746) 1,616 756,954 6,724 763,678
Business combination under RE-Ehl AN
common control - - 12,000 1 (21,929) - - (9,922) - (9,922)
At 1 January 2023 (Restated) #2023%1A1R
(& =31) 101,047 133317 275,160 26,326 217312 (7,746) 1616 741,032 6,724 753,756
Profit for the year ERFE - - - - 74,430 - - 74,430 5,692 80,122
Other comprehensive loss FREMZERE
for the year - - - - - (4,065) - (4,065) - (4,065)
Total comprehensive income FR2ENAEE
for the year - - - - 74,430 (4,065) - 70,365 5,692 76,057
Capital contribution by FERBRTE
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - 2,450 2,450
Final 2022 dividend declared ~ SIR202 ERH RS - - - - (17,178) - - (17,178) - (17,178)
Acquisition of subsidiaries under  WEE R Fl— 12k
common control MEAF - - (4,191) - - - - (4,191) - (4191)
Transfer of fair value reserve upon it € AR FAEFI A
the disposal of equity E2ERAL
investrents at fair value REREHER
through other comprehensive AT (B
income - - - 247 2,28 (2,475) - - - -
Transfer from retained profits &% B2 - - - 6,695 (6,695) - - - - -
As at 31 December 2023 H203%12A318 101,047 133,317* 270,969* 33,268* 270,097% (14,286)* 1,616* 796,028 14,866 810,894
# These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated other reserves of ~ # ZERBROBLEEMBMRARFOEGS it
RMB694,981,000 (2022: RMB645,985,000 (restated)) in the consolidated B A K #694,981,0007T (2022F : AR
statement of financial position. 645,985,000 7T (&£ &%) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ll‘/_.]-(/\‘ILﬁl@/ﬂbE%

Year ended 31 December 2023 EZ= 2023 12 A31 BILEE

2023 2022
2023 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt ARBTR ARBTT
(Restated)
(FeE351)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B % AT R 104,536 87,867
Finance costs B IDFIN 7 15,181 11,978
Interest income ) BUA (5,994) (2,805)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE  BEXR
plant and equipment REBHEEREE 39 935
Share of profits of associates and FEIGEEE R T &
a joint venture —REETEFHE (1,064) 2,013
Changes in fair value of investment BEMENRNFEZE)
properties 14 20,290 (3,051)
Depreciation of items of property, Wz BERZEEE
plant and equipment RITE 13 27,063 19,820
Depreciation of items of right-of-use assets {F & EAEE NITE 15 305 232
Gain on disposal of investment HER—KEE QT
in an associate KEBIE (1,288) -
Amortisation of other intangible assets Efhm A EE 86 172
159,154 117,161
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & Em, md 7) 66
Increase in trade receivables B 5 e R IE 8 N (118,561) (75,133)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TERFIE - ke Rk
other receivables H fth fE R IE R 1,332 4,272
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from e W R B 5 SRR
related parties (), (34,942) 11,481
Increase in amounts due to related parties  J&{< B HE 7 7k 1B 1E A0 3,555 4,357
Increase in trade payables B 5 eI sRIEIE AN 127,324 11,396
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and H b A FE &
accruals FEETFRIEIE A, O 2> 3,526 (8,716)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities A& m Ced ) 13,898 (35,191)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash xﬁE HIIR S m A (1) 580 (403)
Cash generated from operations KrEmERS 155,859 29,290
Income tax paid SR (21,043) (22,309)
Net cash flows from operating activities KBRS MEFR 134,816 6,981
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REEERER

Year ended 31 December 2023 (£ 2023 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
2023 F 2022
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ihg=3 ARBTR AREKTE
(Restated)
(geE )
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETBNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEWE  BERRBIER
plant and equipment (48,459) (57,018)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME - HE &
plant and equipment REBIEE S FEOR 270 84
Disposal of investment in an associate HER—KEZEAFRAERE 5,808 -
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments &5 F A A FE
designated at fair value through other HAEH M2 E A
comprehensive income kiR & RS 5 IE 59,477 -
Purchase of wealth management BEEVE®D
products (18,000) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries under W B 52 [ — 2 ) O BfT /B8 2 R
common control - -
Additions to other intangible assets FLh 5 F & EE S AN (568) (522)
Investments in associates REEE R B HIRE (285) -
Investment in a joint venture R—REBLEMNIRE (1,000) -
Increase in time deposits TE BB E G N (67,966) (1,937)
Dividend received B R B 760 -
Interest received B & 5,994 2,805
Net cash flows used in investing activites & & /EBFTAR S REFE (63,969) (56,588)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BT PTIS FR A - 194,974
Share issue expenses f&1n 81T 2 (2,837) (23,812)
Acquisition of subsidiaries under W B 52 [R) — 12 ) O BfT /B8 2 R
common control (4,191) -
Repayment of advance from related parties 18 i& 3¢ B BB /7 HO v 5% 33 (16,012) (57,000)
Advance from related parties R B BT KR 33 8,500 12,212
New interest-bearing bank loans FIGET BIRITE N 119,063 -
Repayment of interest-bearing BEBTERITER
bank loans 25 (122,500) (21,250)
Principal portion of lease payments HENRNAS IS 15 (88) -
Interest paid EHE (12,107) (13,838)
Dividends paid EARE 11 (4,625) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling  JFIZRR AR R ST &
shareholders 2,450 1,390
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing BEES (FTR),Fifs
activities HenEFR (32,347) 92,676
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

an\ IE%/}ILE%

Year ended 31 December 2023 & = 20234 12 A31 HILFE

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt ARBTR ARBTT
(Restated)
(geE )
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERRESEYEMFAR
EQUIVALENTS 38,500 43,069
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FUNReRBELFEY
of year 355,908 307,853
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [ & & 85 £ %% 2,910 4,986
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ~ FARIRE KBS HEY 397,318 355,908
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASHAND HRE&RBELZBYA BRI
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances B e MIRTTH 22 316,023 177,470
Non-pledged time deposits with original RUEER RE B E DR
maturity of less than three months =& A & K3 B E
when acquired 81,560 179,283
Restricted cash ZRHHR® 22 (265) (845)
Cash and cash equivalents ReLKRESEEY 397,318 355,908
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company established in the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) on 12 April 1994. The
registered office of the Company is located at Suzhou Gaoxin
Plaza, 28 Shishan Road, New District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,
China. The Company was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
24 August 2022.

During the year, the Group was principally engaged in the
provision of city services and property management services.
The controlling shareholder of the Company is Suzhou Sugaoxin
Group Co., Ltd. (“"SND Company”), a wholly state-owned
company established in the PRC.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as
follows:

B 5 ¥R 3= I

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H
UNEIE-§ =

KRB R —FRKNI1994F4R12B & F
EAREME (HED K ZHERAD
A HeFfAisEE it A BB A &
M= R B 28 SRR M S 3T E 5 -
KNANBIR2022F8A24HEEFTAEHA
RGFABRAR ([BERA]) ER £ -

FA AEEXEXFRHEBTEDE
BHEIRY - RARMNERBER BN HE
Rz EEACEHMNFESTEEER
REl([HEHAA]) -

MEARE

alj

ARBEEMBARFEAT :

Place and date of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued ordinary/ Percentage of equity
registration and place  registered share interest attributable
Entity name of operations to the Company Principal activities
MR,/ TR BRAEE/
ERER REBREERE AMBRAEE  ALAEEEREAL IERH
Direct Indirect
HE 3
% %
Suzhou Golden Lion Building Development PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB104,271,300 100 - Property management
Management Co., Ltd* 28 October 1992
("Golden Lion")
(notes (a) and (b))
BINEHAEZRERBRAA(£H)) hE/RER NREE
(P2 () B (b)) 19924104281 104,271,300
Suzhou Xingang Municipal Greening Service Co., ~ PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB12,000,000 100 - City services
Ltd* ("Xingang Municipal Greening”) 13 April 2011
(notes (a) and (b))
FMET B REBRAA e/ hERL T IR
([FrAm B ) (5 () R (b)) 2011547138 12,000,0007C
Suzhou Keshang Property Service Co., Ltd* PRC/Chinese Mainland RMB5,000,000 80 - Property management
("Keshang Property Service") 31 December 2014
(notes (a) and (b))
UESE

BB HDEREERAR (NEWERE) SB/FER
GEIEND) 20145128317

5,000,0007C
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

1.

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

(@  The English names of the entities registered in Chinese
Mainland represent the best efforts made by the
management of the Company to directly translate their
Chinese names as they did not register any official English
names.

(b)  Registered as domestic limited liability companies under
PRC law.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs"),
which comprise all standards and interpretations approved by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for investment properties
and equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in RMB and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

B % R AR Y R

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

2.1 IRBLEE @)

HE2023F12A31HIEFENLGEE
BHEBDERRRRENB AR (51HE
[REE]) OB BRE - WEBAFR AKX
NEEENHAEZEFNER (RIEEE
MEE) ZTAEEAERZTALEE
B R AT B 3R R bR S AE T LA K gE 8
AEHREHROEN (BIXEERAE
REFIE T AEBIRR A H T ERE
HERWEREE) ¥ 2ZZ 0 W - 8
B /542 I 4 o

—RME EEZBURRRT RIS
B HARREEIRNREHRAZH
BRESBLERN - AAEERFHES
BREHREHRNENSEEE YA
MEBERER B

() HERBEHRMEMEZEFEA
HB Bk

(o) HMANTHMELNER &

(0 =&&

JiE]

MR BB ERE -

S a8 2 =] 55K A BN A I AR R e i A
—HEFHRRREHMERR - WER
BIMEENARBEUSES# 2 B2
BAMK EEEBIEKRILEZAL-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the
related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, any non-controlling
interest and the exchange fluctuation reserve; and recognises
the fair value of any investment retained and any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

RESTATEMENTS ARISING FROM BUSINESS
COMBINATIONS UNDER COMMON
CONTROL

On 10 August 2023, Golden Lion and Suzhou Gaoxin Zhitai
Innovation Development Co., Ltd. (“Zhitai”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of SND Company, entered into an agreement,
pursuant to which Golden Lion agreed to acquire 100% equity
interests of Suzhou Sutong Kejia Electromechanical Engineering
Co., Ltd. (“Kejia") from Zhitai at a consideration of RMB1.
According to a valuation conducted by an independent valuer
as at 31 December 2022, the appraised value of sale equity
amounted to the net liabilities of Kejia of approximately RMB14
million based on the asset-based approach. Upon completion of
such acquisition, Kejia became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 RESTATEMENTS ARISING FROM BUSINESS

COMBINATIONS UNDER COMMON
CONTROL (Continued)

On 10 August 2023, Zhitai and Suzhou High tech Zone Water
Supply Co., Ltd. (“Suzhou Water Supply Co"), a subsidiary of
SND Company, entered into an agreement with Golden Lion,
pursuant to which Zhitai and Suzhou Water Supply Co agreed
to transfer their respective 49% and 51% equity interests in
Suzhou Runjia Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Runjia”) to Golden Lion
at considerations of approximately RMB2,054,000 and
RMB2,137,000, respectively, which were determined with
reference to a valuation conducted by an independent valuer as
at 31 December 2022 based on the asset-based approach.
Upon completion of such acquisition, Runjia became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Since Kejia, Runjia and Golden Lion were under the common
control of SND Company before and after the acquisition. The
Group accounted for the combination by applying the principles
of merger accounting, and the results of the acquired
subsidiaries have been combined from the date when they first
came under the control of the controlling shareholder.

The assets and liabilities of the acquired subsidiaries have been
reflected at their existing carrying values at the date of
combination. No amount has been recognised in respect of
goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over cost at the time of common control combination,
which, instead, has been recorded in capital reserve in equity.

Accordingly, the consolidated statement of profit or loss,
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been
restated to include the assets and liabilities and the operating
results of the acquired subsidiaries. The consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022 has been restated
to include the carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of
the acquired subsidiaries (see below for the financial impacts).

2.2

B 355 R 2= M

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

X [A — PR B B E A GF AT
SIEERIES (@)

720238108 ' EHRRMSFT AT
BT A Rl Ek M = T [@ B ZROK AR A A
(T&MBRAKDT]) ESRME] 5B
B Z R ER N B RK A RRE S B
REH ARY2,054,000 M AR
2,137,000 7T [M] & ¥ ¥4 3% & B BT 5 &R M
HEIEREBRAA([BEE]) 49% &
51% M #E - 2 RB L HER N 2022F
RANBREEEREMETHERE
E oz SWESHETRE  BEKAR
NElZBEWEBRAR -

HRME  BRkeHERBAT®RER
e ARR—EY AKERAA
et RAE S HETZE  WKREN
BRARMESEBHEBRIZIERERRZ G
ZBEEH-

REBEHBARNEERARE KRR
HRAHBEHNREREE - IREE
ST RETR R —EFINA T
BB ARBIEE RERKARE
MR FEBERANER - WEER
TS MERNERI SEARER -

At #E2022F 12831 B L FEH
BREBERER BE2ERAR HKEE
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MR - 2022912 A31 B MER
B BARRRELEN - Ut AU S
MBARMEERAEBREE (MBR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

2.2 RESTATEMENTS ARISING FROM BUSINESS
COMBINATIONS UNDER COMMON
CONTROL (Continued)

2.2 XA —EH XA 6P
SIEHES &)

BHEEHE2022F 12 A31HIEF

The effect of restatements described above on the consolidated ot
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December B */\TE

SR ELEGEIBEE S RN
2022 by line items is as follows: I
Effect of
business
combination
under common
2022 control 2022
Z[E—1EH
K FE TS E O
20224 Eof2 2022 £
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T ARETF T ARETF T
(Audited and
originally stated) (Restated)
(EEZRIR) (geE5)
REVENUE W= 521,965 12,258 534,223
Cost of sales B AR (400,618) (9,995) (410,613)
Gross profit EH 121,347 2,263 123,610
Other income and gains E A Rk = 17,753 58 17,811
Selling and marketing expenses ~ $H% & & 855 % (2,981) - (2,981)
Administrative expenses THRX (33,115) (2,342) (35,457)
Other expenses B (1,125) - (1,125)
Finance costs B 7 B 7R (11,343) (635) (11,978)
Share of profits and losses of FE(REEE AR
associates (2,013) - (2,013)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B 11 A1 A1 E 88,523 (656) 87,867
Income tax expense Frisfimx (22,801) (1) (22,802)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F AT 65,722 (657) 65,065
Profit attributable to: AR A £ REAE R
Owners of the parent [EYNSIEZESPN 64,763 (657) 64,106
Non-controlling interests IR R 959 - 959
65,722 (657) 65,065
Basic and diluted (RMB) ERREE(ARET) 0.77 (0.01) 0.76
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R A Y &

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

2.2 RESTATEMENTS ARISING FROM BUSINESS 22 XA — BB ELEE A
COMBINATIONS UNDER COMMON S| EEMES (@)
CONTROL (Continued)

Pt E N EEE 2022612 A31 B IEF
ERA2HRARNFEILGEER 7

The effect of restatements described above on the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31

December 2022 by line items is as follows: REATR
Effect of
business
combination
under common
2022 control 2022
= [ — 1zl
HEBE O
2022 4 & 2022 4
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARBFT ARBTT ARBFT
(Audited and
originally stated) (Restated)
(FeEZRIRT) (5 E5)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS Hin 2 HEE
Other comprehensive loss that will 714 4 HAfS 16 1~ &
not be reclassified to profit or EFOEZEREN
loss in subsequent periods: HM2MmEE :
Equity investments designated BERNARTFEIIA
at fair value through other Hi2EBAL
comprehensive income: iR E -
Changes in fair value N EE (21,767) - (21,767)
Income tax effect Frigfis & 5,442 - 5,442
(16,325) - (16,325)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FREMEHEES
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX BRI IE (16,325) - (16,325)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  F A 2 4R A 4258
FOR THE YEAR 49,397 (657) 48,740
Total comprehensive income UTATEGEERE
attributable to: A 4258
Owners of the parent ISNEIE PPN 48,438 (657) 47,781
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR A 959 - 959
49,397 (657) 48,740
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.2 RESTATEMENTS ARISING FROM BUSINESS 22 XA —1EHINELEE A

COMBINATIONS UNDER COMMON S| RERVE T (@)
CONTROL (Continued)
The effect of restatements on the consolidated statement of EH 2022912 A31 B A BEHK
financial position as at 31 December 2022 is as follows: MERHZEW D -
Effect of
business
combination
under common
2022 control 2022
Z[E—4EH
HIEBE O
2022 % VB 2022 4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT ARBTT ARBFT
(Audited and

originally stated) (Restated)
(eEZRIR) (geE 7))
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEREE 409,570 588 410,158
Investment properties EYE 352,981 - 352,981
Other intangible assets HEmmpEE 694 - 694
Investment in a joint venture R—RKEEREN
®E 4,778 - 4,778
Equity investments designated EERNARFETIA
at fair value through other H2HEBAL
comprehensive income fr iR & 70,673 - 70,673
Right-of-use assets FHELE 10,026 - 10,026
Time deposits FHBFER 1,937 - 1,937
Deferred tax assets EEFIRE E 5,622 - 5,622
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 856,281 588 856,869
CURRENT ASSETS B EE
Inventories B 111 - 111
Trade receivables B 5 W KRIE 176,503 - 176,503
Prepayments, other receivables TR IR - HADREU
and other assets IR EMEE 32,589 106 32,695
Due from related parties e W B B 5 IR 19,008 4,786 23,794
Restricted cash SRS 845 - 845
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBELFEY 350,909 4,999 355,908
Total current assets RBEERE 579,965 9,891 589,856
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R A Y &

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

2.2 RESTATEMENTS ARISING FROM BUSINESS 22 XA — BB ELEE A

COMBINATIONS UNDER COMMON

SIEHES #)

CONTROL (Continued)
Effect of
business
combination
under common
2022 control 2022
S E— 1l
REBA O
2022 4F -7 2022 F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT ARETIT
(Audited and
originally stated) (Restated)
(BEZRIRT]) (&E:5))
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBeE
Trade payables B 5 IR 211,820 810 212,630
Other payables and accruals E fth fE AT 5RIE 2
JEETFRIA 95,169 1,779 96,948
Interest-bearing bank loans SHEIRITER 11,250 - 11,250
Due to related parties FE AT BB S 75 3R 10,394 17,812 28,206
Tax payable FETRLIE 3,449 - 3,449
Contract liabilities aHRaE 39,828 - 39,828
Total current liabilities mEBELE 371,910 20,401 392,311
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEBEEFE 208,055 (10,510) 197,545
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERREEE
LIABILITIES 1,064,336 (9,922) 1,054,414
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans HEIRITER 111,250 - 111,250
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBEEE 18,434 - 18,434
Other liabilities EmaE 170,974 - 170,974
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEAR 300,658 - 300,658
Net assets FEE 763,678 (9,922) 753,756
EQUITY Eam
Share capital N 101,047 - 101,047
Reserves {1 655,907 (9,922) 645,985
Equity attributable to owners [SYNSIEZESPN
of the parent JE(R = 756,954 (9,922) 747,032
Non-controlling interests AR R 6,724 - 6,724
Total equity T 763,678 (9,922) 753,756
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R AR Y R

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IAS 1 and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies

IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single

Transaction

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar

Two Model Rules

The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs that are

applicable to the Group are described below:

(@ Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2
Making Materiality Judgements provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to
accounting policy disclosures. The Group has disclosed the
material accounting policy information in note 2 to the
financial statements. The amendments did not have any
impact on the measurement, recognition or presentation

of any items in the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined as
monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject
to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify
how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to
develop accounting estimates. Since the Group's approach
and policy align with the amendments, the amendments
had no impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow the
scope of the initial recognition exception in IAS 12 so that
it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax asset
(provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from
these transactions.

Since the Group’s approach and policy align with the
amendments and has no leases other than leasehold land
before 1 January 2023, the amendments had no impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar Two
Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary exception from
the recognition and disclosure of deferred taxes arising from the
implementation of the Pillar Two model rules published by the
Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development. The
amendments also introduce disclosure requirements for the
affected entities to help users of the financial statements better
understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income taxes,
including the disclosure of current tax related to Pillar Two
income taxes separately in the periods when Pillar Two
legislation is effective and the disclosure of known or reasonably
estimable information of their exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted or
substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively. Since the Group did
not fall within the scope of the Pillar Two model rules, the
amendments did not have any impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not adopted the following revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised IFRSs, if
applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)’

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with

Covenants (the “2022
Amendments”)’

Amendments to IAS 7 Supplier Finance Arrangements’

and IFRS 7

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10
Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures in dealing with the loss of control
of a subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate or joint
venture. The amendments clarify that a full gain or loss is
recognised when a transfer to an associate or joint venture
involves a business as defined in IFRS 3. Any gain or loss
resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that does not
constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent
of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and
leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does not
recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the
right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16 (i.e.,
1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on
the Group's financial statements.

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current, including what is meant by
a right to defer settlement and that a right to defer must exist
at the end of the reporting period. Classification of a liability is
unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right
to defer settlement. The amendments also clarify that a liability
can be settled in its own equity instruments, and that only if a
conversion option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for
as an equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify that,
among covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement,
only those with which an entity must comply on or before the
reporting date affect the classification of that liability as current
or non-current. Additional disclosures are required for non-
current liabilities that are subject to the entity complying with
future covenants within 12 months after the reporting period.
The amendments shall be applied retrospectively with early
application permitted. An entity that applies the 2020
Amendments early is required to apply simultaneously the 2022
Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amendments and whether existing loan
agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary
assessment, the amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the characteristics of
supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure
of such arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the
amendments are intended to assist users of financial statements
in understanding the effects of supplier finance arrangements
on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk.
Earlier application of the amendments is permitted. The
amendments provide certain transition reliefs regarding
comparative information, quantitative information as at the
beginning of the annual reporting period and interim
disclosures. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and
how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a measurement
date when exchangeability is lacking. The amendments require
disclosures of information that enable users of financial
statements to understand the impact of a currency not being
exchangeable. Earlier application is permitted. When applying
the amendments, an entity cannot restate comparative
information. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits or to the cumulative amount
of translation differences accumulated in a separate component
of equity, where appropriate, at the date of initial application.
The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described in the
accounting policy for subsidiaries below. A change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii) the
fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets and liabilities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company'’s profit
or loss to the extent of dividends received and receivable.

Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

If the investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not
remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted
for under the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of
significant influence over the associate or joint control over the
joint venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained
investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant
influence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or
loss.

When there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes,
when applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associate are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's investment in the associate, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
assets transferred.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities in which the common
control combination occurs as if they had been combined from
the date when the combining entities or businesses first came
under the control of the ultimate controlling party.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss, statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows of the Group include the results and
cash flows of all companies and/or businesses now comprising
the Group from the earliest date presented or since the date
when the subsidiaries first came under the common control of
the controlling shareholder, where this is a shorter period.

The consolidated statement of financial position of the Group
has been prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiaries and/or businesses using the existing book values
from the controlling shareholder’s perspective.

No adjustments are made to reflect fair values or recognise any
new assets or liabilities as a result of business combinations
under common control.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities had been combined
at the end of the prior reporting period or when they first came
under common control, whichever is shorter.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the
Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of
the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it
can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each of the reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (Continued)
(b) (Continued)

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BHEFEEREROBERLT/ —T_=FFR

25 BEESEEE @)

BAEE TS (&)
(b) (&)

Wiy @OFIEEHALTHZER
BEAFENNBALER (K
ZERNGRAR)WMEIEE
BABHRMKE &

(vii) ZEERNZEEMBEELEEDN
EHEXE\’A?WZ}KEI&$
EENFARIRETEETIE
AN BRTE °

ME - BERRBERITE

MR BE MR E (ERTRERIN K
AR REH T E MR E R BRI AR
WE BMELREREXABREREE
RSEBEEZERTEREMFEEMRE
R 3 36 AT EE AE ) (LR E R B AT BOAS ©

[TLV/

WME - BEMRBEHEBEFREENX
H-mEEREE  —RRELHBEE
BRI - £ A ERIFFNBER
T EARENHAXENEEREET
BEXCEREEEE -WOE  BEER
BROEBAHASIREE  AAKEE
1 7% 5 2 2 AR B S E I ME AR R HIRY
BRI EE - WM EHRITE



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 2%-3%
Vehicles 9%-19%
Machinery and others 18%-33%
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to
earn rental income. Such properties are measured initially at
cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which
reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of other intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Other
intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at each financial year end.

Software
Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment loss

and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 10 years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.

At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a
lease component and non-lease components, the Group adopts
the practical expedient not to separate non-lease components
and to account for the lease component and the associated
non-lease components (e.g., property management services for
leases of properties) as a single lease component.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 50 years
Building 3 years
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(@) Right-of-use assets (Continued)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change in
assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(¢)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for
on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

B % R AR Y R

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

25 EE SR @)

HE @)

FEBEREBEA (B

(c) FHHE
AEBEKEHEEERRRER
REFHEHEE (BeEEMK

HERRETHBR12@EAZAT
YTATEEEEENEE) -

SHIHEMBEEFRERBANZ
BEREERRAX -
FEEAERHEA
EASEERLEA HREERIKE
(RBLEHELER) SETEHRENR

RIEEHEXRMERS -

PREAREEY REREEMBEMMS

Z@BAHHEBRREBNHEERERE
ERE - HAHREBERIAEN

CAEERBHEBELEERSONR
{;g;ﬁ CEEERD - HEWRAREHA
BERRIER THRELENRE -5
ABRRZWE - REBRTBHRER
EREEMNVTREERRATIGAREE
ERNREE XWX EBARAR 7 AR
RAESWA - HAHEE TIR AT HREXH
Hi iR W et

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023

BHRXFEERBROERAR/ T _=FFH

161



162

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the
effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a
financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments. Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit of loss. Dividends are recognised as
other income in the statement of profit of loss when the right
of payment has been established, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income are not subject
to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised as
other income in the statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that
result from default events that are possible within the next 12
months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track
changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and interest-bearing bank loans
and other liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other payables,
and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and interest-
bearing borrowings and other liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of
profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. The net
realisable value is estimated based on current market situation
and historical experience on similar inventories.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position
comprise cash on hand and at banks, and short-term highly
liquid deposits with a maturity of generally within three months
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value and held for the
purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of
profit or loss net of any reimbursement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions (Continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the country in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the Group receives government loans granted with no or
at a below-market rate of interest for the construction of a
qualifying asset, the initial carrying amount of the government
loans is determined using the effective interest rate method, as
further explained in the accounting policy for “Financial
liabilities” above. The benefit of the government loans granted
with no or at a below-market rate of interest, which is the
difference between the initial carrying value of the loans and
the proceeds received, is treated as a government grant and
released to the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated
at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

a)

Commercial property management services

Under the commercial property management and
operational service segment, the Group provides (i) basic
commercial property management services offered to
industrial parks, office buildings, apartments and
commercial complexes and (ii) value-added services, such
as carpark space management services, resource
management services, property agency services and other
customized services.

For basic commercial property management services, the
Group charges property management fees in respect of
basic commercial property management services on a
lump sum basis and on a commission basis.

On a lump sum basis, the Group is entitled to retain the
full amount of the property management fees received.
From the property management fees, the Group shall bear
expenses associated with, among others, staff, cleaning,
garbage disposal, gardening and landscaping, security and
general overheads covering the common areas. During
the term of the contract, if the amount of property
management fees which the Group collected is not
sufficient to cover all the expenses incurred, the Group is
not entitled to request the property owners to pay the
shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
as revenue the full amount of property management fees
the Group charged to the property owners and property
developers.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

a)

Commercial property management services (Continued)

These services are performed by an indeterminate number
of acts over a specified period of time. Accordingly,
revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
specified period unless there is evidence that some other
methods better represent the stage of completion, and
the cost of services is recognised as incurred in connection
with performing such services.

On a commission basis, the Group is entitled to a fixed
percentage of management fees which the property
owners and property developers are obligated to pay over
a specific contract period. The remainder of the
management fees is used as property management
working capital to cover the property management
expenses associated with the property management work.
In the event of a surplus of working capital after
deducting the relevant property management expenses,
the surplus is generally repayable to the customer. In the
event of a shortfall of working capital to pay for the
relevant property management expenses, the Group may
need to make up for the shortfall and pay on behalf of
the community management offices first, with a right to
recover from the residents subsequently.

On a commission basis, the Group essentially acts as an
agent of the property owners and property developers
and accordingly, the Group only recognises as its revenue
the predetermined property management fees on a
straight-line basis over the specified contract period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

a)

b)

Commercial property management services (Continued)

Revenue from value-added services mainly includes
carpark space management services, resource
management services and property agency services
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from value-added services also includes
temporary parking service and housing repair services
recognised at a point in time when the service has been
provided.

Residential property management services

Under the residential property management, the Group
provides (i) basic residential property management services
and (ii) value-added services, such as carpark space
management services, resource management services,
property agency services and other customized services.

Similar to basic commercial property management, for
basic residential property management services, the Group
charges property management fees in respect of basic
residential property management services on a lump sum
basis and on a commission basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

b)

Residential property management services (Continued)

On a lump sum basis, the Group is entitled to retain the
full amount of the property management fees received.
From the property management fees, the Group shall bear
expenses associated with, among others, staff, cleaning,
garbage disposal, gardening and landscaping, security and
general overheads covering the common areas. During
the term of the contract, if the amount of property
management fees which the Group collected is not
sufficient to cover all the expenses incurred, the Group is
not entitled to request the property owners to pay the
shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group recognises
as revenue the full amount of property management fees
the Group charged to the property owners and property
developers.

These services are performed by an indeterminate number
of acts over a specified period of time. Accordingly,
revenue is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
specified period unless there is evidence that some other
methods better represent the stage of completion, and
the cost of services is recognised as incurred in connection
with performing such services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

b)

Residential property management services (Continued)

On a commission basis, the Group is entitled to a fixed
percentage of management fees which the property
owners and property developers are obligated to pay over
a specific contract period. The remainder of the
management fees is used as property management
working capital to cover the property management
expenses associated with the property management work.
In the event of a surplus of working capital after
deducting the relevant property management expenses,
the surplus is generally repayable to the customer. In the
event of a shortfall of working capital to pay for the
relevant property management expenses, the Group may
need to make up for the shortfall and pay on behalf of
the community management offices first, with a right to
recover from the residents subsequently.

On a commission basis, the Group essentially acts as an
agent of the property owners and property developers
and accordingly, the Group only recognises as its revenue
the predetermined property management fees on a
straight-line basis over the specified contract period.

Revenue from value-added services mainly includes
carpark space management services, resource
management services and property agency services
recognised over the scheduled period on a straight-line
basis because the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from value-added services also includes
temporary parking service and housing repair services
recognised at a point in time when the service has been
provided.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

c

d)

e)

City services

City services include (i) municipal infrastructure services; (ii)
public facility management services and (iii) construction
and operation of municipal waste collection centers.
Revenue from city services is recognised over time or at a
point of time when the relevant services are rendered.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or

a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before

the Group transfers the related services. Contract liabilities are

recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the

contract (i.e., transfers control of the related services to the

customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain proportion
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Interim
dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant
the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as
a liability when they are proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

2.5 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

The financial statements is presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of
the advance consideration.

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BHMEFEERBROBRAR/ T -_=FFR

25 EB@SHEE ®)

S

MBEBRERARRANNEEBEAREZ
bl AEBASEEBBITREENESR
BAASERYBHRRNEAR K
WEEEEIIE - REBEERRBHINEG
RPNTRXZHEREEBERANIEE
BEEERAR - UINEIIBRNE R EE
LBERREHERERANEERE
TE FEYIBREEERAELNE
RN ERRER -

BINBEE KA ENIFERIAEBER
e X 5 B M ERGBE o ASNEFHE
BAVEMENIFEBREREERYT
BEEAMERRE - RRFEFENI
EXERREELN R AR ERE
RELBENAFEEHRALERE -
MR EE (BAFERGEREERRNE
hEEBARBRERNIERNWBREE
B BIRNEMA 2 ERA IR ER)

RETVIEEREREE « K ILHER

RIENRENFEREENIFEREE
AR ANERR  EARX5EH
RAEENHEERANREELNIE
HEEXFERRBEZIA - WEEZE
BENRERFAWHRIE  AEEEREE
BNRENNREREERS A -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s Financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group
considers whether a property generates cash flows largely
independently of the other assets held by the Group. Some
properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions could
not be sold separately, the property is an investment property
only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group'’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in
the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group'’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The valuation of the investment properties involves estimates
and assumption on items such as the selection of comparable
properties and market price.

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of
sources or estimation of fair value of investment properties,
including:

(@ current prices in an active market for properties of a
different nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar properties on less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the dates of the transactions that
occurred at those prices; and discounted cash flow
projections based on reliable estimates of future cash
flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease and
other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the
same location and condition, and using discount rates
that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty
in the amount and timing of the cash flows.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair value
measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are given in note 14 to
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are included in note 26 to the financial
statements.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on the
market approach or asset-based approach. The valuation
requires the Group to determine the comparable public
companies (peers) and select the price multiple. In addition, the
Group makes estimates about the discount for illiquidity and
size differences. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 3. Further details are included in note 35 to
the financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in
a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate
("IBR") to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest
that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar
term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain
an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the
Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that
do not enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for
example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is required to
make certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s
stand-alone credit rating).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s
business which includes commercial property management
services, residential property management services, city services
and rental income for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Information
reported to the Group's chief operating decision maker, for the
purpose of resource allocation and performance assessment,
focuses on the operating results of the Group as a whole as the
Group's resources are integrated. Therefore, no discrete
operating segment information is available. Accordingly, no
further operating segment information is presented.

B % R AR Y R

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

B R HE LA @

EET FABE R (@)
HE — AEHEBEERER

AEEEZIEZETHEAMBE ST
TR EREEREMNE (BEE
BRI EHERBE -BERENX
BASERBELUEERSE S HIERE
AEEEBEEMAOICEE  MmUEALKE
BB LUREEARFTESEINZ
M- - BEEEFRRRTAE
B[S AR R - B\ A BRAR X
B (L BT U REIZNMBAR) K
BRYMNEETHBEARBREE 2 KX
Ko A B (9020 3 3 DART /8 X B RO ) B
EREE)  RIZAFERFIRMGEE - E0
BEEGABBA AN AREERATE
ERABER (MBS HER) GEREER
MR AL ET BB ENGE (10
B QR Z EREERFR) -

EEEEFELERD K MEMF G 2R
RESERASEEB 2 REEE 8
EREMEXEERT EEVXREER
BowmRELRESKRA - AREED
BEREBERG  BMUAETERKER
A MAASEEREERREN
BENERAERAREMNEBEER
AR ESBEEDHBEF AR
oA WEE-F2HNELEDHE
£t o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical information

During the year, the Group operated within one geographical
location because all of its revenue was generated in Chinese
Mainland and all of its non-current assets/capital expenditure
were located/incurred in Chinese Mainland. Accordingly, no
further geographical information is presented.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2023, revenue of
approximately RMB160,115,000 (2022 : RMB116,638,000) was
derived from the provision of city services and rental income to
a single customer. Except for the above, no revenue from other
customers accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue
of the Group.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

KBS EE R )

HEER

FA- HRAEERBEREHNFTER
WESE  BEMAFRDEE EAMH
XA P BN EPEAmES
AEBEEE-REE - At WEE
—FE2EEF -

FHREIEEFHNESR

HZE2023F12A31BLEFE  HAR
#160,115,0007C (20224 : AR #
116,638,0007T) MR A M E —& P
R TR RS WA o B ESCAr
BN BEREEMEFHREGE RS
B AUz 10% A E o

Wam ~ WA KL

W 2 e h

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 FF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT
(Restated)
(geE5)

Revenue from contracts with customers ERP &
Commercial property management services & 3 %) % & 12 R 1% 195,191 188,211
Residential property management services  {E =¥ ¥ & 12 R 1% 60,096 65,622
City services W AR 453,111 256,767
708,398 510,600

Revenue from other sources H A KR Mz
Rental income EE 2 ON 16,706 23,623
Total Bt 725,104 534,223
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 2k B =

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

5. Yeam » WA K Mam o)

Revenue from contracts with customers BEFEHNE
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (a) MoW=EEHR
Commercial  Residential
property property
management management
services services  City services Total
HEME et/ S
EERE EERE R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AR¥Tn ARETR AR%Tx
For the year ended HZE2023F12A31H
31 December 2023 IEFE
Rendering of services RERE 195,191 60,096 453,111 708,398
Geographical market BE TS
Chinese Mainland R 195,191 60,096 453,111 708,398
Timing of revenue recognition ~ WHEREME
Services transferred over time BE B 8 75 60 B 7% 190,532 56,419 453,111 700,062
Services transferred at a point in time 7E X {ElFs P 2, 851 10 AR 75 4,659 3,677 - 8,336
Total revenue from contracts BREANKERBS
with customers 195,191 60,096 453,111 708,398
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& - HMEA KK E @)
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers EEEHWE #)
(Continued)
(a) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (a) HMOWZER (&)
Commercial Residential
property property
management  management
services services  City services Total
HEME FEME
BB RS EBR% W R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
For the year ended HE2NENANBLEE
31 December 2022 (Restated) (mE71)
Rendering of services REERE 188,211 65,622 256,767 510,600
Geographical market wEH T 5
Chinese Mainland HEIRH 188,211 65,622 256,767 510,600
Timing of revenue recognition ~ WHBEAER
Services transferred over time R A B RS 183,502 60,338 256,767 500,607
Services transferred at a point in time 72 2 {5 & 2 & 7 10 R 75 4,709 5284 - 9,993
Total revenue from contracts EFAHNERE
with customers 188,211 65,622 256,767 510,600
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the

5.

B 355 R 2= M

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

e ~ HaW A RIS )

BEFEHWE &)

() MHWEEHR (F)

TRIRA R E HEER O M s
2 REFERFTABRSHIN
BHEE UsBEHEENE

reporting period and recognised from performance HEEMER
obligations satisfied in previous periods:
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%TR ARBTT
(Restated)
(5&E5)
Revenue recognised that was included ~ FFARE AN EER
in contract liabilities at beginning of iR
the reporting period:
Rendering of services REHRE 39,828 75,019

Performance obligations

For commercial property management services, residential
property management services and city services, the
Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals to
the right to invoice which correspond directly with the
value to the customer of the Group’s performance to
date, on a regular basis. The Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclose the transaction price
allocated to the remaining performance obligation for
these types of contracts.

(b) BEHEH

BREEDEEERYE EXW
EEERBEBRTRE  AKH
TR FN A ERILE
ENERE HEXEEHLZS /L
MENENEFPNEBERERYE -
AEECEEERANEEZF
NHBERBEIEEZFHLA
MRBBOBBOIHER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W& - AU KIS )
(Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEHNWE(#)
(Continued)
(b) Performance obligations (Continued) (b) BH=EH(E)
An analysis of other income and gains is as follows: HEmBAREmASTET
2023 2022
2023 20224
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt 5 ARBTT AREBTT
(Restated)
(FEY))
Other income E A
Relocation compensation mEBRHE 29,461 -
Interest income F B YA 5,994 2,805
Government grants* I 70 B * 4,704 5,335
Foreign exchange differences,net  SNE Z 58558 2,910 4,986
Others il 1,538 1,634
Total other income H A W A 858 44,607 14,760
Gains W g
Gain on disposal of interests HE—REE QT
in an associate - Fntolige 1,288 -
Fair value gains on investment WEMERN R FERE 14
properties - 3,051
Other income and gains o N € 45,895 17,811
* The amount represents subsidies received from local * ZEEEWER B BN EEA S T
government authorities in connection with certain financial WHCEETHB I EOEE - Z2EH
support to local business enterprises. These government RHDETERE T E@EE - (RER
subsidies mainly comprised subsidies for listing incentives, FRBAREMEE/E RZE T ED
subsidies for employment promotion and other miscellaneous #2E) o I A B 3% B R BT 4 BY AR
subsidies and incentives for various purposes. There are no 8 B R R G o
unfulfilled conditions relating to such government subsidies
recognized.
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 355 R 2= M

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

6. FRAATFE

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBBRBAFEE NG, (GTA) T3
(crediting): B
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B 5 ARBTT AREBFET
(Restated)
(5 E5)
Cost of services provided R AR 578,131 410,613
Depreciation of property, W - BEREREBITE 13
plant and equipment 27,063 19,820
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ERAREENE 15 305 232
Lease payments not included inthe T EHEABEBERTEN 15
measurement of lease liabilities HER 848 1,033
loss on disposal of items of property, BREWE - BE&
plant and equipment HEIEB M EE 39 935
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BB 27 B 2,000 2,000
Interest income B A (5,994) (2,805)
Employee benefit expenses EEBAMAXZ (TRIEEER
(excluding directors’ and chief FETHRABNEB) ~ -
executive’s remuneration)*:
Wages, salaries and other TE - FHekHMmER
allowances 139,491 129,986
Pension scheme contributions and BResrElHHR Rt gRET
social welfare 34,500 31,271
Total HEr 173,991 161,257
Impairment of trade receivables Z 5 EWGRIERE 18 2,541 (1,793)
Changes in fair value of investment R EWE N FEE 14
properties 20,290 (3,051)
* An amount of RMB145,017,000 of employee benefit expenses was * EERBMFAZ &% AR 145,017,000 7T

included in cost of services during the year ended 31 December 2023
(31 December 2022: RMB 139,455,000 (restated)).

AEZE2023F12A3MBIEEENR
AR (20224128318 AR
139,455,000 7t (#£ &%) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BAESECAR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MR AT -
2023 2022
2023 2022 F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARBTT
(Restated)
(reE5)
Interest on bank, other borrowings and $R1T - B R B 5 A E
related parties 15,174 16,738
Interest on lease liabilities HEBGEMNE 7 -
Total interest expense on financial liabilities I 3F A A F (&I ABZEH)
not at fair value through profit or loss CRMABBEMNRTIEFAX 15,181 16,738
Less: Interest capitalised B BREARRFE - (4,760)
Total #Et 15,181 11,978

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction of
waste collection centers are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE s MY et

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EFENTEBITHABENH
REMUNERATION [}

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, FRNEZRTETBRAENFTIRE L
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) A - FE QN AE B E 383(1)() -
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of L)~ OFOEERAR (HEEEFHE
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of B ARGIE 2RI T -

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTRT AR®TE

Other emoluments: HEmEe -
Salaries, bonuses, allowances and e TEA ENEYEAR
benefits in kind 1,911 1,461
Performance related bonuses BRINE FMIEAL - -
Pension scheme contributions RIKREFHEIHR 266 282
Total HBEt 2,177 1,743
(a) Independent non-executive directors () BIYFHITES
Ms. Zhou Yun, Mr. Liu Xin and Ms. Xin Zhu were AExZ Lt ZWEERFURELZ LT
appointed as independent non-executive directors of the M2022F4H16BEZERBAR
Company on 16 April 2022. RV IFITES -
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors REAR - RBIIFRITESEIN
during the year were as follows: WAEeMT
2023 2022
2023 2022 %
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AREKTE
Ms. Zhou Yun BEiZ+ 200 -
Mr. Liu Xin 2laT k4 200 -
Ms. Xin Zhu FHRRE L 200 -
Total st 600 -
There were no other emoluments payable to the RERN - WEABEIFNATES
independent non-executive directors during the year XA EA B & (20224F - &)
(2022: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 2k B o

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EENMNFEITHAEMH
REMUNERATION (Continued) B ()
(b) Executive directors (b) MITESE
Pension
Salaries, scheme

allowances Performance contributions

and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare remuneration
Bk

Fe2H BER HEER
e RENEN FREORAL RUEEAN aiM
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARWTR AR®T:x

Year ended 31 December [ Z2023%F 12 A31H

2023 IHFE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Cui Xiaodong EELEE - - - - -
Mr. Zhou Jun BELE - 614 - 112 726
Ms. Zhou Lijuan BABERL - 497 - m 608
Total st - 1,11 - 23 1,334
There was no arrangement under which directors waived F R0 M 2 5 BN EE ok (R B AU (4] 5
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. B L HE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors (Continued)

(9]

5 #
B

B 5 ¥R A= I

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

SENEETHAEBNF

(%)

(b) BMITES &)

Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances ~ Performance  contributions
and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare  remuneration
Rike
e 2p HRE FTEIER
we  REWEF BENEL  RUeEF BN
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETR
Year ended 31 December & Z2022F 12 A31H
2022 HEE
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Cui Xiaodong ERELEE - - - - -
Mr. Zhou Jun BELE - 657 - 107 764
Ms. Zhou Lijuan BBz - 536 - 107 643
Total @Et - 1,193 - 214 1,407
There was no arrangement under which directors waived FAWEEEWNEXREWRER
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. A] 57 B &) 2 BE -
Non-executive directors (c) ¥FBITE=E

Ms. Li Xin and Mr. Cao Bin were appointed as non-
executive directors of the Company on 15 June 2023. Mr.
Zhang Jun was appointed as non-executive directors of
the Company on 16 April 2022 There was no emolument
payable to the non-executive directors during the year.

MR2023F6 158 Tt X
EWEE ST AARRBERTT
EEN2022F48168 K&
EEREFRANARENITES -
FABERIFENTESTINEM
HREN o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 2k B o

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EFENTEITHAENH
REMUNERATION (continued) B ()
(d) Supervisors (d) E=
Mr. Zhang Wei and Mr. Tang Bo were appointed as M2023FE6 A158 RELE4E R
supervisors of the Company on 15 June 2023. Ms. Hu BREEEEZARBARAES -
Yuanling was appointed as supervisor of the Company on M2023F 10 H208 iR &+
20 October 2023. EZERARBES-
Pension
Salaries, scheme

allowances Performance contributions

and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare remuneration
Bike

A1 BER HEER
e RENEN BEORL REEEN g
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR AR®T:R

Year ended 31 December £ 202312 A31H

2023 IEFE
Supervisors: o
Mr. Zhang Wei RERE - - - - -
Mr. Tang Bo BEREE - - - - -
Ms. Hu Yuanling ekt - 200 - 43 243
Total @t - 200 - 43 243
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE s MY et

8. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(d) Supervisors (Continued)

B

d) E=#)

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

8. EENMNETEITHAENF

(%)

Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances ~ Performance  contributions
and benefits related and social Total
Fees in kind bonuses welfare  remuneration
RIke
e 2 BERE STEIH
we REWEN ABOEL  RHEEEF w5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFL AREFL ARE®EFL ARETT AREFR
Year ended 31 December & Z2022F 12 A31H
2022 LEFE
Supervisors: BEx:
Mr. Feng Jingen BeREE - - - - -
Mr. Huang Wei BRLE - - - - -
Ms. Yuan Hongjuan EXAR =Rt - 268 - 68 336
Total Bt - 268 - 68 336
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R AR Y R

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included one

director (2022: one director), details of whose remuneration are

set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year

of the highest paid employees who are neither a director nor

chief executive of the Company are as follows:

U= ES

FARANTFHEENEERE NES
(2022%F : —NES) - EHHFBED
EXMiEs - FRAFHESES GEAR
RIZEERTEBTHAR) OFHFIB D
T

2023 2022
2023 5 2022 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETFIT

Other emoluments: Ha e
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREYER 1,456 2,380
Pension scheme contributions IRIRE B R 449 421
Total other emoluments EMuB 4858 1,905 2,801

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest

paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following

band is as follows:

BN A THENFESTRIFERT
BAERSHMEENAZKLT

Number of employees

EEA™
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 T 4 4
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B FE s MY et

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX 10. FR1GM
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits REBARANEBKE R RIFERKE
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of FEREEERESIREEMNFE -
the Group are domiciled and operate. REBEEMMAEFT -
Chinese Mainland BB A it
Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC and the RIE B TS EE RBBER ([4&
respective regulations (the “CIT Law"), the subsidiaries which E¥FEHE]  EPERNMLERHE
operate in Chinese Mainland are subject to CIT at a rate of 25% N AZER FER T A B 25% T 2 20 4
on the taxable income. REMSH
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARBTE
(Restated)
(FEY))
Current — Chinese Mainland: BRER — AP B b
Charge for the year FAXZ M 20,093 20,500
Deferred tax (note 26) ERERIE (5 26) 4,321 2,302
Total tax charge for the year FABIAX HATE 24,414 22,802
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. PRS0 ()
Chinese Mainland (Continued) Bl ()
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before BARNRDEETENBRE AN EONIE
tax at the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax X B BRI EMBIEMAERNT

rate is as follows:

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETF T
(Restated)
(5&E5)
Profit before tax R 354 A A 8 104,536 87,867
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEEMENTIE 26,135 21,967
Expenses not deductible for tax AR B R AR B 2 361 259
Tax losses utilised from previous periods AT EENTIEER (497) -
Tax losses not recognised KRR IEE R 1 73
Profits and losses attributable to joint AEPERBEE QT
ventures and associates FEAGNE KR (1,586) 503
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate ZANE B ERHEMFIEL L 24,414 22,802
11. DIVIDEND . &
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE
Proposed final — RMB0.3351 per BEAARE —FREERKR
ordinary share (tax inclusive) AR#0.3351 7T (BF)
(2022: RMBO0.1700 per ordinary share (20225 - GREBRKR
(tax inclusive)) ARBO0.1700 7T (BF)) 33,868 17,440
The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December HZE2023F12A31MALFENEER
2023 is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders HARR BB AR R RIIR R R EE R R A F
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. RNEL#tE  FAEE -
2022 dividend have been fully settled as at the issuance date of HERPBREREMBE - 2022 F K E
this financial statements. B&E -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 101,047,000 (2022: 84,131,000) in issue during the
year.

The Group had no potentially diluted ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based

B 5 ¥R A= I

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

12 BRrEBERTE AR
Tﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁﬂ

BREARFNNSEDREI AL B
BaRE ARGFAFERFANE#ET
AR pNE 988 101,047,000 % (2022
F : 84,131,000%) 5T & -

H 2 2023F N2022%F12A31H I
B AEEVEEEHTHNBEBEL R

f% o

iﬂx%¢&§ﬁ SEE N THRE AT 8BRS

!wni

on:
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AREBTE
(Restated)
(geE5)
Earnings: BH|
Profit for the period attributable to owners &t & &% £ A & & Fir{s A 89
of the parent, used in the basic earnings &R A#E A AE(EERFE
per share calculation 74,430 64,106

Number of shares ‘000

RHEEHE (FR)
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
Shares: fig
Weighted average number of ordinary SAEEREARRFMERT
shares in issue during year, used in the FARBEEITEERIMNET IO
basic earnings per share calculation 101,047 84,131
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 2k B o

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. W% ~ W E KR HE

Machinery Construction

Buildings Vehicles  and others in progress Total
BF ARE HEBEREM RREIR @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETn AR¥Tn AR¥Tn AR¥Tn AR¥Tn
31 December 2023 2023%12831H
At 1 January 2023 (Restated) ~ #2023F 1A 18
(&7

Cost AR 290,136 49,843 132,457 - 472,436

Accumulated depreciation ZitE (12,362) (29,309) (20,607) - (62,278)
Net carrying amount EEFE 271,774 20,534 111,850 - 410,158
At 1 January 2023, net of 20231 A1 A

accumulated depreciation (MR 27 E)

(Restated) (fEE5) 277,774 20,534 111,850 - 410,158
Additions NE - 9,084 749 - 9,833
Disposals RE - (216) (93) - (309)
Depreciation provided FRFHRIE (fie)

during the year (note 6) (8,838) (5,802) (12,423) - (27,063)
At 31 December 2023, netof ~ $2023F 12 A31H

accumulated depreciation (B EFIME) 268,936 23,600 100,083 - 392,619
At 31 December 2023 R2023%F 128318

Cost K 290,136 58,711 133,113 - 481,960

Accumulated depreciation ZitE (21,200) (35,111) (33,030) - (89,341)
Net carrying amount EEFE 268,936 23,600 100,083 - 392,619
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

B 355 R 2= M

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

13. W% - WME M&XiG@#E)

(Continued)
Machinery  Construction
Buildings Vehicles and others in progress Total
BT HE BERAM TERTR Mt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREBTFT AREBTR AREBTT ARETR ARETxT
31 December 2022 2022912 831H
At 1 January 2022 (Restated) 7202241 F 18
(fEE51)

Cost PR 225,137 44,014 100,807 33,017 402,975

Accumulated depreciation ZEE (6,777) (24,355) (11,326) - (42,458)
Net carrying amount EEFE 218,360 19,659 89,481 33,017 360,517
At 1 January 2022, net of M2022F1 A1 H

accumulated depreciation (N EFTHE)

(Restated) (&7 218,360 19,659 89,481 33,017 360,517
Additions RE - 6,450 490 64,126 71,066
Transfers of property, plantand  #1% * FE &

equipment REEE 64,999 - 32,144 (97,143) -
Disposals RE - (621) (984) - (1,605)
Depreciation provided FRFRNE

during the year (note 6) (Ftzte) (5,585) (4,954) (9,281) - (19,820)
At 31 December 2022, netof ~ R2022% 12 A31H

accumulated depreciation (B EFTHE)

(Restated) (&) 277,774 20,534 111,850 - 410,158
At 31 December 2022 #®2022%12A31H

(Restated) (ZE5)

Cost 7R 290,136 49,843 132,457 - 472,436

Accumulated depreciation ZETE (12,362) (29,309) (20,607) - (62,278)
Net carrying amount EmFE 277,774 20,534 111,850 - 410,158

Certain of the Company'’s buildings with net carrying amounts
of approximately RMB35,710,000 as at 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB37,152,000) were pledged to secure certain bank
loans granted to a subsidiary of the Company (note 25).

M2023F 12 A3THEEFENAAR
# 35,710,000 T (20224 : AR
37,152,00070) M AR A E FEFEE
o DER TARRQRM B A RS TIRT
Bk (E25) 2| -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R AR Y R

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. BV

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 €
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARBTE

Carrying amount at 1 January ®1A1TBMERERE 352,981 349,930
Net gain or loss from a fair value NEERABREEANKRS

adjustment R ER R (20,290) 3,051
Carrying amount at 31 December ®12 A31BMEREE 332,691 352,981

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Chinese
Mainland. The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 December 2023 based on valuations performed by China
Tong Cheng Assets Appraisal Co., Ltd., independent
professionally qualified valuers, at RMB332,691,000. Each year,
the Group’s property manager and the chief financial officer
decide to appoint which external valuer to be responsible for
the external valuations of the Group’s properties. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained.

At 31 December 2023, the Group's investment properties with
a carrying value of RMB18,314,000 (2022: RMB20,051,000)
were pledged to secure certain bank loans granted to the Group
(note 25).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE s MY et

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14 WEWME®)
Fair value hierarchy NEEER
The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment AEBREMEQAFEFEFRAENT
properties uses significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). AR ABE(E=H) -
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TERIAALAEBRENEN RV EFTE
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties: [E 4 -

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2023 using
R2023F12 A3 AN A FEFEDEAN T REER
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
EXATER EAFUEE
ERTSRE BAHE BARE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—% E-H E=H @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT AR®Trn ARBTR AR%®Fxn

Commercial properties

EEME - - 332,691 332,691

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using
M2022F 12 A3 BN AT EFEDNERATSEEL
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
BEXUBE EATAEER
RS WE BABE BABE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—H B/ Y HET
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETRT

Commerdial properties BEDE - - 352,981 352,981
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR E—REE-_RoALEIFE
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers FrTEEER NEEAZ=-HXUE=H
into or out of Level 3. B o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the

14. IREWE )

DR EER @

T REEYEGERBOGERT R

key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: FEHABEBHRE
Significant
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
& {8 £ it EXTUHERARE gE
2023 2022
2023 2022
Commercial properties Income capitalisation Estimated rental value 25 to 108 25to 108
method (per sg.m. and per month)
[HESUES W B AMEE W B E T ES 25Z108  25%108
(FFFKRGA)

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value in
isolation would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the
fair value of the investment properties.

15. LEASES
As a lessee
(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

BEEGEEEEARLA (TR 88
BIREMERFERE LI (T -

15. &

EREBEA

(a)

EREEE

FAFERAEEEREBEREDN
™

Buildings Leasehold land Total

BF HELH wat

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AR®T T AR®TR

As at 1 January 2023 R2023F1H1H - 10,026 10,026
Additions NE 342 - 342
Depreciation charge meE® (85) (220) (305)
As at 31 December 2023 7R2023F 12 A31H 257 9,806 10,063
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15. LEASES (Continued)

(a)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE s MY et

15. lHE &)

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

As a lessee (Continued) EREBA (8)
Right-of-use assets (Continued) () EEREEE(E)
Leasehold land Total
HELH BET
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFIT
As at 1 January 2022 R2022F1H1H 10,258 10,258
Depreciation charge HEs (232) (232)
As at 31 December 2022 R2022% 12 A31H 10,026 10,026
Lease liabilities (b) HEEE

(b)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities (not included under

interest-bearing bank loans) and the movements during

the year are as follows:

FAMEERE (TFAGTRRITE

R T) REE R

ER (I

2023 2022

2023 2022 4

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTT AREBTET

Carrying amount at 1 January M1 ATEMEREE - -

New leases FiEE 342 -
Accretion of interest recognised FAMEREF 2N

during the year 7 -

Payments e (88) -

Carrying amount at 31 December K12 A31BNEREEE 261 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

15. LEASES (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation
to leases are as follows:

15. lHE &)

EREABAN (&)
(00 MREZABRIAEEVEEHENSEHE
me
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TRT ARBTET

Interest on lease liabilities HEBEME 7 -

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets £ FRIEZETEE 305 232

Expense related to short-term leases SHATRE R 848 1,033

Total amount recognised in profit or loss H 1825 AR K 4258 1,160 1,265
The Group as a lessor EEEERAEHBEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) for rental
in Chinese Mainland under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions. Details of rental income
recognised by the Group during the year are included in note 5
to the financial statements.

The undiscounted lease payments receivable by the Group in
future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants are as follows:

AEERBEERERFETE A S
HEREWE (ME14) (- BEKRTRE
FREEAPXNRES  RREERT
MEHHBEEE - ARERF AR
HEWAFBRR P BERERMEES

7K 8 B AR 4 SRS A0 R ) S
B B SR HR RS B A R B 3
mF

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARBTET

Within one year —F R 11,889 12,614
After one year but within two years —FREMFER 3,277 2,881
After two years but within three years MERB=FNX 654 762
After three years but within four years —FRENFA 654 654
After four years but within five years NEZRERFR 654 654
After five years HFI% 8,495 9,149
Total #Et 25,623 26,714
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

(@) The Group’s associates are as follow:

16.

B 355 R 2= M

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H
> MK = >
AR E N BRI E

(a) "EEBEQNTME :

2023 2022
2023 2022 F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥ETET
Share of net assets BIRFEE 838 4,778
Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to the
Place of registration Group as at
Name Registered capital  and business 31 December 2023 Principal activity
R2023 %
12A31H
FRBAS
a8 dAMEX EMREEHREY FEREZEI L TEXY
Suzhou Mingsu Business RMB1,000,000  PRC/Chinese Mainland 49% Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. Management Services
FNAFERERARAA ARE S8/ TPERAM HEERRE
1,000,000 7T
Suzhou Langyiju Business RMB500,000  PRC/Chinese Mainland 19% Commercial
Management Service Co., Ltd. Management Services
HINPEEREERREERLA AR®E  HE/HEAL BARERRB
500,000 7T
The associate has been accounted for using the equity ZHE AT B EAERERN AN B RE
method in this financial statements. M5B -

On September 2023, the Company dispose of its 49%
equity interest in SND Yiyang Health Management
Company Limited to Suzhou High-tech Health Industry
Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of SND
Company, at a consideration of approximately

RMB5,808,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
received dividends in the amounts of RMB760,000 (2022:
Nil) from Suzhou Mingsu Business Management Co., Ltd..

2023F 98  AREUREHARYE
5,808,000 JT [A] & = #T 2A 7] & i BB 1~ &)
BeaERERZERR GMNBRATH
EHROAERREEEERAFM49%
fig#E o

HZE2023F12A31BILEE - KAERE
BEHMNHHRESTIELSR QKRR R
AR #760,00070 (20224F : Z) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

16. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 16. REF 2 ARIMIRE (#)
(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial (b) THREIAEEBE NFIHEE
information of the Group's associate: AR
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥TRT ARBTE

Share of the associates’ profit/loss DMEBE AR FERFE BB

for the year 1,055 (2,013)
Share of the associates’ total DMEBE AR ZEBA BB

comprehensive income/loss 4B=E 1,055 (2,013)
Aggregate carrying amount of the REERBEARIRENERE

Group's investment in the associate (EECES] 838 4,778

17. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR  17. 38 BUA RN T EHI| A E kb
=\

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 2 E WA B IR 1 ¢
INCOME
2023 2022
2023 & 2022 €
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTRT ARBTET

Equity investments designated at fair EEABUAFEINAELMEME
value through other comprehensive BAHRERE

income
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value ~ 3F F T BRHERE (R A F(E)
EINERIRERERA A FINEREIRERER AR

("Suzhou Huirong Business Travel

Development Co., Ltd.") - 59,469
BN EREBHEERERAH BN EREBHELRE

(“Suzhou Xinjingtian Business Land BRAR]

Development Co., Ltd.") 4,950 11,204
Total @5t 4,950 70,673
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17.

18.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 355 R 2= M

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIRR 17, 87 A LA R FESI A H
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE T HE AR RERE @)
INCOME (Continued)
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at it R A R RUEE M IR TE R AR
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group BIIAEMEERBA > RRREAKERR
considers these investments to be strategic in nature. BZEREBNRERIET -
On 3 August 2023, Golden Lion and Suzhou Jianrong Group 20238 A3H &M EE S A A
Co., Ltd, subsidiary of SND Company, entered into an HBARGMNEREEAGR AR
agreement, pursuant to which Golden Lion agreed to transfer Bk BhHEWMREEUNREHARE
of 3.167% equity interest in Suzhou Huirong Business Travel 60,303,000 c M &M EREEFR A F
Development Co., Ltd. to Suzhou Jianrong Group Co., Ltd at a AN ER N IRERBMRAR]3.167%
consideration of approximately RMB60,303,000. On December fE#E - 7R2023F 128 HEEFEE =T
2023, the disposal was completed and the Group had ceased to B ARBETBREHMNERERER
hold any equity interest in Suzhou Huirong Business Travel BER AR ERRE - NHEHEAHRHATF
Development Co., Ltd. The fair value on the date of sale was B A ANR® 60,303,000 MAEME
RMB60,303,000 and the accumulated gain recognised in other MU ATERH 25T Wz AR 2,475,000
comprehensive income of RMB2,475,000 was transferred to TTEEBEREEF -
retained earnings.
TRADE RECEIVABLES 18. E ZEINFIE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AREBTE
(Restated)
(geE3)
Trade receivables B 5 W IE 314,586 193,484
Impairment A (19,522) (16,981)
Net carrying amount BREFE 295,064 176,503

Trade receivables mainly arise from the provision of city services
and property management services. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management and
credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed once a month.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

85 R IAE 2R A R EE TR &
WEEEIRTS - ANEE N KEAGIERH
REERWFOR - WRAEEEHEEFI A
RAREREEERR SREEETE
HESaMNEsn SAERPNEER
BT —IREZ - EHRUPGIATETR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and

8. B 5 EWFIA #)

RBEMRRAAEEE ZREFIRN
RRic DA (BN RE R BA MBS a0

net of provisions, is as follows: T
2023 2022
2023 & 20224
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBFT
(Restated)
(18 E751)
Within 1 year —F R 249,202 162,889
1 to 2 years —EWF 43,482 12,858
2 to 3 years ME=4F 2,380 756
Total @t 295,064 176,503

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

B2 RWFRRER EREEEE T -

2023 2022

2023 5 2022 FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARET T

(Restated)

(&5

At beginning of year F4 (16,981) (18,774)
Impairment losses B E1E (2,541) 1,793
At end of year FR (19,522) (16,981)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss. The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that is
available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
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18.

19.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure

on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2023

B 5 ¥R A= I

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H
18. B 5 K

TXHIERRERENANEEE 5 E
WREEERROAREEM

N IH ()

7A2023F12A31H

Current to
one year 110 2 years 2to3years  Over3years Total
HHz-F -EME WE=& ZENE o
Expected credit loss rate BHEEFRZ 3.44% 10.18% 48.35% 100.00% 6.21%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  ABEEE (ARE T 258,081 48,408 4,608 3,489 314,586
Expected credit losses RMB'000) ~ BHEEBE(ARET L) (8,879) (4,926) (2,229) (3,489) (19,522)
As at 31 December 2022 72022 12A31H
Current to
one year 1102 years 2 to 3 years Over 3 years Total
NHz—F —ZmE MEZF “ENE Bt
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBRR 4.43% 16.46% 72.41% 100.00% 8.78%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  ABEE(ARE T 170,431 15,392 2,740 4,921 193,484
Expected credit losses (RMB'000)  FBHEAEE BB (ARE T ) (7,542) (2,534) (1,984) (4,921) (16,981)
PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND  19. 8T FRI8 - E b & Uz 18 &
OTHER ASSETS H & E
2023 2022
2023 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTE
(Restated)
(ieE7)
Advances to suppliers ) 4 P P O TR AT 3K 8,184 9,134
Value-added tax deductible AT HR S (B R 7,620 9,777
Other receivables H b W I8 12,833 13,784
Total a5t 28,637 32,695
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

19.

20.

21.

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND  19. TA3XI8 - H fth J&E W3k IE 2
OTHER ASSETS (Continued) HAb & E @)
The balances are not secured by collateral. A BRI R MR o
Other receivables had no historical default. The financial assets HAth IRIBR B £ R o Ll ks sk
included in the above balances relate to receivables were FRBEEREERKEERNSREER
categorized in Stage 1 at the end of the year. In calculating the FRNE—BRPHE - EFEERE
expected credit loss rate, the Group considers the historical loss EEEXR AEEeZRELEIE
rate and adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic data. o WH B ATE N RB L EBUREITH
During the year, the Group estimated that the expected credit BoRNERN - AEELFHE MY FKIE
loss rate for other receivables and deposits was minimal. LEFHBEBEEBEXE ) -
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. LR FEFIABEE @
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETET
Wealth management products B Em 18,000 -
The above unlisted investments were wealth management L3 LR E AP BRAMIRITETY
products issued by banks in Chinese Mainland. They were BYMEMD WAENDBERARFETIA
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through BmmemiEE REAEEGHORERN
profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely BWIHERRIZFAAE -
payments of principal and interest.
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 21. 6B E
2023 2022
2023 2022 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%TR ARBFT
(Restated)
(FE75))
Contract liabilities EHEaE 53,726 39,828
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21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing

schedules as established in the service contracts. A portion of

payments is usually received in advance of the performance

under the contracts.

The expected timing of recognition of revenue at the end of the

reporting period is as follows:

B 5 ¥R A= I

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

21. B4BaEm®

AEBZRGHEARENEERFHER
WEE P - B N RRRERE
BHEITERIESTUE -

R34 2R SR R SR 2 A0 FE RS LS
mF -

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AREFIT
(Restated)
(&S]
Within 1 year —FR 53,726 39,828
22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 22. Re kBREFED
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARETIT
(Restated)
(&S]
Cash and bank balances B e MIRTTHE S 316,023 177,470
Non-pledged time deposits with original P UREERRZIEH DR
maturity of less than three months =& A 2 SR E AR TF R
when acquired 81,560 179,283
Subtotal NEt 397,583 356,753
Less: VoA
Restricted cash SRHIRE (265) (845)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEEY 397,318 355,908
Denominated in: AT ¥ fE A -
HKD BT 176,077 216,873
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Chinese Mainland'’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Certain bank deposits are pledged for the issuance of letters of
guarantee.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default. The carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents
approximated to their fair values.

23. TRADE PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

22.

23.

HeMMREEEY (8

ARBTEEERLIBAEMER B
B ARIE T B A B CHMNE B 32 R 1) A
(REE - EERNEEERT)  A%H
R BEREEITINE R IRTT
ARBHBSHMER -

ETRITFERCER - AERERE -

RITRSBREBEE BRITHERN R
A E - RITHEBMERFREFRLN
VEEBHNELNEERFNRT - RE
kB EBEYHREERL A FERS -

B 5N IA

R EME ARG E 5N FRENRE D
r(ERBEZAH)NT

2023 2022

2023 20224

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR ARBTTT

(Restated)

(gesE3)

Within 1 year —F R 285,900 195,396

1to 2 years —EMF 8,982 10,699

2 to 3 years ME=4F 3,328 4,482

Over 3 years ZFLAE 3,118 2,053

Total #Et 301,328 212,630
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled B ZEMNRIBEAEE - BE 180K

on 180-day terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE s MY et

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. H A FE FRIE & EET /I8

2023 2022

2023 F 20224

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREFIT

(Restated)

(&=E7))

Deposits received B Wiz e 38,307 37,542

Payroll and welfare payable FER T & RAEF 27,820 28,543

Receipts on behalf of customers REZPUGK 22,802 19,111

Maintenance funds HEES 5,157 8,803

Dividend payables JE T AR B 12,552 -

Other tax payables Hith fET R 18 3,563 2,949

Total st 110,201 96,948
Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand. Hofh E S OB A E IR E IR B SR EE o

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 25. ;t BER1TTER
2023 2022
BE W%
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000

RRAZ(%) HEE  AR®TR  ERAE@%) 8B AR®TR

Current Ik

Current portion of long-term bank loans & i3 1T & XXM EH 7

— secured —B5E 3.15% 2024 10,000 455-4.70 2023 11,250
Non-current FENE

Bank loans — secured RTEx — B 3.15% 2025-2033 109,063 455470 2024-2028 111,250
Total H) 119,063 122,500
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (continved) ~ 25. F BER1TE (@)

2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEF T

Analysed into: DR

Bank loans repayable: FEEEMRITER

Within one year or on demand R—FAKEEK 10,000 11,250
Within two to five years, inclusive RRERLFAN(BEEEMSE) 40,000 78,250
Beyond five years AFLAE 69,063 33,000
Total et 119,063 122,500

The Group’s borrowings are all denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2023, bank loans of RMB119,062,500
(2022: RMB122,500,000) were guaranteed by the Company by
mortgages over the Group’s investment properties with a fair
value of approximately RMB18,314,000 (2022:
RMB20,051,000), and by mortgages over the buildings with a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB35,710,000 (2022:
RMB37,152,000).
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AEBNEFHUAREE -

72023128318 BT ERARE
119,062,5007% (20224 : AR
122,500,0007C) BB AR A « AEEAF
BEH A AR 18,314,0007T (2022 4 :
AR #20,051,0007T) K% & W) £ B IK
1B ERTEFEL A AR 35,710,0007T
(20224 : AR#¥37,152,000 1) iEF
B IRIERELR o



26. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax assets

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE s MY et

26. RN IE

EEREBEEE

Change in fair

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

value of equity
investments
designated at
Change in fair fair value
Impairment value of  through other
of financial investment  comprehensive Lease Accrued
assets properties income liabilities expenses Total
RERUATE
NARMEE
RENE UWANRERE
SREENE DVERD NVEEY BEEE % @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREF AREFT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2022 R202% 1810 4,695 - - N 2,551 7,246
Deferred tax credited to the A ABHER
statement of profitor loss ~ EIERE
during the year (614) 1,078 2,581 - (925) 2,120
Gross deferred tax assets at K2 20231 A 1H#)
1 January 2023 BEERBEAELE 4,081 1,078 2,581 - 1,626 9,366
Deferred tax credited to the  F A ABERE
statement of profitor loss ~ EIERE
during the year 505 426 2,181 65 (1,258) 1919
Gross deferred tax assets at - 742023 12 831 HH)
31 December 2023 ERHEAESRE 4,586 1,504 4,762 65 368 11,285
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R AR Y R

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities

26. IEEFIIA ()

EESERE

Change in fair
value of equity

investments
designated
Change in at fair value
fair value of  through other
Right-of-use investment  comprehensive
assets properties income Total
EEANATE
SINEM2ME
RENE WANKRERE
ERAREE AFELE AT EEE At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETTT ARETT
At 1 January 2022 720221818 - 20,337 2,861 23,198
Deferred tax charged to the FRRIEZRF
statement of profit or loss 3B KIEEF B
during the year - 1,841 (2,861) (1,020)
Gross deferred tax liabilities 72022412 A31H
at 31 December 2022 RELETRBEARE
B8 - 22,178 - 22,178
Deferred tax charged to the F AR R PG
statement of profit or RIEETE
loss during the year 64 (4,647) - (4,583)
Gross deferred tax liabilities 72023412 318
at 31 December 2023 REERERAE
HEE 64 17,531 - 17,595
222 Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023

BAEFEFRBROARAR/ — TR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

B 355 R 2= M

31 December 2023 72023 12 A31H
BT TA ()
EERESE#)
REIME  ETRERBEEREE

ERMBARRRAEHE - AT R
WEM S 2 ANEERTERIABIRZ DT :

2023 2022
2023 £ 2022 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®TRT AR¥KTE
Net deferred tax assets recognised in iR E MR R R
the consolidated statement of EERIBEEFE
financial position 5,246 5,622
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in RERE KR R R
the consolidated statement of financial EETIE B FEFE
position 11,556 18,434

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

WEFZEBERREEHEEE B
EXEEHIEEENMBARCEBE—
RIS - WRABT ARG EEERT
A AR SE AT B A MO B TE B 18 o

WL T 5H B EREERBAEE

2023 2022

2023 2022 F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTE

Tax losses not recognised M AR ERA B I E B (496) 73
Losses attributable to an associate B N B FE(L 5 18 (1,258) 503

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
above items as it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the above items can be utilised.

WL LR B EREENAEE - |
AT B A IR B A R R 8 M AR
BTKRATGEHR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

27.

28.

OTHER LIABILITIES

The Group’s other liabilities represented an earmarked
governmental loan with a nominal value of RMB200,000,000
and an annual nominal interest rate of 3.37% p.a. to be paid in
ten years. The carrying amount of other liabilities were
RMB174,041,000 and RMB170,974,000, respectively as at 31
December 2023 and 2022. The other liabilities are dedicated to
the construction of the waste collection centers.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
statement of changes in equity.

(@) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the
par value of the shares issued and the consideration
received, net of share issue expenses.

(b) Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group includes the share
premium contributed by the shareholders of the
Company, the equity interest of Suzhou Golden Lion and
Kejin Property Service transferred to the Company
pursuant to the equity transfer agreement in January
2021, and the share premium arising from the conversion
of the Company into a joint stock company in April 2021,
the difference between the consideration paid pursuant
to the equity transfer agreement in August 2023 and the
capital contribution of the then shareholder of Runjia and
Kejia.
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27.

28.

Hi BB

AEEHNEMEBEEREEAARYE
200,000,000 ST HY3EE A K BT E K -
NEZEFERII7T%E - AR TEFR
S e 720234 % 2022F 12 A31H -
HtBaENEmES I AARE
174,041,000t & A R # 170,974,000
T Hitv B EAR BRI REEFRD o

@t

AEERAFELBEFENRHEBERE
HETRAEEREBRTIIR

(a) Btn=E

Betnim R BTRD M EESR
BWAREZEHER  MHREMD
BITRX °

(b) EXRf#EE

REBEAFEERLREARARRE
TARBRD EE - &N R F
BYERBREREERHER
2021 F VA EERR A RER
A FIR2021F 4 A 2H & IR G5
BRAREEMRMDGEENLIR
BREEERZEN2023F8 A%
NOREEBEENEZEREKRRE
MEE =L -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. RESERVES (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC,
the Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits
after tax, as determined under the Chinese Accounting
Standards, to the statutory surplus reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered capital.
Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations and in the articles of association of the
subsidiaries, the statutory surplus reserve may be used
either to offset losses, or to be converted to increase paid-
in capital, provided that the balance after such conversion
is not less than 25% of the registered capital of the
respective entities. The reserve cannot be used for
purposes other than those for which it is created and is
not distributable as cash dividends.

Fair value reserve of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

The fair value reserve of financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income represents
unrealised fair value gains or losses for equity investments
designated at FVOCI.

(c)

(d)

B 355 R 2= M

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

28. {1 &)

EEBER R

REBEH B R BDE R+ BRI
MEARMABERMAMA A%
BAKRETEG ERETEDN
HERBARFNEZ10% BIEAE
BHFHE BEERBEREEH
50% &E ffit & 78 o R IR AR B BUA
MEMBARABEREMA TR
HETRG ZEASRREE A
RILHE IR E IR MEHER -
HERLREHRTBINTEER
25%EMER - BT SRR E
R BRI A E - B TER
BEREDIK

AR ESIAEMEEBA
MEMEENLTERE

RAFEIAEMEEZ@BANS
MEENRFERME/ETE/N
NFEHAE b2 H A 8RR
REZRERATFERZRER -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 2k B o

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 29. A E KNI 5 2 &6
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS DA B A A
2023 2023 F
Percentage Profit
of equity for the year Accumulated
interest held by allocated to balances of
non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
interests interests interests
FER PEE
ERBE2 FIERER FERER
REBDL ZFERFE Rt &R
% RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® TR AR®TR

Keshang Property Service b 9 2 AR 75 20 2,151 7,490
2022 2022 F

Percentage Profit

of equity for the year Accumulated

interest held by allocated to balances of

non-controlling  non-controlling  non-controlling

interests interests interests
FEFERR PaN VS

BamfA L R IR

PR ot ZFEATHE RETHEER

% RMB'000 RMB'000

AREET T ARETTT

Keshang Property Service B8 ) 2 AR 75 20 964 5,338
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE s MY et

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

29. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH 29. B E RIEIERR S 2 B
MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS panr XN NEMNEINE )
(Continued)

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BTRT AR®TRE

Revenue g 51,890 77,244
Total expenses Sz 4858 (37,543) (70,818)
Income tax expense FrisfiAx (3,591) (1,609)
Profit and total comprehensive income FAFMBERZEW AL

for the year 10,756 4,817
Current assets MEEE 131,803 101,053
Non-current assets IERBEE 223 1,278
Current liabilities mENEE (89,750) (70,812)
Non-current liabilities SEREBBE - -
Net cash flows from operating activities KETEBFEREREFHE 2,760 1,602
Net cash flows from investing activities KEZHFFEReRNEFE 201 95
Net cash flows from financing activities BEESMBHESREFE - -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents  R& MIR& S EYIEINFRE 2,961 1,697
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 2k B o

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30. &8 IR & nE &M A
OF CASH FLOWS

p=]l]2

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing () METBELENERBEEH
activities
Due to
related
Other  companies Lease

Bank loans liabilities  (non-trade) Liability Total
FE 1 R Bt
ARNE

RITEN HiEfR (FEZ) HERR Bt

RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR

At 1 January 2023 (Restated) #2023F 1A 18
(R E5) 122,500 170,974 16,012 - 309,486
Changes from financing HERERENET
cash flows (8.255) (6,740) (8,061) (88) (23,144)
New leases wHE - - - 342 342
Interest expense MERX 4,818 9,807 549 7 15,181
At 31 December 2023 202312 A318 119,063 174,041 8,500 261 301,865
Due to related
companies
Bank loans Other liabilities (non-trade) Total
FE 1+ A B
AAIFE
RITER Hihaf (kE5) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT

At 1 January 2022 (Restated) 2022417 1H

(mE5) 143,750 168,074 60,800 372,624
Changes from financing BERSHENE
cash flows (27,816) (6,740) (45,320 (79,876)
Interest expense FIEFMX 6,566 9,640 532 16,738
At 31 December 2022 72022F 12 A318
(Restated) (sEF) 122,500 170,974 16,012 309,486
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE s MY et

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

30. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 30. &6 e RnEXMW T (@
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Total cash outflow for leases (b) HERESRHLERE
2023 2022
2023 F 20224
RMB000 RMB’000

ARBTRT ARETRT

Within operating activities LETEBN 848 1,033
Within financing activities BMEEHNA 81 -
Total #Et 929 1,033
31. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 31. BEHEM
Details of the Group’s assets pledged are included in notes 13, FHAEEDEREENTS  SRY
14 and 25 to the financial statements. TEIREMIFE13 - 14 %25 °
32. COMMITMENTS 32. AE
(@) The Group had the following capital commitments at the (@ AEBERMEHERBEEUTE
end of the reporting period: A
2023 2022
2023 2022 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®BTRT AR®TE

Contracted, but not provided for: DRI 4B R -
Buildings and machinery EF RS - 3,923

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BHEFEEREROBERAT/ — T _=FFR

229



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Name of related parties and relationship

with the Group

Name

=L

33. Bl X F

() BB A EBRERNTENE
%

Relationship
2RES

MM EEAR AR
SND Company
BN EEARAR

mMNEItESEEER A A
("Suzhou High-tech Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.")
BmMNEtESBER AT

#MNEH R B RKRERAA
("Suzhou Gaoxin Water Supply Co., Ltd.”)
M SR B RKKER AR

NS EREFTERERAA

("Suzhou Gaoxin Zhitai Innovation Development
Co., Ltd")

NS EREFTERERAA

#HMNFTREF R IR EERER AR

("Suzhou New Area Chuangxin Technology Investment
Management Co., Ltd.")

#HMNFTREF R IR EERER AR

HEMNBERRRSIRNEXREREBR QT

(“Suzhou National Environmental Protection High-tech
Industrial Park Development Co., Ltd.”)

HEMNBERRRSIRNEXREREBR QA

HemHEEXER (BN BRAR

("Suzhou Gaoxin Education Industry Development
Suzhou Co., Ltd.")

HemHEEXER (BN BRAR

ML ESERBER AT
(“Suzhou Shishan Plaza Development Co., Ltd."”)

ERINEIL RS ERERAF
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The controlling shareholder of the Company

AR B HIE AR

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = ¥ B FE I B9 2 7]

Company controlled by SND Company

EEASEAPNCIEL PN

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = ¥ B FE I B9 2 7]

Company controlled by SND Company

2R N YNETE e 2l N

Company controlled by SND Company

EEASEAPNCIEE PN

Company controlled by SND Company

Company controlled by SND Company

- ASEAPNCIEEL PN



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R BT oE

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @Bt AR 5 ()

() BB A EBRERNEENE

(a) Name of related parties and relationship

with the Group (Continued)

Name

=1

& ()

Relationship
2RES

Bk EMBR AT
("Suzhou Yongxin Land Co., Ltd.")
BMNOKETBE AR AR

MCmBLEFSIMREZERBRAA

("Tongren Wanshan District Su High-tech Industry
Development Co., Ltd."”)

MCmBLEFSTMREZERBRAA

BN ERMERBRAR
("Suzhou West Eco City Development Co., Ltd.")
EFINTEEPE R B RABER A

BN KB AEIERR AR
("Suzhou Taihu Jingu Hotel Co., Ltd.")
BINAHEABIEBRAR

MR ERERERBRA

(“Suzhou Taihu Jingu Construction Development Co.,

Ltd.”)
HEMAHEAERERARA

BN EREEBT NEEERREERR AR
("Suzhou Gaoxin Venture Capital Group SME
Development Management Co., Ltd.")

BNEHAERESET NEEEREEARAA
BMNMBEEREREBRAA
(“Suzhou Juxin Commercial Factoring Co., Ltd.”)

FMNMEERRFREBRA

FINKERMEREZEARAT

Company controlled by SND Company

EEASEAPNCIEL PN

Company controlled by SND Company

25 SR VNETE e VN

Company controlled by SND Company

R XS EIPNCIE S PN

Company controlled by SND Company

EENSEAPNCIE S PN

Company controlled by SND Company

R XS EIPNCIE S PN

Company controlled by SND Company

25 SR VNETE e VN

Company controlled by SND Company

R ASEAPNCIEL T EOPN

Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou Yonghua Real Estate Development Co., Ltd.")
BNOKERMERZEBR QR MEmT AT

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BRAEHEERBROARAA/ — T - =FFH

231



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33. @Bt AR5 ()

(a) Name of related parties and relationship () BB AEBRERAEBHNH

with the Group (Continued) &R #)

Name Relationship
=% B
HNESERMREEXERBR AR Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Zhihui High-tech Industry Development Co.,

Ltd.”)

BNEESHREXRRERAF FH &k = BT 2 R I Y A 7]
BINETREADERRGEXRER AT Company controlled by SND Company

(“Suzhou High Tech Zone Human Resources Service
Industrial Park Co., Ltd.”)

BEMNEFTERANERBRBEXR AR QT RIS NCIE 2 oA
BMNEa TR REEERBR AR Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou High-tech Industry Development Co., Ltd.")

BN REEERERAR RS INCIE 2L = oA
HatREEXERE GRRKB)ARAH Company controlled by SND Company

(“Suzhou High-tech Industrial Development
(Zhangjiagang) Co., Ltd.")

BN EEER (RREB)BRAA ST IVNCIEE oS
BRI EEERE (FR)BRAF Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou High-tech Industrial Development (Changshu)

Co., Ltd.")
BaoNEREXRR (BR) BRAA S WNCIEE I NS
BN R EEM AR AR Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Xinjingjie Land Co., Ltd.")
BN AEEH AR A A EERSE VNGRS
BN AR RIREERER A A Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Taihu Wetland World Tourism Development

Co., Ltd.")
NN Rt RIREERBRA A GRS NG NS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R BT oE

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @Bt AR 5 ()

(a) Name of related parties and relationship () AR TR BRELREEMWEE

with the Group (Continued) 1% (&)
Name Relationship
=L 2R
BNEaTmEEREBRAR Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Sugaoxin Commercial Development

Co., Ltd. )
BNSaTmEEREBRAR R /NCIEES 10N
IR BB EZERMBRA A Company controlled by SND Company
("SND Gaoxin Tech Industry Co., Ltd.")
NI SR EZERNDER AR EEISE NG NS
BaimEsE ENERA Company controlled by SND Company
("Sugaoxin Chengjian Development (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.”)
HEIHEER(EMNERA EENSE VNI oS
BNEREEERERAA Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Jusheng Asset Management Co., Ltd.")
HNBREEEEBRAT HE =D FIEHN A
BNEFYEBRRAR Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Gaoxin Products Co., Ltd.”)
HINEFYEBRRAR] EEISE NGRS
ENFHEEREMERRA Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Xinhesheng Fmanaal Leasing Co., Ltd.")
HINFEEmEHERBRAR EENSE IVNCIEE EoNS
EINEBA NEERBR AR Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Embroidery Town Development Co., Ltd.")
BN NEBERBR A A R /NCIEES 10N
FINeEBmERERA Company controlled by SND Company
(“Suzhou Jinhesheng HoIding Co., Ltd."”)
BFINesRERERAR ST NCIE b PN
BEMNEFER N EREERBERAA Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou High-tech Zone SME Financing Guarantee

Co., Ltd."”)
BEMNEFER N EREERBERAA RS /NCIEES 10N
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33. @Bt AR5 ()

(a) Name of related parties and relationship () BB AEBRERAEBHNH
with the Group (Continued) &R #)
Name Relationship
=% 2R
N RAR R NEERERAAF] Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Juchuang Technology Microfinance Co., Ltd.")
HEMNTRAR R NEERERAA EERSE VNI 0N
MR EEEEEERA A Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Gaoxin Venture Capital Group Co., Ltd.")
BINSHEERESEER QA EEISE NG NS
KNie A (EIMN) EERMER QA Company controlled by SND Company
(“Taihu Golden Valley Suzhou Information Technology

Co., Ltd."”)

Kzt EIMN) EERMERAF ST IVNCIEE oS
BMTHE BB EERERA A Company controlled by SND Company
("Suzhou Xinhesheng Technology Small Loan Co., Ltd.")
BN a R/ NEERBRAR EEISE NG NS
BNEHAERESENNERERNEIEER AT Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou High-tech Venture Capital Group Taihu
Golden Valley Capital Management Co., Ltd.")

BNETAERERERNHCAEAEEBRAA RIS INCIE 2 = oA
KA (BN ERBRAF Company controlled by SND Company
Taihu Jingu

Kiea EIMN) ERBRAR RS INCIE 2L = oA
ERBR QT Company controlled by SND Company
("CHINA TREE LIMITED")

EH AR QA FH & = BT A ARSI A A A
BIN#Sa TR EEXERBERAA Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou Sugaoxin Digital Economy Industry
Development Co., Ltd."”)
BNSa TR EEXERBERAA RSN PN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Name of related parties and relationship

with the Group (Continued)

Name

=1

B % R AR Y R

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

33. @Bt AR 5 ()

() BB A EBRERNEENE

& ()

Relationship
2RES

BHMNSHMEERBARAR
("Suzhou High-tech Enterprise Service Co., Ltd.")
HMSHEERBARAR]

HMNBEIREERFRAZBERBRAA

Company controlled by SND Company

- ASEIPNCIE PN

Company controlled by SND Company

("Suzhou Guohuan Energy Conservation and
Environmental Protection Pioneer Park Management
Co., Ltd.")

#HMNBIREEERREIZEEEAR QA F A = ¥ BRI A A

MBS ARG AR A A

("Suzhou High-tech Energy Service Co., Ltd.")

&N Bk = BT RE IR IRIS B IR A A

Company controlled by SND Company
RS /NCIE e 2 L OMNS
BMNEFREEEERAR

(“Suzhou Gaoxin Investment Management Co., Ltd.”)
BMNEMIREERERA A

Company controlled by SND Company
FH & = 8T R B A A A
BMNEHESMEXREARAR

("Suzhou Sugaoxin Industrial Investment Co., Ltd.”)
BMNEHESHEXREARAA

Company controlled by SND Company
F A = ¥ BRI A A
BMNSHMKEEXEBERRAA

("Suzhou High-tech Tourism Industry Group Co., Ltd."”)
BHMNSHMKEEXEBERAR

Company controlled by SND Company

F & = ¥ B EE I Y A 7]

gMEHFRANERAEAFRQA

(“Suzhou High Tech Zone Human Resources

Company controlled by SND Company

Development Co., Ltd. “)
#HMEHEANERAERRAF F A = ¥ A BRI A A
HeRREXER RS BRAF
("Suzhou High-tech Industrial Development (Liyang)

Co., Ltd.")

HeRREXER RS BRAF

Company controlled by SND Company

B &R = T A AR I A )
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B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Name of related parties and relationship
with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

33. @Bt AR5 ()

() BB A EBRERNTENE
& (%)

Relationship
2RES

BB hEERE EMN ERA
( Suzhou Sugaoxin Jintang Hotel Management

(Suzhou) Co., Ltd."”)
Be T REEEE EGMNABRA

FNEREMEREREEERAR

(“Suzhou Medical Device Industry Development Group
Co., Ltd.”)
HNBESMEXREREEEGRAR

HMNEEAESERE S ERAA

("Suzhou Sugaoxin Huashu International Trade
Co., Ltd.")

HMNEEAESERE S ERAA

gMEFE (HM) BRAF
("Suzhou High-tech Real Estate (Yangzhou) Co., Ltd.")
M EETIE (HMN) BRAF

BNEHEETERERAA
("Suzhou High-tech Asset Management Co., Ltd.")
BNEHEEEERERAT

MBI R BETOEREGR AR

(“Suzhou Innovation Design and Manufacturing Center
Development Co., Ltd.”)

MBI R BET OEREGR AR

BMNEEmEEREREINEH NG

("Foreign Trade Co. of Suzhou New &HI-TECH Industrial
Development ZONE")

BMNmEmEEFEREINEHNE
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Company controlled by SND Company

25 SR IPNCIEE VN

Company controlled by SND Company

XS EIPNCIE PN

Company controlled by SND Company

25 S VNETE e DN

Company controlled by SND Company

XS EIPNCIE PN

Company controlled by SND Company

25 S IPNCIEE VN

Joint venture or associate of SND Company
and its subsidiaries (“SND Group”)

AT RN B
(HBHEB) 2L EABERT

Joint venture or associate of SND Group



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R BT oE

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @Bt AR 5 ()

(a) Name of related parties and relationship (a) BB A EBREAEENE

with the Group (Continued) &R#)
Name Relationship
=% 2R
HENSFLEESBEREERAA Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou High-tech Private Equity Fund Management

Co., Ltd."”)
BNETFLEESEEERAR HafEENeEhENEE QT
wINFTRIZRERAR A A Joint venture or associate of SND Group
(“Suzhou Xinchuang Construction Development

Co., Ltd."”)
wINFTRIZRERABR A A HaTsEnaECEIBERA
BN E R AR A A Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou Xinxu Investment Development Co., Ltd.")
BN EBRRBR A A HafEENeEhENEE QT
HMNEFEERPRERZEER AR Joint venture or associate of SND Group

(“Suzhou High-tech Zone Zhenzhong Tourism
Development Co., Ltd.”)

HMNEHERPIREREFRAF HaTsENaECEIBERA
BN RXEBHEERBR AR Joint venture or associate of SND Group
("Suzhou Xinjingtian Business Land Development

Co., Ltd.")
BN R B HEZEERAR HaTEENaECERBERA]
BEINFRRERR AT Joint venture or associate of SND Group
(“Suzhou Xurun Investment Co., Ltd.")
HINFEREBR AT HaTsENaECERBERA
BN e SRR ERER A A Joint venture or associate of SND Group
(“Suzhou new green construction development

Co., Ltd.")
BT EaEERERERAA HaTEENaECERBERA]
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Name of related parties and relationship
with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

33. @Bt AR5 ()

() BB A EBRERNTENE
& (%)

Relationship
2RES

NS EREEERBERARL

("Suzhou High-tech Venture Capital Group Ronglian
Management Co., Ltd.")

HNEFEEREEERBERARLD

BN ILEBKHERR AT
("Suzhou Zhishan Huishui Real Estate Co., Ltd."”)
BNE L EKESFR AR

BMNBEREREERARA

("Suzhou Xinhao Agrlcultural Tourism Development
Co., Ltd.”)

BMNBEREIREERARA

BMNEE T T ETER AR
(“Suzhou Sugaoxin Urban Renewal Co., Ltd."”)

MBI TEH AR DA

HMNBMNEEZRARA AERMESEE
("Suzhou Rongzhou Tourism Development Co., Ltd.
Huirong Plaza Hotel")

FMNBMNREZRBER A BERESEE

HMNSHMEEIRERERARA

(“Suzhou High-tech Golden House Engineering
Construction Development Co., Ltd ")

HMNSHMEEIRRERERARA

HNFTMERZERERAA

("Suzhou New Lion Reconstruction and Development
Co., Ltd.")

HNFTMERERERAA
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Joint venture or associate of SND Group

SRS

Ell:y)

m
o
e
B>
e
gE_‘T
1
S
Ell

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

U

FEMEENA LOERBEAT

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

SRS

HAELERBE QA

]ﬂl

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

U

HRMEENSEhERBE QT

Joint venture or associate of SND Group
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R BT oE

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @Bt AR 5 ()

() BB A EBRERNEENE

(a) Name of related parties and relationship

with the Group (Continued) &R#)
Name Relationship
=1 2RES

gMTE L ARNERRARAF

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

("Suzhou Shishan Headquarters Park Development
Co., Ltd.")
MNTRILAREEREGRAA e EENAECERBERR

BMNmrftEEEREERAR
(“Suzhou Gaoxin Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.")
HMNSHMHEEEERR AR

EILAMERAR DA

("Zhongshan-Suzhou New District Development
Co., Ltd")

EILAMERAR DA e EENAECERBERR

BMNBRITEEETFHBEERAT
("Suzhou Fresh Service E-commerce Co., Ltd.”)
BINRITAEETEEERA A BaEBEMNaEELHERT

HNSHMARAEREEEARAF

("Suzhou Gaoxin Mingxin Venture Capital Management
Co., Ltd.”)

HNSHMARAEREEEARAF HeMEENaEbRIBLERT

HMNSHMAERESERBREEERARAA

(“Suzhou High-tech Venture Capital Group Rongsheng
Investment Management Co., Ltd.")

HMNSHMAERESERBREEERBRAA HeafMEENa 2 bERBERT

HMNSHMARAEREEEFERAF

("Suzhou High-tech Venture Capital Management
Co., Ltd.")

HMNSHMARAEREEEERAF
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31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Name of related parties and relationship
with the Group (Continued)

Name

=L

33. @Bt AR5 ()

() BB A EBRERNTENE
& (%)

Relationship
2RES

BMNAAMBCERAER AR

("Suzhou Public Science and Culture Development
Co., Ltd.")

BMNAABMBCERARR

BNEFEEERRERRARAA

("Suzhou High-tech Means of Production Business
Development Co., Ltd.”)

BNEFEEERRERRARAA

HMNEBRETRRERARA

("Suzhou Jinxiyuan Construction Development
Co., Ltd.")

HMNEBRETRRERARA

HMNFEBETEREGRAA
("Suzhou Gaoxin City Development Co., Ltd. ")
HMFBWHERAR A A

— BT EERBR QA
("Yike City Investment Development Co., Ltd.”)
— BRI MR EREBRAA

HMNERBRERBR LA

(“Suzhou Huirong Business Travel Development
Co., Ltd.”)

HMNERBRERBR LA

HMNSHMBTFREXERGRAF

("Suzhou High-tech Digital Financial Industry
Development Co., Ltd."”)

BNSHMBTeREXERGRAF

240 Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BHEFEEREROBERLT/ —T_=FFR

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

m

RN EENA B ERHEAT

i}

Joint venture or associate of SND Group

HRMEENSEhERBE QT

Joint venture or associate of SND Group
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE s MY et

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @Bt AR 5 ()

(b) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the (b) BRFBEREMIEDFAFROR
financial statements, the Group had the following S50 REE R F N R T
transactions with related parties during the year: TUTRS :

2023 2022

2023 £ 2022 FF
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR®TT AREKTE
(Restated)

(K&E51)

Property management service and ¥ ¥ EERHE R B HRFEUWA :
city service income:

Companies controlled by R /NI B N
SND Company 59,765 49,733
Joint ventures or associates of HaEBEMmEEDEL
SND Group /NG| 8,132 12,167
The controlling shareholder of KRN RERARER
the Company 2,434 2,073
Total wEt 70,331 63,973
Rental income: HEeWA
Joint ventures or associates of e EBEmeEDEL
SND Group A W/NS 657 826
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 FF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Interest expense: FERX:
The Controlling Shareholder of PN/ B e
the Company 264 302
Companies controlled by SRS NS oG
SND Company 285 230
Total 5 549 532
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R AR Y R

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @EE T R 5 ()
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
2023 2022
2023 2022 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTTT
(Restated)
(=5
Lease payments: HEMNR:
Joint ventures or associates of HaTEENaEDES
SND Group /NG 88 -
Other purchases from related REEEH A TN HE AL
companies:
Companies controlled by 3 VAN Eec s 0 NEC]
SND Company 8,580 8,643
Joint ventures or associates of HaTEEmN K
SND Group il 940 131
Total #5 9,520 8,774
() Outstanding balances with related parties () EHFEBSHRMSE
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT
(Restated)
(geE )
Due from related companies: PEUWRBAEE A RIFRIE
Trade related B 5186
Companies controlled by B# A REH A
SND Company 24,583 16,396
Joint ventures or associates of G EBENeEDEL
SND Group /NG| 4,692 7,398
Subtotal N 29,275 23,794
Relocation compensation WMEBWE
The controlling shareholder of AR AERR AR R
the Company 29,461 -
Total #az 58,736 23,794
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE s MY et

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. @Bt AR 5 ()

(c) Outstanding balances with related parties () EHBEBAENRNSERE)
(Continued)
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETF T
(Restated)
(5 E5)
Due to related companies: PE{ BB A B RKIE ¢
Trade related =Rl
Companies controlled by EESE NS oG
SND Company 15,088 10,012
Joint ventures or associates of B EBENEEDEL
SND Group /N 330 1,863
The controlling shareholder of PN/ B2
the Company 319 319
Total wwEt 15,737 12,194
2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
Bt 5E ARBTRT AREKTE
(Restated)
(#E51)
Due to related companies: PE A BA B A B FRIE ¢
Non-trade related FEZHE
The Controlling Shareholder of RN FHERAR R
the Company - 10,012
Companies controlled by BHERAMAFTESNAR )

SND Company 8,500 6,000
Total HEt 8,500 16,012
Note: FfsE -

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group made (0 BZE2023FE 12 A31HILERE - &
advances from Taihu Jingu, which are unsecured and charged EERANLATELRE Sz
interest at a rate of 3.55% with a repayment term of three - ) A

FRIE BRI 12 3.55% M) FI| E

e e ERMASE -
Except for the balances mentioned above, the other Br bt 456000 - Efh 565 B EIK
balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed . E B EE TSR -

terms of repayment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 2k B o

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34 LBRIBI DA R T

ERMeMITANRSPRARNEREE

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments at the end of the reporting period were as follows: m
2023 2023 F
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets Financial
at fair value assets at
through other fair value Financial
comprehensive through assets at
income profitorloss  amortised cost Total
UAFEFIA
Ett2ERA  HAFEFIA REBHRK
WeREE BRENEEEE ARNEREE b
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Equity investments at fair value through PATEFIAEmZERA
other comprehensive income iR g 4,950 - - 4,950
Wealth management products BRER - 18,000 - 18,000
Trade receivables BHMEKR - - 295,064 295,064
Financial assets included in prepayments, — FT ATBFT 3B - EtEKFA
other receivables and other assets REMEENSREE
(note 19) (F3E19) - - 12,833 12,833
Amounts due from related parties [ Eyp ] - - 58,736 58,736
Restricted cash XRHRE - - 265 265
Time deposits THER - - 69,903 69,903
Cash and cash equivalents BeRAESED - - 397,318 397,318
Total @it 4,950 18,000 834,119 857,069
Financial liabilities TRAaE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
1R 8 85 B AR
AERNEREE #et
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AR®TR
Trade payables 2 5 e I8 301,328 301,328
Financial liabilities included in other ST E At JE < 5RIE I FE A K
payables and accruals (note 24) memaE (HE24) 110,201 110,201
Interest-bearing bank loans STRBITER 119,063 119,063
Other liabilities HMAaRE 174,041 174,041
Amounts due to related parties JE 1 BB B 75 3R 24,237 24,237
Total @t 728,870 728,870
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(Continued)
2022

Financial assets

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

B 5 ¥R A= I

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

34 IFFERE o R T A @)

2022 F

Financial assets

at fair value
through other
comprehensive Financial assets
income  at amortised cost Total
ARFETIA
HuzmBA g Kl WIN
MEMEE ARNEREE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT ARETTT
(Restated)
(/& &E5)
Equity investments at fair value ARAFEIAEMET
through other comprehensive WA B iR &
income 70,673 - 70,673
Trade receivables B 5 EWRIA - 176,503 176,503
Financial assets included in STATEMFUE - HHEWR
prepayments, other receivables REREMEENS R
and other assets (note 19) G ERE) - 13,784 13,784
Amounts due from related parties & U B B 77 7108 - 23,794 23,794
Restricted cash R HIE & - 845 845
Time deposits e lilEE - 1,937 1,937
Cash and cash equivalents BehBE&EED - 355,908 355,908
Total @t 70,673 572,771 643,444
Financial liabilities TREE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost Total
R S R AR
AR ERmEE et
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEF T AREFIT
(Restated)
(&&ES))
Trade payables B 5 IA 212,630 212,630
Financial liabilities included in other FT A E At FE A5 3B I B AT 3RIR
payables and accruals (note 24) HErmeE (KsE24) 96,948 96,948
Interest-bearing bank loans FFEIRITER 122,500 122,500
Other liabilities HitwBE 170,974 170,974
Amounts due to related parties JE A BB ES 75 3R 28,206 28,206
Total @t 631,258 631,258
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

35 SBIANHATFERAT
EER

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AEEeMTARRAEREQAFESE
MHENTRTARIN WEEERAF

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

246

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

BT

2023 2023
Carrying
amounts Fair values
BREE AYE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETx
Financial assets EEEE
Wealth management products BT E 18,000 18,000
Equity investments at fair value through AR FEIIAEMEE
other comprehensive income WA R ERE 4,950 4,950
Total B 22,950 22,950
Financial liabilities kot =R
Other liabilities HMAaE 174,041 174,041
Interest-bearing bank loans FFERITER 119,063 119,063
Total R 293,104 293,104
2022 2022
Carrying
amounts Fair values
REE NEE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFT
Financial assets ERMEE
Equity investments at fair value through NATFEIAEMEE
other comprehensive income A B RS B 70,673 70,673
Financial liabilities EEEE
Other liabilities HivB & 170,974 170,974
Interest-bearing bank loans FFEIRITER 122,500 122,500
Total st 293,474 293,474
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables, time deposits, pledged bank
deposits, current interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings, trade payables, other liabilities, and financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments.

The finance manager of each subsidiary of the Group is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The Group’s
finance manager reports directly to the chief financial officer
and the audit committee. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings as at the end of the reporting period were assessed
to be insignificant.

B % R AR Y R

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

35 SMIANATFERAT

EVERC)

ERECHEREIASEED B
FEWRIR - sFATRNRENEREE
H YRR - EMIE A 2 MR TT
R BVEET RRITER R EMER
EHRNHIE  Hib B EARETAEM
ENFIBEREARENERBENRF
BHEHEKEERE  T2RE/ZET
Ao E| B EIR &G

AEEEHBARNMBEEAEETE
ERMITARTEFENBERERERF - &K
SENMBLEERNIT KRR REZ
ZEERS -NEHRSEH MBS
e T ABENZSH W ETRANG
BENEIEHABE -AEHRMBEESR
BIRALE - BFERFBRRFEM B RS
HELZEGUMERF MERETHR

N A
IRETHR ©

TREEMNBENAFENEBRR S
(REHBFRHERINERNRZPZT
BRI R ZEBAR -

AHERTT R EAMERAERNRAE LR
FEDEBEREBLUER FERAR
G HEENSRTENER A
MEPRBERARKBE S REMAE - F
AEENHRERE R BRT R EAM
18 BRP AT B N B 40 BB T ZE A B 1 F
BEEBHWFBHA/TEK -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R AR Y R

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

35 SMIANATFERAT

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent
wealth management products issued by banks in Chinese
Mainland. The Group has estimated the fair value of these
unlisted investments by using the market approach based on
the market interest rates of instruments with similar terms and
risks and asset-based approach based on the general concept
that the earning power of a business entity is derived primarily
from its existing assets.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income, management has
estimated the potential effect of using reasonably possible
alternatives as inputs to the valuation model.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments as at 31 December 2023 and
2022.

BEE L)

AKEEENFLTRE - DaFER
RRTETHEHES - AEHEHA
TR AR R ERIE 2 TARD
B BRE) REEBWE (ARHE
B BHENEBREHRA AR
BBABER) i HEF LTREAN
AT

HRAXFEIAEMEEBANIEL
MEERENAFE  EEECHER
BEAFAEER AN E B ARE
ZBEZEERMGE -

TR E Z20234F 20224512 A31
HeRMTEGFBEZERTAHEREAE
BEE -

Valuation Significant Sensitivity of fair
technique unobservable input  Range value to the input
EXTTEE NPEY
EE S WABE BAHBHREMN
Equity investments designated
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
EERARTFEIARLM
FEBARNRERE
Suzhou Xinjingtian Business ~ Asset-based Unit price 31 December 2023: 5% increase/(decrease) in
Land Development Co., Ltd. approach (RMB per sg.m) 4,032 t0 16,939 discount would result in
increase/(decrease) in fair
value by RMB4,203,000/
(RMB4,203,000)
BMHsAABEHERR  BEERZX BB 203F 128318 HEEM/ORL)5% &
BRAA (BERRARKIT) 4,032%16939 EHATEELM/ CRD)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input

BEAFTABE
BRI WABE

B 355 R 2= M

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

35 SMIANATFERAT

BB &)
Sensitivity of fair
Range value to the input
AT EY
L} BARBHHEML

Suzhou Huirong Business
Travel Development Co., Ltd.

HMNERARERERAH

The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 during
the year are as follows:

31 December 2022:

4,136 t0 18,675

2022612 4318 -

4,136 218,675

31 December 2022:

30%

2022F 12 A318 -

30%

FRAF=MAFEFENESHMT

5% increase/(decrease) in
discount would result in
increase/(decrease) in fair
value by RMB4,541,000/
(RMB4,541,000)

e (i) 5% g8
BRTEEMN/ (R
AR4,541,0007T,/ (A
¥ 4,541,0007T)

5% increase/(decrease) in
discount would result in
(decrease)/increase in fair
value by (RMB1,273,000)/
RMB1,273,000

e m/ i) 5%
EEHRATFE
(R4, m
(NE#1,273,0007T),/
AR 1,273,0007T

2023 2022
2023 F 2022 F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARETET

At 1 January ®W1A1H 70,673 92,440
Remeasurement recognised in other P EL Aty 2 T UG A BE SR A

comprehensive income EFEE (5,420) (21,767)
Disposals BRE (60,303) -
At 31 December ®12HA31H 4,950 70,673

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair
value measurements.

B 2 2023F N2022%F12A31H 14
B AFPEFEE—PHRE_F B
RN W A e g A N N A

= A —

EE=M-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R AR Y R

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank loans,
finance leases, other liabilities, and cash and time deposits. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group'’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has currency exposures from its cash and cash
equivalents and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the
exchange rate of RMB against HKD, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group'’s profit before tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

36.

A1 75 Bl b B 3 B AR MR

FEENFTESMTABIERITER
REMRE - HbBERALRE REHF
K- REERTANIZEANERAN
SEELEEES - AKEHEELHE
feREELAE  FINERKRAHE
LHE S EWFIANE ZRNIA -

K§$¥lﬁﬁﬁlﬂm$£ﬂﬁﬁ%‘ﬁﬁg

EERRBERBESRER -EF
@%Fﬁﬁﬂgéf@&%%lﬁﬂ 2 HY I
R HEBBAT -

ERER
AEERRS KRS SENU R RR

17 K At 18 5K T [ bR & W = B

TREINEMBEEMEERT TENE
AT AEREBAFER RS HER (H
REBEERABHRAFEZES) WA
REEHETERA A e E B GRE -

(Decrease)/
(Decrease)/ increase
increase in profit
in HKD rate before tax
BITEZ Bt A0 I
R4 /¥ hn W), 1E 0
% RMB’000
AR®TR
31 December 2023 202312 A31H
If RMB weakens against HKD i AR BT E (5) (7,978)
If RMB strengthens against HKD W ARBHETIE 5 7,978
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % R AR Y R

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. i #5 &l fe &1 B 12 M IR

AND POLICIES (continued) (4&)
Foreign currency risk (Continued) E¥E )
(Decrease)/
(Decrease)/ increase
increase in profit
in HKD rate before tax
BITER 5 5 F)
CRA),#m  Crd) i
% RMB’'000
ARET T
31 December 2022 2022F 12 A31H
If RMB weakens against HKD i AR W BT E (5) (9,686)
If RMB strengthens against HKD W AR HETIE 5 9,686
Credit risk FEERME

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant. For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group
does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year-
end staging classification as at 31 December.

AEEERERTREERINE=S
RS- REBEARENER FEEER
FEEMETRINEFPHERREER
ZARFF o WO - RIS E Y RIRIR K
PRIETTES TR - AU SR B b 0 35 R L
WAREK - HRWIFABBEEEENE
AREEBAENR S  AREER
REEEZTEREHENBERATLT
REEER -

RS RN FAERR

TREJRZBAKENEERRI DN
EEEIEAEREERR  ZBRIIE
FERBMEN (EBAEBINKARS
ARAER e EMER RN RR12 A
3ITAMFEREERIE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. i # &l ke &1 B 12 MR

AND POLICIES (continued) (#&)
Credit risk (Continued) EERK &)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BEREBREFAFTERE (&)
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial FFI2YeresmEEnRORERS
assets and the exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee REREOEAZHEERR -
contracts.
2023 2023 F
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
T=fiA
REFERE 2HRBEEER
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-R& BoRE& BZRE L% by
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Trade receivables* EU) Le oy - - - 314,586 314,586
Financial assets included in -~ &F AFE U8 «

prepayments, other Hh A &

receivables and other assets ~ Ef A ENSBAE

— Normal** — [EE* 12,833 - - - 12,833
Due from related parties JEI R TR

— Not yet past due — HARBH 58,736 - - - 58,736
Restricted cash XBHRE

— Not yet past due — WAREH 265 - - - 265
Time deposits EEER

— Not yet past due — HRBH 69,903 - - - 69,903
Wealth management products 2§ & &

— Not yet past due — HARBH 18,000 - - - 18,000
Cash and cash equivalents R RELZEY

— Not yet past due — HRBH 397,318 - - - 397,318
Total et 557,055 - - 314,586 871,641
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R A Y &

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. i #5 &l fe &1 B 12 M IR

AND POLICIES (continued) (#%&)

Credit risk (Continued) EERK#)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued) BEREBRFEAFTEREBE (&)

2022 2022

12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f@A
BHEERR 2HESEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-TRE FfRE F=REB Blenk @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT
(Restated)
(mE5)
Trade receivables* 2 S FE - - - 193,484 193,484
Financial assets included in -~ =t A\TE I ~ EAfE
prepayments, other WHBREMEER
receivables and other assets 4 =&z
— Normal** —EE** 13,784 - - - 13,784
Due from related parties el AR 2R
— Not yet past due — WK 23,79 - - - 23,794
Restricted cash TREHESE
— Not yet past due — WREH 845 - - - 845
Time deposits TEHEH
— Not yet past due — WARBE 1,937 - - - 1,937
Cash and cash equivalents 384 RIS ZEY
— Not yet past due — WABE 355,908 - - - 355,908

Total b 396,268 - - 193,484 589,752

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * RAKEHAGLELAZETRENES
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix EWHKIEMES  ERBEEROERR
is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements. BTSRRI 195 %5 -

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, o EeREETAROBARTEEHNKAR
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when MpERREREENEERBKIEG
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the e - T AT RIE - EMERGRIER
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial HWEENSRMEENFEEZERA
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is [EE] TR 2MEENEFEERR
considered to be “doubtful”. WEITRER] -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 7420234 12 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 19
to the financial statements.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer and
geographical region. There are no significant concentrations of
credit risk within the Group as the customer bases of the
Group's trade receivables are widely dispersed in different
regions.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its exposure to liquidity risk by monitoring
the current ratio, which is calculated by comparing the current
assets with the current liabilities.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-
bearing loans. The Group's policy is that all the borrowings
should be approved by the chief financial officer.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FE s MY et

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. iR EEBENKE

AND POLICIES (continued) (&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REESRREE)

The tables below summarise the maturity profile of the Group’s THRBAFAEERZEREHEARIZED
financial liabilities at the end of each reporting period based on ATEAFE SN AENE BB -

contractual undiscounted payments:

2023 2023 F
Less than 3t012
On demand 3 months months  1to5years Over5 years Total
EER 3EAR 3Z12M8A 125% S5ENLE @t

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR AR®TR ARBTRT ARE®TR ARMTR AR%TR

Interest-bearing bank loans & S BTE - 5,938 7,908 53,742 74,955 142,543

Other liabilities HigE - - 6,740 26,960 208,990 242,690

Trade payables B HENTIR 301,328 - - - - 301,328

Due to related parties BT ERE 7 FUR 15,737 - - 8,500 - 24,237

Other payables and accruals {1 & <508 &

JESTFE 110,201 - - - - 110,201

Total @&t 427,266 5,938 14,648 89,202 283,945 820,999
2022 2022 F

Less than 3t0 12
On demand 3 months months Tto5years  Over5years Total
fEE K AR 3E12{EA 1E5% SFENAE @5t

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTL ARBTT AR®TR ARBTE ARETT ARETRI

(Restated)

(B E5))

Interest-bearing bank loans & ERITEFR - 1,361 15,175 92,721 33,732 142,989

Other liabilities HEBE - 3,370 3,370 30,330 215,730 252,800

Trade payables EC) B 212,630 - - - - 212,630

Due to related parties JERTBRE A FUR 28,206 - - - - 28,206
Other payables and accruals {1 & 5508

JEStFE 96,948 - - - - 96,948

Total @it 337,784 4,731 18,545 123,051 249,462 733,573
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R AR Y R

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. %R R EIE B 12 RER
AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Capital management BEXEHE
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to AEBEAERNTEZEEAMREL
ensure that it maintains a strong credit profile and healthy BRIFNEERAREBREME R X -
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise N EHEBIFERREERKL
shareholders’ value.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments AEERBEERANEHEREER
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or BEEWHEELRE RERFKARE
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend R REBESNGABIRMN TREL
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue B IREAARTRENBEITHARND -
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or REA - REBERERANERE - BR
processes for managing capital during the year. SR FH A MES -
The Group monitors capital using the debt/asset ratio, which is rEEFREEARRERER  BE
total liabilities divided by total assets. The debt-to-asset ratios as BEXATABELHEKRNEERE -
at the end of the reporting period were as follows: HEHRRNEEABRENAT :
2023 2022
2023 F 2022
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥TT AR%Trx
(Restated)
(Ke&E51)
Total assets BERE 1,616,633 1,446,725
Total liabilities BEER 805,739 692,969
Debt/asset ratio BEARE 50% 48%
37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. R EHIER SR

Save as disclosed above, there was no other significant event
subsequent to 31 December 2023.
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38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the

NOTES TO FIN

ANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 ¥R A Y &

31 December 2023 742023412 A31H

38. AR AIF AR R &K

8 o B A 2 T B AR R R A R

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T
2023 2022
2023 & 20224
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz BERERE 36,809 38,291
Investment properties wEYHE 20,424 22,126
Other intangible assets Hinmp&E 1,070 694
Investment in a joint venture R—REERENRE 1,009 -
Investment in an associate R—REERRHMRE - 4,778
Investments in subsidiaries RETBARIRIKE 221,496 213,946
Time deposits TE HAfF 3K 67,967 -
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBE E 3,754 2,843
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 352,529 282,678
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE - -
Trade receivables g 5 EWFIE 22,779 30,674
Prepayments, other receivables and TEATFRIE  Ho A 8 WK IE
other assets HEmEE 17,296 13,182
Due from subsidiaries & UL BT B8 A B FkIE 133,591 106,435
Due from other related parties R U L i BR B 5 SR0E 10,750 10,052
Restricted cash ZRHIRE 265 432
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRSEEY 188,124 258,021
Total current assets mEEELE 372,805 418,796
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables B 5B RIA 44,010 40,321
Other payables and accruals H fth & AT 018 K JE 5T R IE 55,457 45,944
Due to subsidiaries FESTB B A B 7R 34,745 34,621
Due to other related parties JE A< B At BA B 5 FR0E 11,940 6,980
Tax payable FEfI A 18 - 625
Contract liabilities EHaE 29,717 18,468
Total current liabilities mENBEAE 175,869 146,959
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 196,936 271,837
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERTBER
LIABILITIES 549,465 554,515
EQUITY g
Share capital [N 101,047 101,047
Reserves fEfE 448,418 453,468
Total equity R 549,465 554,515
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 75 3R AR T oE

31 December 2023 722023412 A31H

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 38. "R Al RS AR R 2R ()
THE COMPANY (Continued)

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RARMFEER AT
Paid-in Share Capital Statutory Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
EHAER  RhaB EXEE  ETREE  BEAE At

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AREBTL ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT AREBTI

At 1 January 2022 M20225181H 75,000 - 263,160 2,299 37,629 378,088
Total comprehensive FREERAEE

income for the year - - - - 17,063 17,063

Issue of shares BT D 26,047 168,927 - - - 194,974

Share issue expenses  X{0 E1TH X - (35,610) - - - (35,610)

Transfer from retained & & B & FF)E
profits - - - 1,707 (1,707) -
At 31 December 2022 #2022F12F31H 101,047 133,317 263,160 4,006 52,985 554,515
Share Share Capital  Statutory Retained

capital premium reserve reserve profits Total

&N BB E N EERE BEAHE =E)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR®BTnR AR%®TR AR¥®TR AR®TR AR®TxR

At 1 January 2023 20231818 101,047 133,317 263,160 4,006 52,985 554,515

Total comprehensive — FRZHEYA BT

income for the year - - - - 12,128 12,128
Final 2022 dividend BR2022 F R Hf

declared i B - - - - (17,178) (17,178)
Transfer from retained & # 5 877§

profits - - - 1,213 (1,213) -
At 31 December 2023 7420234 12831H 101,047 133,317 263,160 5,219 46,722 549,465

39. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  39. #t /EBf &3 &

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue MBRMREEEFGN2024F3 228
by the board of directors on 22 March 2024. O R T8 -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFEMBERE

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
20194 20204F 20214 20224 2023 F
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTF T ARBTRT ARKEFT AREBTT AR®BTRT
Revenue PN 440,981 442,151 469,944 534,221 725,104
Gross profit ERHE 87,229 90,192 104,587 123,610 146,973
Gross profit margin FH = 20% 20% 22% 23% 20%
Profit before tax 5 B F)E 53,678 58,779 70,761 87,867 104,536
Income tax expenses TSt & A -14,591 -16,148 -20,027 -22,802 -24,414
Profit for the year AN FIE 39,087 42,631 50,716 65,065 80,122
Total non-current assets  FERBIEES T 638,988 763,087 825,638 856,869 748,592
Total current assets MENEEETE 1,452,063 442,672 696,284 589,856 868,041
Total current liabilities MEVBEAE 1,195,648 392,523 665,776 392,311 510,929
Net current assets ME)E EFEE 256,415 50,149 30,508 197,545 357,112
Total assets less current 488 EE R £ R &)
liabilities af& 895,403 813,236 856,147 1,054,414 1,105,704
Total non-current liabilities 3£ B & & 42 %8 532,542 321,915 311,885 300,658 294,810
Total equity of the PN ey L
Company 363,661 491,321 544,262 753,756 810,894
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
FIERE 2=

Location Nature Lease term

i B 3= HEHR

91 Units of Golden Lion Building, 1156 Binhe Road, Gaoxin District, Office building Leasehold
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FREDT#E &M S EE A 1156 57 2 A E 91 @ E (1 N HEXERE

Block Nos. 1 to 11, 365 Heshan Road, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Residence Leasehold
Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FELT&EA &N e E ML 365512 111 F=E THEXERE

Commercial Unit No. 14, Xinsheng Xinyuan, Xinyuan Second Road, Commercial unit  Leasehold
Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEIT#HEHMNT S IEIT I BT AFTIEmER 1457 Gk MEHER

Commercial Units C and M, Block No. 42, Xintai Huayuan, 99 Zhuyuan Road, =~ Commercial unit Leasehold
Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEIEBREEHENT SRR IRERICIL42EFHC LM Gk HEXERE

Commercial Unit Nos. 2A, 2B, 2C, 2E, 2F, 2G, 3A, 3B, 3C, 3D, 3E, DY, Commercial unit Leasehold
4 Huaihai Street, Gaoxin District, Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEIHAHMNM M EESE45REERE2A 2B 2C 2B 2F-2G i THEXE
3A+3B8+3C 3D 3EDYE

Level 4 to 6, Jinshan Waste Collection Centers, Jinshan Road, Gaoxin District, ~ Office building Leasehold
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province, the PRC

FEIHEHMNMSNESILERSILNREEFLIZCE N HEXERE

Suxin Joyful Life Services Co., Ltd. / Annual Report 2023
BHEFEEREROBERLT/ —T_=FFR






	Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Definitions
	Events of the Year
	Awards of the Year
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
	Corporate Governance Report
	Report of the Directors
	Report of the Supervisory Committee
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Properties Held for Investment
	Back Cover



